Director’s Report

Dear Members,

The Directors of the Hindon Mercantile Limited (“the Company™) are pleased to present their 38%
Annual Report together with the annual audited financial statements for the financial year ended March
31,2023,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(In Lakhs)
Standalone for financial Consolidated for
Parti vear ended on 31st March | financial year ended on
articulars 31st March
2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenue from operations 7.634 84 774695 10,963 92 777163
Other income 380.08 19470 59213 382.06
Total revenues 8,014.92 8,129.01 11,556,05 | 8,153.69
Total expenses 7,610.21 7.451.01 10,062.35 | 7.677.71
Profit before tax 404.71 678 1,493.70 475,98
Profit for the year 229.46 693.55 1,229.67 522.49
Eamings Per Share

Basic 1.76 5.95 6.80 4,87
Diluted 1.76 505 6.80 4.87

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

On Standalone Basis

As at 31st March 2023, the loan book size was Rs. 3,151 91 Lakhs compared to Rs. 40,794 31 Lakhs
as at 3 Ist March 2022, The Revenue has decreased by around 1.40% at Rs. 8,014.92 Lakhs for the year
ended 31st March 2023 compared to Rs. §,129.01 Lakhs for the vear ended 3 st March 2022,

The profit after tax has decreased by 33.08% at Rs. 229.46 Lakhs for the financial vear ended March
31, 2023 as against Rs. 693 55 Lakhs for the previous financial year.

On Consolidated Basis

As at 31st March 2023, the Revenue has increased by around 41.73% at Rs. 11,556.5 Lakhs for the year
ended 31st March 2023 compared to Rs. 8,153.69 Lakhs for the vear ended 31st March 2022,

The profit after tax has increased by 135.00% at Rs. 1,229.67 Lakhs for the financial year ended March
31, 2023 as against Rs. 522.49 Lakhs for the previous financial year.

The Company 1s focused on providing easy and quick loan facility which includes Vehicle Loan, SME
Loans and Startups, Personal loans, Gold Loan, Loan against property and Working capital Loans. The
Directors of your Company are optimist for the significant growth of the Company and striving to




achieve new milestones in upcoming years. Company also focused on branch expansion as it offers
visibility and brand exposer which can positively influence a company’s profits.

During the vear under review company had sold its major loan book to the asset reconstruction company
to restructure its books due to which company’s loan book has been decreased and also profitability got
decreased.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

During the period under review, there was no change in nature of business of the Company. The
Company 1s a Non-systemically important Non Deposit accepting Non-banking Financial Company
{(NBFC-ND-NSI) registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

SHARE CAPITAL
A. Authorised Share Capital

During the financial vear under review, there has been no change in the authorized share capital of the
Company. The authorized share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stood at Rs.
25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores only) consisting of 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each.

B. Issued and Paid up Capital

During the year under review, the Company has issued Equity shares as per the details mentioned below:

Sl. No. | Number of Equity Shares | Mode of Issuance
Issued
1 20,00,000 Right Basis

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company is Rs. 14,79,26,340 (Rupees Fourteen Crore Seventy
Nine Lakh Twenty Six Thousands Three Hundred Forty only), comprising of 1,47,92,634 fully paid
equity shares of face value of Rs, 10/- each.

Other Equity

The reserves and surplus as at March 31, 2023 stood at Rs. 7,732 54 Lakh as against Rs. 5,703.26 Lakh
as at March 31, 2022,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company has following subsidiaries:

S. No. | Name of Subsidiary Holding(%)
1. Hindon Peer to Peer Finance Private Limited 100
2 Hindon Account Aggregation Services Private | 100
Limited
3 Mufin Green Finance Limited 67 33
4. Bimapay Finsure Private Limited 70.00
5. Mufinpay Payment Solutions Private Limited 100




The Company does not have any Joint Venture or Associate Company, Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing the salient features of financial
statements of the Company’s subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is annexed as Annexure I to this Report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company
along with the consolidated financial statements in respect of subsidiary company are attached herewith.

During the period under review, there was no company which has become a Joint Venture/ Associate
Company of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company bemng a “Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company”, has not accepted nor invited any deposits from the public during the period under review
within the meaning of Section 73 of the Compamies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 and shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval
of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Since the Company has not accepted nor invited any deposits, there
are no amounts that remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year under review. As per the
Reserve Bank Master Direction issued by the RBI, a resolution in this regard has also been passed by
the Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 11, 2023,

DIVIDEND/RESERVES

Your Director’s feel that it 1s prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and,
therefore, do not recommend any dividend for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023. As per the
requirement of the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines, the Company has transferred an amount of
Rs.80.94 lakhs to the Statutory Reserve.

BORROWINGS

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial mstitution. During the period
under review, the Company met its funding requirements through debts from Banks, Companies and
Financial Institutions. The aggregate debt outstanding as on 3 1st March, 2023 was Rs. 4,090.27 Lakhs.
The Company has been regular in servicing all its debt obligations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KMP

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company 1s in accordance with Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act™). The Company has the following seven (7) Directors on its Board,
2 (Two) of them are Independent Directors. The Company has one Company Secretary.

S. No.

Name of Director/KMP

Position

1.

Mr. Kapil Garg

Managing Director

Mrs, Neha Agarwal

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sandeep Jain

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Luv Khanna

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hemant Bhageria

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pradip Kumar Kar

Independent Director

Mr. Amol Sinha

Independent Director

Sl Il L0l el Pl eadl g

Mr. Mayank Pratap Singh

Company Secretary




During the period under review, Mr. Pratekk Agarwaal was resigned as Directors of the Company with
effect from September 20, 2022 and Mr. Hemant Bhageria, was appointed as Non-Executive and
Independent Director with effect from January 12, 2023 Further, Mr. Mayank Pratap Singh, was
appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from May 05, 2022,

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified to act as Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they meet the critenia of independence as
specified under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they qualify to be independent
directors pursuant to the Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014,

The above confimations were placed before the Board at its meeting held on April 11, 2023 and duly
noted.

It is the opinion of the Board that the Independent Directors possess relevant expertise, qualifications
and experience in the fields of strategy, finance, people management, risk advisory, financial services,
mvestment and they hold the highest standards of integrity.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to inter-alia discuss about the Company’s policies and strategy
apart from other Board matters. The Board is responsible to exercise their business judgment to act in
what they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Board
of Directors along with its constituted Committees provide direction and guidance to the Company’s
leadership and management team and further direct, supervise as well as review the performance of the
Company.

During the financial vear under review, 7 (Seven) Board Meetings were convened and held on May 05,
2022, August 23, 2022, September 30, 2022, December 12, 2022, January 12, 2023, February 13, 2023,
and March 28, 2023 respectively. The required quorum was present for all the Board meetings and the
gap between two meetings did not exceed a period of 120 days.

COMMITTTEES

The Board committees and other committees play an important role in the govemance and focus on
specific areas and make informed decisions within the terms of reference and authority delegated. The
Board committees and other committees comprising senior officials of the Company as the Members
are guided by their respective terms of reference. In terms of the applicable circular(s), notification(s)
and direction(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Company’s Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors of the
Company have constituted/reconstituted the following committees for the effective business operations
and governance of the Company:

S. No. | Type of Committee

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee




4. Risk Management Committee
5. Internal Complaints Committee

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of well qualified Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee
is in accordance with the Act and the rules made thereunder. During the financial year under review,
the Audit Committee of the Company comprised of 3 (Three) members, majority of whom are non-
executive independent directors in accordance with Section 177 of the Act read with rules thereto. viz.,
Mr. Kapil Garg and Sandeep Jain and is chaired by Mr. Amol Sinha. The members of the Committee
are financially Iiterate and learned, experienced and well known in their respective fields.

The meetings of the Audit Committee are also attended by the Chief Financial Officer, Intemal Auditors
and the Statutory Auditors as nvitees. During the financial year under review, 4 (Four) Audit
Committee Meetings were convened and held on May 05, 2022, August 23, 2022, November 14, 2022
and Febrary 13, 2023 respectively. The required quorum was present for all the Audit Committee
meetings and the gap between two meetings did not exceed a period of 120 days.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the
“NRC?”) in accordance with the provisions of the Section 178 of the Act. During the financial year
under review, the NRC consists of 3 (Three) members viz, Mr. Hemant Bhagena and Mr. Luv
Khanna and the Committee is chaired by Mr. Sandeep Jain. During the financial vear under review,
2 (Two) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were convened and held on
September 30, 2022 and March 28, 2023 and the required quorum was present.

3. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBLITY COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (the “CSR™)
Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Act and applicable rules thereto. During the
financial year under review, the Committee 15 compnsed of 3 (Three) directors viz, Mr. Sandeep
Jain, and Mr. Luv Khanna and it is chaired by Mr. Hemant Bhageria.

During the financial period under review, 1 (One) CSR Committee Meeting were convened and
held on May 05, 2022 and the required quorum was present.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (RMC) in accordance
with the RBI Guidelines for NBFCs. During the financial vear under review, the Committee is
comprised of 3 (Members) Members viz, Mr, Hemant Bhagena, Mr, Parveen Sabharwal, Mr. Kapil
Garg and 1t is chaired by Mr. Parveen Sabharwal During the financial year under review, 3 (Three)
RMC Committee Meeting was convened and held on May 03, 2022, September 30, 2022 and
March 28, 2023 respectively and the required quorum was present.




5. INTERNAL COMPLAINANTS COMMITTEE (ICC)

The Board of the Company has constituted an Internal Complainants Committee (ICC) in
accordance with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal Act, 2013, During the financial year under review, the Committee is
comprised of 4 (Four) Members viz, Mrs. Ramni Bhardwaj, Mrs. Tanvi Jawa, Mr. Ankush Julka
and Mr_ Ankit Garg (External Member) it is chaired by Mrs. Rammi Bhardwaj. During the financial
year under review, 1 (One) ICC Committee Meeting was convened and held on March 28, 2023
and the required quorum was present.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(3) of the Act with
respect to Directors” Responsibility Statement, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, and as per the information and explanations obtained by them, hereby confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed;

b. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year;,

¢. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

¢. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively and;

f. internal financial controls to be followed by the Company had been laid down and such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable $S-1 (Secretanal
Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors) and S5-2 (Secretarial Standard on General Meetings)
1ssued by the Institute of Company Secretarnies of India and approved by the Central Government under
Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s RSD & Co., Chartered Accountants (Finm Registration number: 012777N) were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term of five (3) vears in the Annual General Meeting held
on September 30, 2022, M/s RSD & Co., Chartered Accountants had resigned from the office of the
Statutory Auditor of the Company, w.e.f. April 10, 2023.




M/s PJM & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number; 029582N) were appointed
as the Statutory Auditor of the Company in place of M/s RSD & Co. to fill in the casual vacancy and to
hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held in FY 2023-24 and
Further, Board recommends re-appointment of M/s PJM & Associates for period of five years for the
approval of members

They are eligible for the appointment as the Statutory Auditors pursuant to the provisions of Section
139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the said RBI Guidelines, and had furnished a certificate of their
eligibility and consent in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules
framed thereunder.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Notes on accounts and observations of the Auditors in their Report on the Accounts of the Company
are self-explanatory. There are no observations (including any qualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer) of the Auditors in their Audit Reports that may call for any explanation from the
Directors.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS u/s 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board during the financial year
2022-23.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In terms of Section 204 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, the Secretarial Audit
1s not applicable to the Company for the year under review.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 138 of the Act and rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had at their meeting held on August 23, 2022 appointed
M/s. Neeraj Bansal & Co. Chartered Accountants (FRN: 033654N), as the Internal Auditors of the
Company for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has put in place adequate internal controls with reference to accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information, commensurate with
the size, scale and complexity of operations and ensures compliance with various policies and statutes
in keeping with the organization’s pace of growth, increasing complexity of operations, prevention and
detection of frauds and errors.

The Company has its own process driven framework for internal financial controls. The Board is of the
opinion that the Company has sound internal financial controls commensurate with the nature and size
of its business operations; wherein controls are in place and operating effectively and no material
weaknesses exist. The Company is in the process of strengthening the imternal team for this function.




The Company has appointed a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out internal audit on a
regular basis that includes monitoring and evaluation of the efficacy and adequacy of internal financial
controls, accounting procedures and policies and statutory compliances of the Company. The reports of
the internal auditors are presented to the Audit Committee/Board which oversees the implementation
of any corrective actions required. The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates the adequacy of intemal
financial control and risk management systems, periodically. Efficacy of Internal control systems are
tested periodically by Intemmal Auditors with and Intemal Control over financial reporting is tested and
certified by Statutory Auditors.

During the financial year under review, no material or serious observations have been highlighted for
mefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of the Company has adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) including officers / employee appointed for crucial role of Chief Risk
Officer (CR(O) and the Policy inter alia looks into the ¢ritena for the remuneration for Directors, KMP
and other senior management employees of the Company.

The remuneration paid to the Directors 1s in line with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The provisions Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 are not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Being in the lending business, risk management forms a vital element of our business. The Company
has a well-defined nsk management framework, approved by the Board of Directors. It provides the
mechanism for identifying, assessing and mitigating risks.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party
Transactions, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and RBI Master Directions.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee. An omnibus approval of the Audit
Committee is obtained for the related party transactions which are repetitive in nature.

During the financial year under review, the related party transactions that were entered mnto by the
Company were on an amm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are no related party
transactions that are required to be reported under Section 188(1) of the Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Compames Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with Rule 11(2) of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the loan made, guarantee given or security
provided in the ordinary course of business by an NBFC registered with Reserve Bank of India are




exempt from the applicability of provisions of Section 186 of the Act. As such, the particulars of loans
have not been disclosed in this Report. The details of the Investments of the Company are given in the
Notes to the accompanying Financial Statements.

COST RECORDS

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred from
the end of the financial year till the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As the Company is engaged in the financial services activities, its operations are not energy intensive
nor does it require adoption of specific technology and hence information in terms of Section 134(3)m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company_ Nevertheless, the Company 1s vigilant on the need for conservation of energy.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Board has constituted CSR Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has also framed CSR Policy.

During the year under review, Company is required to spent any amount on account of Corporate Social
Responsibility and details of the same is attached in Annual Report of CSR.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
would impact the going concern status and the Company s future operations.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement
and to provide appropriate avenues to the directors and emplovees to report genuine concems about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud and to bring to the attention of the management, their
genuine concems and grievances about the behavior of the emplovees. Adequate safeguards are
provided against victimization of those who avail of the mechanism and direct aceess to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases is provided to them.




During the period under review, no cases under this mechanism were reported to the Company.
ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the requirements under section 92(3) and section 134(3) of the Act and the
applicable rules, the annual return as on March 31, 2023 is available on the website of the Company

viz., https.//www.mufinfinance.com/

POLICY FOR PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The policy against sexual harassment is embodied in the in a specifically written policy in accordance
with The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. The Company has
complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee formed
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. The committee 1s responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment.

During the period under review no cases/complaints in the nature of sexual harassment were reported.
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For and on behalf of the Board

L/
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Managing Director Director
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Date: June 26, 2023
Place: Delhi




ANNEXURE I

FORM AOC-1

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Part “A”: Subsidiary

SN | Particulars Details

1. | Name of the | Hindon Hindon Mufin Green | Bimapay Mufinpay
subsidiary Peer to Peer | Account Finance Finsure Payment
Finance Aggregation | Limited Private Solutions
Private Services Limited Private
Limited Private Limited
Limited

2. | Reporting
period for
the
subsidiary
concerned, Not Not Not Not

if  different Not Applicable Applicable | Applicable Applicable

from the Applicable
holding
company’s
reporting
period

3. | Reporting
currency and
Exchange
rate as on the
last date of

the relevant Apoli Iﬁ?t Not Not Not Not
Financial pphicable Applicable Applicable | Applicable Applicable
year in the
case of
foreign
subsidiaries
4. | Share capital Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. [ Rs. 1,00,000
2,10,00,000 10,00,000 5,03,31,724 | 10,09,740
5. | Reserves & (Rs. | (Rs. 5,540) Rs. Rs. [ (Rs. 17,080)
surplus 3,81,840) 14,86,482.000 | 84.69.000
6. | Total assets Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 88,820
3,06,24,060 10,06,260 | 3,95,47,29,000 | 99,75,000
7. | Total Rs Rs Rs Rs. Rs. 88,820

Liabilities 3,06,24,060 10,06,260 | 3,95,47,29,000 | 99,75,000




8. | Investments Rs. Nil Rs. Nil Nil
2,20,00,000 2,99,99,999
9. | Turnover Nil Nil Rs. Rs. Nil
35,16,28,000 | 17,90,000
10. | Profit before (Rs. 18,000) Rs. Rs. [ (Rs. 17,080)
taxation (Rs. 5,900) 10,89,12,000 3,76,000
11. | Provision Nil Nil Rs. [ Rs 95,000 Nil
for taxation 2,67,45,000
12, | Profit after (Rs. 18,000) Rs. Rs. | {(Rs. 17,080)
taxation (Rs. 5,900) 8,11,67,000 2,81,000
13. | Proposed Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Dividend
14. | % of 100% 100% 57.83% 70% 100%
shareholding

L/




h) PIM & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants]

E-mail : vikaspjm@gmail.com, Mob : +91 -9034343410

independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Hindon Mercantile Limited
Reportanthe Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Opinon

We have avdited the accampanying Slandalone financial statementsof Hindon MercantiteLlimited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheot as at March 31, 2023
{inchuding Other Comprehoensive Income), the Statement o
in fguity for the year then ended, and notes

Jthe Statement of Frol L and Loss
N B0
Lo tho standatone finoncial statements including a
summary of significan zccounting policies and other explanatory information {(haereisallor referred
o as "the standalone financial statements™).

Cash Flows angd the Statemens of

Iry our opinion and ta the best of aur iInformation and according 1o the explanalions given o us, Yie alereseid
standalene financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 20013 ("me Ac)in tho
manner 3¢ required and givie 3 true and fair view in conformity with the indian Accounting Slandards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read wilh the Companies [Indizn Accounting Standards] Ruies, 2015,
as amended, {“ind AS"} and other accounting principles generally aoceprad in India, of the stole of' attairs of
the Company as al March 31, 2023 and its prafit, total comarehensive income, cash Fows arc the chanpes
in oouity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standaione firancial statemeants i accerdancs wita the Slendn-ds on
Aud.ting (S&s) specified under Section 143{10} of tho Acl. Our responsibilitios undor those sleulisds are
furtnor described in the Auditor’s Responsibitity for the Audit of the Standalone tiranoa statemionts
Seeron of our repert. We are indepesdent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Floivs sued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of indis {ICAIL logethor with the elkical reguirenents that ae
retevant 1o our audit of the ssandalone financial statements under the provisic:s of tre Act ond the Ruies
made thoereunder and we have fuifiled cur cihes ethical responsibilitios in accordance wits chese
requirements and the ICA:s Code of Ethics. We believe that The audit evidence obtained by us is sulficient
and aopropriate to provide o basis for our oginion,

Information Otherthanthe Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Repart thereon

The Company's Board of Directors arc responsbie for preparalion of the ather informatas Tne ather
infarmat:on compnses the infarmanaon ded i the deard’s Reoors and il annexsuigs, bul does nal
include the stancalone financiat stelemants and our guditos's report thareon

Our opinion on the standalone financal slalemants does nol cover the athe: information and we do not

oxpross any form of assuranco wpglﬁsit:ljw ~phereson,
\3-,,

\\J"‘
|\i

H-1, 109, Garg Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi-110034
1166/25. Circular Road, Near SB! Bank, Rohtak, Haryana-124001



fn connection with cur audit of the standalane linandal slatements, our responsihility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other informalion is materially inconsistont with The
standalone financial statements or our knowledge abtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, il we canduede Lhat tere s malerial russtaternent therein, wie are
required to communicate the malter Lo those charged with governance as required undern SA0 720 "The
Auditor's Responsibilitics Relaling to Othor imlormation’. W have nothing to reportin thes repard,

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone financial statements

The Company's Board of Dircctors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 1340 o' the At watn
respect to the preparation of these standalone linancial statements thal give 2 true and i iy of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash fiows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and the accounting principles generally accepted in
india. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and far preventing and detecting frauds
and ather irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
ind estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenarce of
adequate internal financial controls, that were opesaling effectively lor ensuring the accuracy aad
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ot the financiz
statemnent that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due Lo fraud o
error.

in preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Direclors are responsiblo for assessing the
Company's shility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable to the Company, mattars
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management aithor
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realislic alternative but to do so

The Board of Directors are also responsible for gverseaing the Company’s financial reparting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial slalements
as a whole are free from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's repori that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level ot assurance, but is
not o puarantee thal an audil conducled in accordanye with SAs will always delect a material
misctaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervar and are cansidercd malerial
if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably he expected to influence the cocenomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we oxercise protessional judgmenl and niantain
professional skepticivm throughout the: audil, Wi also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of Lhe standalone linancial stateraents,
whether due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive Lo those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The visk
of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting




framcerror, as Craud may involve collusion, fommery, sitentionl omesions, G, enatio s, 5
the averride ol internal connred,.

¢ Obtain an understanding ol interal financial conlrols refevant to e audil in Gracs to desige mudit
procedures that are appropriate in Uie reumslances. nder Section 143(3)1) of the: Act, e aee slsn
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Comparny hias adoguate inteees: finaacial
controls with reference 1o the slandalons financial Statcnent. i plane and e aomors:
effoctiveness of such controls.

+ [valuate the appropriateness o accounting policies used and the reasonablenen: of BLCOURLING
eslimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Direclors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the #oing concern nasis of
accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtained, whoether a moarerial uncertainty exists

¢

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubl on the Company’ amiiny o
continue as a going concern. If we condude that a material uncertainty exists, we sre recLises *o
draw attention in our auditor’s report Lo the related disclosures in the standaione :
statements or, if such disclosures arc inadequate, Lo modity our opinion. Qur conclusions are &
on the audit evidence obtained up to Lhe date of our audilor's report. Hawever, future cuon
conditions may cause the Company to coase to continue as a BOINg concorm.

= [Lvaluate the overall prosentation, structure and content of the standatone finano; BIETETLTS,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements reprosocnt ine
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planneg
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied wiih
refevant ecthical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them zli
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicabie to the Company, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maliers
that were of most significance in the audil of the standalone financial statements for Lhe firanciat
year ended March 31, 2023 and arc therefore the key audit matters. We describe those matiers in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or wiien, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be comnunicatea in oo repa
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the gubl
interest benefits of such communication.

ol
ic
Other Matters

We draw attention to Blote 43 to the standalone financial statements in which the Company describes the
uncertainties arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of Lhis matter.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditar’s Report} Order, 2020 {“tha Order”) issued y Hhe Cenia,
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure “A” & staiement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Lthe Order, to the extent aspiicable e tae Company.

As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our sudit, we repart that:

z) we have soupht and obtlamed all the information and exglanations which 1 the best of cur
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audiz;

&} inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Campany sc
far as it appears from our examination of those boaks;

¢} the Balance Sheet, the Staterment of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity deall with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account:

¢) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements tamply with the :ndian
Accounting Standards {Iind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable o the
Company;

2} on the basis af the written representations received from the directars and Laken

the Board of Directors, nonc of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 207

appointed as a director in terms of Section 16412} of the Acl:

unrocord by
2

from bemy

Fy with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis wit reference to those
standalone financial statements and the aperating etfectiveness of such controls. refor to our
separate Report in Annexure “B” to this renort;

g) with respect to the other matters te be included in the Auditar’s Repart under Section 197{16)
of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the company has not paid/ orovided any managerial remuneration
covered under Section 197 of the Act to its diractors during the year.

b} with respect to the ather matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accardance with Rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in ouwr opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 haviog ‘mpact
on its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts far
which there were any material foreseeahle losses,

iti. There was no amount which was required to be Lransferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023,

iv. 2} The management of the Company has represented thal, to the best of their knowlodoe

‘:.\Q/ T
-
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Wi,

and beiiefl, no funds {whick are matonial other individualiy or in 1w asgaienaie) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either fram the borrowed funds ar share promium o any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to ar in any persan or enbity 1aciuding foreian
entity {"intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall directiy or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entiios
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Corupany {"Ultmate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beohalf of the Ulimae
Beneficiaries.

(b} The Management of the Company has represented that, to the best of Lo knowledge
and belief, no funds {which are materiai either individually or in the aggrepats) have boen
received by the Company from any person or entity, including toreign entiny {rending
Party”} with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Comipany
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persens ar entitios identhicd inany mannet
whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Funding Party {“tJitimate Bencficiaries™) or provide any
Buarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ullimate Reneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures thal have boer considered reasonabie and OPRIORAte in
the circumstances, performed by us on the Company, nothing has come Lo cur notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-Clause L) ang () of Rule 11«
as provided under (a} and (b} above, contain any material misstatement,

The Company has not paid/proposed any dividend during/Tar the year.

The Campany, in respect of financial ycars commencing on or after 17 St 2022, hay
used such accounting sofiwace far maintaming its boaks of account which nas 1 ferture of
recording audit trail edit log) facilily and the same has been opcrated throuphoul the
year for all transactions recarded in the software and Lhe audit trail (eature nas not been
tampered with and the audit trail has been proserved by the company as por the
statutory requircmentis for record retention,

For PIM & Associates

Chartered Accountants .-

Firm Registration No.}i@é)
:““:/

Vikas Dua
Partner

Membership No. 535712

UDIN — w70t

New Delhi
June 26, 2023



Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” Sectien of our
report of even date to the members of Hindon Mercantile Limited on the Standzione fuiancial
statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023)

{i) (@} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars inciuding guanttauve
details and situation af Property, Piant and Equ:pment and relevant details of Rigint of Lse
assets. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intungible

as5ets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and Lquipmenl
(including Right of Use assets) have been physicaliy verified by the management at the end of
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. Having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature and ageing of the assets, in our gpinion, the poricdicily of
the physical verification is reasonable.

——

(c) The Company does not have immovable property {other than an immovable property where
Company is the lessee and the lease agroement is duly exccuted in favour of the Company)
Accordingly, the clause 3{i){c) of the Qrder is not agplicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according Lo the informatian and explanations given 1o us, Lie Company
has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Fquipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year.

{e; According to the infermation and explanations given Lo us and an tae bans of our exannation
of the recards of the Company, no groceedings have boen intiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i} {a) The Company does not have any inventary. Accordingly, the clause 3{iija} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given Lo us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital fimit in excess of Rs. 5 crore, in aggrepale lrom the banks & flinancial
institutions during the year against hypothecation of present and future recewables, cash
collateral of Rs. 25 fakhs and personal guarantec of directors. The  periodical
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks & institutions are in agrecment with
the boaks ol account ol the Comgany.

(it The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company having principal business to give loans
and male inveslments,

{a) the clause 3{ii){a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans/advances in the nature of loans,
prima facie, are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. There are no guarantees provided or

security given by the Company during the year.




()

(vi)

(vii)

(viiiy According to the informalion and explanalions given (o us and on the basis of

{c} In respect of the loans and advances in the nature of icans, the scocdule of resayment o
principal and payment ol interest has been stipulated and repayments 0 rocdidis Nave baen
regular as per stipulations except for loan accounts having outstanding balances aggregating
to Rs. 125.44 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 wherein the repayments of principal and
payments of interest are nat regular. Having regard to the nature af the Company's
business and the volume aof information involved, it is aot practicable to orovide an
itemised list of the irregutar cases.

{d] Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans pranted by the Company, the amount
outstanding in the accounts averdue for mare than 90 days as at March 31, 2023 aggregate 1o
Rs. 18.85 lakhs. tn our epinian and according to the infarmation and axplanations given to us,
reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue principal and
tnterest amaunt.

(@) The clause 3{ii}(e) of the Order is not applicable Lo the Company.

{f) According to the information and explanations given to us, tnve Company has wor grantod
during the year any loans or advances in the nalure of foans repayable an demand or withow
specifying any terms or peried of repayment.

In our apinien and according to the infermation and explanations given ta a3, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Acl with rospect of 1oans, mvestments,
guarantees and security, as applicable.

Inour opinion and according 1o the infermalion and rxplanations given to us, durag the yeas the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed (¢ be degosits from the
public on which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Lhe rules made Lhercunder are applicablo.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost rocords has nal
been specified by the Central Government under Sectian 148(1) of Lhe Acl for 1he Company.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us anc on 2 basis af Lhe
records examinad by us:

{a} The Company has generally been regutar in depositing undisputod statutary ducs mcludng
Goods and service tax, Provident Fund, £ mplayces’ State tnsurance, Incomo-tax, Cess and other
statutory dues applicable to the Company with (he apgrapriate authoritics. (here wore no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory ducs outstanding as al March 31, 2023 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) above, which have nat been de

posiied
by the Company on account of any dispute,

the records
examined by us, the Company daes not have any transactions not recorded in the sooks of account
but surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under the

Income Tax
Act, 1961,




%)

(xi)

(i}

{xiii)

Inour apinion and according to the information and cxplanations piven to us and on the hasis af the
records of the Campany cxamined by us,

{2]

(b}

{c}

{d)

(@)

{a)

(D)

(c}

In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, tt
Midhi Company. Accordingly, the clause 3(xii) of the Order is not appiicable Lo Lhe Comp

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

the Company has not defautted in repayment of loans or olher borrowings o2 in the payime
of interest thereon to any londer during the year;

the Company has not been declared willtul defaultor by any bank or financial mstitution o
cther lender;

the term loans woere applied by the Company durmg the year for the purpases fo wineh 1The
loans were obiamed

there are no transactions of funds raised by the Company on shorl term basis and utulized,
prima facie, for long term purpeses during the year;

the Company does not have any associate or joinl venture during the year. The Company has

not taken any funds from any entity or person an account of or to meet the obligations ot its
subsidiaries during the year.

the Company does not have any joint venture ar associate company during Lthe year. The

Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of the securities hold in its
subsidiaries.

in our opinion and according to the information and ecxplanations given o us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (ncluding debt

instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3{x}a) of the Order is nul apphcable
to the Company.

In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given Lo us, the Comparnty
has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Compeanios Act, 2013
in respect of the preferential alletment/private placement of shares during the year and the

funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised

To the best of cur knowledge and according ta the information and explanations given Lo us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticad or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no repart under Section 143(17) of
the Act has been filed by the audilors in farm ADT4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Compi
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

W0s

According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistleblower comp!
heen received by the Company during the yoar,

ainl has

12 Campany 5 not a
any

and on the basis of the

records examined by us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177

and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclose

d in the standalone financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.




ixiv)

{xv)

ixvl)

{al I oour apinen and based on o exameaton, e Company buesan leral ol e
commensurale with the size and natare ol s busioe.,

(b) During the course of our audit, we have considroed The teports ol e Tt Andior el
far the pericd under audil,

In our apinion and according Lo the information and cxplanations given (o s and on e e ol e
records exarmined by us, (he Campany has ol enlered infe any non cash Tronedasbone walhor,
directors or persons cannecled wilh thom doring the year

{a) According 1o the information and expianalions piven Toows, the Commppany il Gy e
registered under Section 45 1A of the Beserve Banle ol india Act, 19300 e epedeatmn e
been obtained by the Company.

(1) According tc the information and cxplanations pivea 1o us, the Conpeny bues avalied Ceriilse
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India au pee the Besorye Bank gl india pcg 1104
to conduct the Nan-Baniktng financial aclivitios,

o) According to the information and cxplanations given 1o, the Company 1oonnl o tone
Investment Company {C1C) as defined in the repulations made by The Reserve Banleal b

(dy According to the information and explnalions given to us, there s oo Cone Invedlinesl
Company within the Group.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash lasses in the linancial year under andi and i the wnmediately

preceding financial year.

{xviii] There has been resignation of the statulory auditor during e year and as informed and vaplamed

to us, the outgoing auditor has not raised any issue, abjoction or coneern,

xix} According to the information and explanations given (o us and an Lhe basis of reamination of the
}

financial ratins, ageing and expected dates of realization of linancial assets and payment of finanonl
liahilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial slatements and our lonowded;re
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our cxarnination of thi- oyidenre
supporting the assumptions, ncthing has come 16 our atiention, which causes us Lo beheve That any
material uncertainty exists as an the date of the audil repor! indicating that Company in not capable
of meeting its iiabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall doe within
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurinee a4
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reperting is based on the facly up Lo
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantec nor any assurance thal all habililes,
falling due within the period of on¢ year from Lhe balance sheel date, will gol divcharped by the
Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinfon and according te the information and cxplanations given Lo us, the Comipany was not
required to spend any ameunt on Corporate Social Responsibilivy (CSR) related aclivities during Lhe
year under review in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act. Accardingly, Ui cliusn 3(xx)
af the Order is not applicable to the Company.




{(xxt] Reperting under the ciause 3(xxi}) of the Order is not

statements,

For PIM & Assacgiates

Charterad Acccunla/r;{ :.\J_E‘N
Firm Registration l\)m,e 9582“&\;

L

Partner S
Membersth Na, 53; 12
UOIN - ° )

New Delhi
June 26, 2023
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’'s Report

{Referred Lo in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Reguiremaents” Sectun of cur ronoi

N 1 1 . 23 | 0o I ',l- bl
of even dale Lo the members of Hinden Mercantile Limited on the Standelane financial slatemaents for the
year ended March 31, 2023)

Repart on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting under Clause (i} of Sub- Section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls Over financial reporling of Hindon Mercantile Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statemoents of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is respansible for eslablishing and maintaining internal financial controi
based on the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considernng the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internsl Fnancia:
Controls Qver Financial Reporting {‘the Guidance Nole') issucd by the Institute of Chartercd Accountants
of India {"the {CAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and mamnienance of
adequate internal financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficicnt
canduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its asscls, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsihility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audil. We conducted aur audil in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143[10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements ang plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone linancial
statements was established and maintsined and if such controls operated cHectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the mternal
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financisl
controls aver financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial corntrols,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether duc to fraud or error.

We believe thal the audil evidence we have abtained js sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal linancial controls sysiem over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is 4 process designed Lo nrovide regsorabic
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatian of siards one fnanaial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accegted accouni ng ponap:
company’s internal financial controls over financial reparting includes those pelicies and grocggures that
(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fziriy reflect the
ransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonabie  assurance  that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financiai statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and exponditaios of the
company are being made only in accordance with suthorisat-ons of management and drecars of the
company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or Umcly detechion ¢ unadtno sed
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assois that could have a maters' offec
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financizl Reporting

A

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls aver financial reporting, inciuding the
passibility of collusion or improper management overnide of cenlrols, material misstatements gue ta error
or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections ol any evalualion of the internal hinancial
controls aver financial reparting to Tuture pariods are subjoct ta the nsk that dhe mternai financal ontron
over financial reporting may become inadequate hocause of changes in cenditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate or lor other reascns,

Opinion

In our gpinion, to the best of our infoermation and according Lo the cxpianatons geen Lo oo e Compary
has, in all material respects, an adequate nternal financal controls system over Lnar reporbing andg
such internal financial contrals over fingncial reporting were operating cffccliveny as wi “darcin 3%, 20273,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consdenng Lac
essential companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issucd by the 1CAL

For PJIM & Associates

Chartered Accountants /gn/- ”‘-”‘

Firm Registration No. O?}}S

o

Vikas Dua
Partner
Membcrsmp No. 535712
UDIN ==

\

New Dethi
June 25, 2023



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN; U34300D1.1985PLC021 785
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
. As 3t As at
S:a- Particulars Nare No. March31, 2023 Masch 31, 2022
ASSETS
I Financial Assets
a) Cashand cash equivalents q 1,426.58 179.44
b}  Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 5 1,021.50 100.00
¢} Receivables
-Trade Receivables [ 34.73 117.77
d) Lloans 7 3,151.91 40,794.31
e} Investments ] 7.471.47 7.132.4%
i Dther financlal assets 9 104.33 £09.51
Total Financial assets 13,210,592 48,933.52
Il Maon-Financial Assets
a) Deferred tax assets {net] in 90.66 50.14
bl  Property, plant & equipment it 20.94 24.15
¢} Right of use assets 11 49,84 83.06
d)  Intangible assets under development 12 95.76 147.15
e} Other Intangible assets 11 1,61 4,05
fi  Other non-financial assets 12 408.75 408.30
Total Non-financial assets 66857 757.84
Tota! Assels 13,879.49 A9,691.36
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Nl  Finandal Liahifities
a) Payables
-Trade payables
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
i) Tota! autstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises and
small enterprises
b} Borrawings (other than Debt Securities) 14 4,080.27 10,272.46
t] Subardinated Debts 15 - 30,000.00
d}  Other financial liabilitias 16 A62.26 2424 85
Total Firanceial Liabilities 4,552.53 42,697.31
IV Non-Financial Liabilities
a) Current tax llabilities {net) 17 5.63 -
b] Provisions 18 291 1198
¢} Deferred tax labilities (net) 10 - -
d) Other non-financizal tiabilities 19 106.62 10.34
Total Non-firancial liabilities 115.16 11.53
EQUITY
v Equity
3) Equity share capital 20 1,479.76 1,279.25
bl  Other equity 21 7.732.54 5,703.26
Total Equity 9,211.80 6,982.52
Total Liabilities and Equity 13,875.4% 49,691.36
Significant Accounting Polities and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-47
As per our repert of even date attached
For PJM & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIHECTORS
Chartered Accountants -
Firm Repistration No; 923582N
t
Vikas Dua .
Partner . D\M/ : “
Membership No. 535712 alvi Jawa yank Pratap Singh Luv Khanna
Place : Dethi Chief Financial Officer Company Seceetary ng Girector Director
Date :June 26, 2023 M. No. 528236 M. No, Ad6EE6 101716987 DIN: 07723426




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300DLIS85PILC0O21785
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3%, 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs}
s.No. Particulars Note No. For the Year Ended Far the Year Ended
March 31, 20232 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operatians
(1) Interest incorne 22 7,621.12 7.552.25
{lI} Fee and comraission income 23 13,72 154.70
1 Totzl Revenue from operations 7,634.84 7.716.95
I Otherincome 24 380.08 382.06
Hl - Total Income {i+11) 8,014.92 $,129.01
Expenses
{i} Finance costs 25 4,125.49 4,302.90
{l) Fees and commission expense 26 236397 1,283.01
{iii} Impalrment of Anancial Instisments 27 - 232483
[iv) Employee benefits expenses 28 442.65 53137
{v} Depredation and amortization 11 5271 28.90
{vi) Other expenses 29 £24.39 57190
IV Total Expenses 7,610.21 7,451.01
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax {111V} 404.71 678.00
Vi Exceptionafitems - -
Wi Profit before tax {V-\1) 404.71 678.00
¥ill Taxexpense iz
1) Current tax 111.78 112.17
2} Tax related to earlier year 63,81 {22.52)
3} Daferred tax {0.52) {105.79)
Total Tax Expenses 175.07 {15.14}
X} Profit/ [loss) for the geriod {VII-VIn}
X} Profit/ (loss) from discontinuing operations
X} Tax expense of discontTnued oparations
XH}  Profit/ [loss) from discontinued eperations [after
X  Profit for the year (VII-ViN) 229.64 693.1%
X Dther Comprehensive Income
A} I} Items that will not be reclassified te profit or loss {0.25) 0.55
i} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 32 .07 (0.14}
Sub Total A} (0.18) 041
B ) Items that wili be reclassifled to profit or loss - -
Ti} Income tax relating to items that will be - -
5ub Total B} - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) {D.18) 0.41
Xl Total Comprehensive Income far the year {IX4X} 220.46 £693.55
Kl Eacnings per Equity Share {Face value Rs. 10)
Basic {Rs.) 38 1.76 5.95
DHuted {Rs.} 38 1.76 5.35
Significant Accounting Policles and Notes farming part of the Financial Statements 1-47
Az per cur report of even date attached
For PIM & Associates
Charterad Accauntants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE EQARD OF DIRECTORS
Firm Registration No. 0295§3_N o
: __ o] '
Vikas Dua e D225E2N O\“"” / b( -
Partner Coe
Membership No. 535712 T nvi Jawa yank Pratap Singh Luv Khanna
Place : Delhi 3 Chief Financtal Officer Company Secretary Directar
Date : June 26, 2023 M. No, 528234 M. No, AdGEEE DIN: 07723426




HINDON MERCANTILE LIVITED
CIN U34300D1L1985PLCO21785
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 404.71 &78.00
Adjustment for
Interest expenses on fease liabilities 65.44 4.16
Depreciation and amortization 5271 28.50
Impairmant on financal [nstrumeants (30252} 232.53
{Gain)/1oss on sale of fixed assets 4.91 -
Dividend ncorme {26.19) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 134.06 943,99
(Increase)/decrease in trede feceivables 83.04 (86.91}
(Increase}/decrease tn Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents {921.50) [100.00}
{Increase)/decrease tn [oans {net) 3795052 [5,434.41)
Increasa/(decraase) in financlal jiabllitias (2,017.36} 176.27
Increase/{decrease} in provisions 147 107
Intrease/{decrease) in other non-financial lizbilities 96.28 [127.38)
{Increase)/decrease in other non-finandal assets 0.54 {172.66)
(increase}/decrease in other finandal assets 505.18 {56.88)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 35,832.63 {4,856.89)
Direct tax paid {net) {175.59) [122.98)
Net cash generated fram/f{used in) operating activities (A} 35,652.01 (4,969.87}
Cash flow from lnvesting activities
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries (338.98) (7.122.49)
Purehnse of property, plant & equipment [15.86) {14.87)
Sale of property, plant & equipment 0.58 -
Purchase of intangible assets under develapment 50,39 [142.15)
Purchase of intangible assets - (4.10)
Gividend Incoma 26.19 -
Net cash generated from/(used In} investing activities (B} {281.38) {7,288.61)
Cash flow from finanting activities
Proceeds from Borrowings {other than debt securities) 26,434.76 18,423,711
fepayment of Borrowings (other than debt securities) {32,556.95) (9,210.02}
Repayment of Subordinated Debts (30,000.00) -
Procaeds from equity share capital 2000.00 2,099.59
Payment of lease labilities {5.30} {17.34)
Het cash generated from/(used in] financing activities (C) {34,128.49) 1,195.74
Net increase/[decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+} 1247.17 (962174}
Cosh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 179.44 1,142.17
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,425.61 179.43
Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 173 55.73
Balanges with banks

- 0N current accounks 1,424.53 83.72
Digital Wallets 0.72 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,426.98 179.44
Note: Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set ot in the Ind AS 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows™.
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of tha Finandial Statements 1.a7
As par our report of even date attached
For PIM & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OOF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chartered Accountants . . )
Firmn Registration Nd, n};"zg {:\\%

K T 3

Vikas Dua a,
Partner s \.“ . » }.‘:2(‘; f) GW’"/
Membership Ne. 535712 7~ s Tarw Jawa Mayank Pratap Singh Luv Khanna
Place : Dalhi : = Chief Financlal Officer Company Secretary Director
Date : lune 25, 2023 M, No. 528236 M. No. AMB60H DIN: 07723426




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: E3430001.2985PLL021785

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each issued, subscribed and fully pait-up
Particulars Number Amount
As at April 01, 2021 1,12,20,925 1,122.09
Add : Issued turing the year 15,751,709 15717
As at March 31, 2022 1,27.52 634 1,279.26
Add : tssued during the year 20,00,000 200,090
As at March 31, 2023 1,47,92,634 1,479.26
B. OQTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplys Gther [tems of
Partirulars Reserve Fund ufs 45-  Securities Retained Eamings Impairment Reserve Other Total
I€ uf RBI Act, 1934 Premium Comprehensive
Balance as at April 01, 2021 256.88 1,504.04 73791 073 - 243955
Equity Shares issued during the year - 2,510,415 - - - 251015
Profit for the year - - 9314 - 593.14
Transfer from Aetalned Earnings 138.63 . . 13863
Transfer {¢ Impairmant Reserve - (128.63) - (138.63)
Transfer to Reserve Fund . - - - 041 0.4
Balance as at March 31, 2022 385,51 4,(H4.19 1,292.42 073 0.41 5,703.26
Equity Shares [ssued during the year - 1,800.00 - - - 1,800.00
Profit for the year - - 21946 - - 249,45
Transfer from Retained Eamings 80.94 - - - 20.99
Transfer ta Reserve Fund - - (80.58) - . {80.94)
Remeasurernent of the defined benafits plan {nar) - - - - (0.18) tIJ-1§_}_
Balance as at March 31, 2023 476,45 5,814.19 1,440.84 0.73 0.23 7,732.54
Significant Arcounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Finandal Statements 147
As perour report of even date attached
For MM & Assoclates FOR AND ON BERALF OF THE BOARD GF EMRECYORS
| oo
m‘\l\y’ e ﬁ/ -
Tarvi Javn Mayank Pratap Singh Luv Khanna
Place - Dafft Chlef Financlal Officer  Company Secretary M racter Directar
Date :fune 2§, 2023 M. Ho, 528236 M. No. 46666 101716587 DIN: 07723426




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN U34300DL1985PLCO21785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

2.1

22

23

Corporate information

Hindon Mercantile Limited ('the Company’] is a Public Limited Company incarporated under the provisions of the Companles
Act, 1956 with its registered office in Delhi ta carry on the business of a Non-Public Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance
Company in India. The Company is registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Cempany holds
a valid Certificate of Registration {CcR) from the Reserve Bank of India. The registered office of the company is located at 201,
2™ Floor, Best Sky Tower, Plot No. F-5, Netaji Subhash Place, North West Delhi-110034. The Company is engaged in the
buslness of Financing activities.

Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies
Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in
the format prescribed in the Division IIl of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows
has been prepared and presented as per the reguirements of ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The Balance Sheet,
Staternent of Profit and Loss, Staternent of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity are together referved as the
financial statements of the Company.

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 under Section 133 of the Act and refevant amendment rules issued thereafter [“Ind AS”).

The financial statements are prepared and presented on going concern basis and the relevant pravisions of the Act and the
guidelines and directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India {RB!} ar any other authority, to the extent applicable.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indizn Rupees in fakhs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by
Schedule Hl to the Act, Per share data is presented in Indian Rupee 1o two decimal places. The Company presants its Balance
Sheet in the order of liquidity.

Accounting policies are consistently applied except where a newly-issued Ind AS initially adopted or a revision to an existing
Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy.

Functignal and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {fs.) which is the funclional and presentation currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measuvrernent

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial instrument that are
measured at fair values,

A historlcal cost is a measure of value used for accounting in which the price of an asset on the balance sheet is based on its
historical cost, it is generally tair value of cansideration given in exchange for goods and services at the time of transaction or
ariginal cost when acquired by the Company.

Fair value is the price that is likely to be received on sell of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the measurerment date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation tecknigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or lability that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset ar Eability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116: Leases.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into fair valua hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are cbservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are describad as follows:

Level 1 quoted prices {(unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or Fabilities that the Company can access on
measurernent date;

Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are cbservable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 where unobservable Inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabillties,




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN U34300001985P1LC021785
ROTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

2.4 Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with indian Accaunting Standards {"Ind A5”) requiresthe rmanagement
1o make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimatas, judgements and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and llabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the
date of the financiat statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Revisins to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and
the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known/materialise, Some of the areas involving
significant estimation/{udgement are determination of Expected Credit Loss, fair valuation of investments, Income taxes and
employee benefits.

2.5 Significant Accounting Pollcles
251 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certsinty of its recovery.

2511 Interest

Interest income on financial instruments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the effective interest rate (“EIR"} applicable.

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the  expected life of
the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a sharter pericd, to the net carrying amount. The future cash flows are
estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The caleulation of EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly
attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction ¢osts, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets
measured at fair valie through profit and loss {“FYTPL™), transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
at initial recognitian.

Interest income/expenses is calculated by applying the EIR ta gross carrying ampunt of non-credit impaired financial
assets/liabilities (fi.e. at the amortised cost of financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the EiR to amortised cost of the credit-impaired
financial assets (i.e. the gross camying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses).

2512 Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to recelve dividend Is established.

2513 Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The Company recognises the fee
and commission income in accordance with the terms of relevant contractsfagreements and when it is probable that the
Company will callect the consideration.

2.5.1.4 Other Income
Qther Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when the right to
receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

2.5.2 Financial Instruments

25.21 Fair Valuation of Investments
Some of the Company’s Investments are measured at fair value. In determining the fair value of such investments, the Company

uses quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or based on inputs which are observable either directly
or indlrectly. However, in certain cases, the Company adopts valuation technigues and inputs which are not based on market




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CiN U34300DL1985PLCO21785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

data, When Masket observable information is not available, the Company has apptied appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the valuation madel.

2522 Recognition and Initial Measurement

All financial assets and liabilittes, with the exception of foans and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company becomas a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Loans are recognised when fund transfer Is initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to the customer. The Company
racognises borrowings {other thar debt securities) when funds are received by the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Wabilities {other than financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at FYTPL) are added to or deducted fram the falr value of the financial assets or financial Fabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition., Transaction costs and revenues are directly attributable to the acquisition of finzncial assets or
financial liabifities measured at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of arofit and [oss.

25.23 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets and Llabllities
25231 Financial Assets

The Company classifies and measures all its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the
asset’s contractual terms, elther at:

- Amaortised cost

- Fair Value through other comprehensive income

- Fair Value through Profit and Loss

2.5.2.3.1.1 Amortised Cost

The Company classifies and measures cash and bank bazlances, loans, trade receivables, certain debt investments and
cther financial assets at amortised cost if the following condition is met:

Financial Assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect the
cantractual cash flows, and that have contractuzl cash flows that are SPPI.

2.52.3.1.2 Fair Value through Other Comprehensive income {“FVvTOCI")

The Company classifies and measures certain debt instruments at FYTOCE when the investrnents are held within a busfness
modg), the objective of which is achieved by both, collecting contractual cash flows and sefling the financizl instrurments and the
contractual terms of the financial instruments meet the Solely Payment of Princlpal and Interest on principal amount
outstanding {"SPPY) test,

The Company measures all eguity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the investments is not for trading
and the Company's management has elected te classify wrevecably some of its equity instruments at FVIQCI, when such
instruments meet the definition of Equity under ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading,
Surh classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

252313 Foir Value through Profit and Loss {"FVTPL"}

Financial assets at FVTPL are:
- assets with contractual cash flaws that are not SPPI; and/for
- assets that are held in a business model ather than held ta collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and sell; or
- assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assels are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

2524 Evaluatian of Bysiness Model

Classification and measurament of financial instruments depends on the results of the Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI”) and the business model test {refer note 2.5.2.4.1), The Company
determines the busingss model at a level that reflects how the Company's financial instruments are managed together to
ieve a particular business objective.

i)




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN U34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

The Company maniters financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with
the ohjective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is partof the Company’s continuous assessment of
whether the busiress model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those
instruments.

25241 Business Model Test

An assessment of business medel for managing financial assets is fundamenta to the classification of a financial asset. The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. The Coempany's business model does not depend en management’s intentions For an individual
instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed at 2 higher Jevel of aggregation rather than on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Company considers all relevant information and evidence available when making the business model assessment such
as:

. how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business modal are evaluated and
reported to the Company’s key management personmel;

. the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that business modef) and, in
particular, the way In which those risks are managed; and

» how managers of the business are compensated (e.g, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or an the contractual cash flows collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part of an existing
business model or whather they reflect a new business modg!. The Company reassesses it's business medel at each reporting
period to determine whether the business model has changed since thepreceding period. For the current and prior reporting
period the Company has not identified a change In its business modal.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (“SPP{"} on the principal amount outstanding

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVOLI, its contractuat terms should give rise to cash flows
that meat 5P| test,

For the purpase of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may
change over the life of the financial asset {e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists af consideration for the
time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount cutstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

Contractual termis that intreduce exposure to risks ar volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelatedto a basiclending
arrangement, such as exposure ta changes in equity prices or commadity prices, do not give rise to comtractual cash flows that
are 5PPL, such as financial assets are either classified as fair value through prefit & itoss account or fair value threugh other
comprehensive Income.

252411 Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses
Financial Assets ot Amortised Cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Debt instrument at FVOC!
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are recognlsed 1n statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement is recognised in OCl and on derecognition the cumulative gain

or loss recognised in OCI will be recycled to statement af profit and loss.

Equity Instrument at FVYOC!




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN U32300D11985P1LC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

Gains and losses on equity instruments measured at FYacC) are recognised in other comprehensive income and never
recycled to the statement of profit and loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when the right to
receive payment has been established, except when the Campany benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of whole or part
of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FYOC! are fair valued at
each reporting date and not subject to an Impairment assessment,

Financin! Assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Not gain or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in the statement of profit and lass.

252412 Reclassifications

If the business mode! under which the Company helds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified.
The ¢lassification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of tha first
reporting period following the change in business model that resultin reclassifying the Company’s financial assets.

25242 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
2.5.24.2.1 Classification as Debt or Equity

Pebt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabillties or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement,

A financizl liability i a contractuat obligation to deliver cash or another financia! asset or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially uafavourable to the Company or a contract that
wilf or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company is or
may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that wifi
or may be settled other than by theexchange of a fixed amount of cash {or another financial asset} for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments.

2.5.2.4.2.2 Equity Instruments

An equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deductingall of its tiabHities.
Equity Instruments issued by the Company are recopnised at the face value and proceeds received in excess of the face value
are recognised as Securities Pramiam.

252423 Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses

Financlal liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense is
recognised in statement of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

2.525 Impairment and Write-off

The Company recognises loss allowances far Expected Credit Losses on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FYTPL:

- Loans and advances to customers;
—  Other financial assets;
- Loan commitments

Equity instruments are measured at fair value and not subject to impairment loss.

ECL is requiced to bie measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

. 12-month ECL, i.e,, loss allowance on default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date, {referred to as Stege 1); or

*  lfetime ECL, ie. lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument,
ireferred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3}

A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrament if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. For afi other financial instruments, ECL is measured at an amaunt equal to the 12-month
ECL.




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
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The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting period whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recagnition by considering the change In the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stege 2, and Stage 3 as described belpw:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an aliowance based on 12 months ECL. Stage 1 loans aiso
inclirde facilities where the credit risk has im proved and the [oan has been reclassified from 5tage 2 to Stage 1.

Stage 2: Whan 2 loan has shown a significant increase in eredit risk since origination, the Company records an allewance for
the life time expected credit losses. Stage 2 loans also include facifities, where the credit risk has improved and the toan has
been reclassified from Stage 3 to Stage 2,

Stage 3: When Ioans are considered credit-impaired, the Campany records an allowance for the lifetime expected credit
losses.

For financial assets for which the Cempany has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding
amount or a praportion thereof, the gross carrying amaunt of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial}
derecognition of the financial asset.

2526 Determination of Expected Credit Loss {"ECL")
The measurement of impairment tosses {ECL) across all categaries of financial assets requires judgement.

In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows based on Company’s historical experience and
collateral values when determining impairment losses along with the assessment of a slgnificant Increase in credit risk, These
estimates are driven by a number of factars, changes in which can result in different levels of affowances.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:
. Bifurcation of the financial assets into different portfolios when ECL 1s assessed on 2 collective basis.
= Company's criteriz for assessing if there has been a significant increase in eredit risk.
- Development of ECL models, including cholce of inputs / assumptons used.

The various inputs used and the process followed by the Company in the measurement of ECL has been detailed below.

2.5.2.61 Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Company calculates ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approximation to the partfolio. A cash shortfall is a difference between the cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,

When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment
that will be drawn down aver its expected life. The £CL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash
flows if the loan is drawn down, The expected cash shortfalls are discountedat an approximatior to the Interest rate on the
lpan.

The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or o a collective basis for partfelios of loans that share similar economic
fisk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows
using the asset’s original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured o an individual basis of a callective basis.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlingd betow and the key elements are, as follows:

Exposure at Default (EAD) is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. For a revolving
commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance pius any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the
current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Probabillty of Default {PD) represeats the likelihood of a borrower defauiting an its financial obligation {as per “Definition of
default and credit-impaired”) either over the next 12 months {12 months PO, or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of
the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by
type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collaterat ar other credit suppgrt-
Q’Q.G AN 7;?6‘
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Forward-looking etonomic infermation {including management overlay] is included In determining the 12-manth and lifetime
PO, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongeing basis.

25262 Significont Increase In Credit Risk

The Company manitors all financial assets, including loan commitments contracts issued that are subject to impairment
requirements, to assess whether there has bean @ significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, If there has been
a significant increase in credit risk the Company measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.
The Company manitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to
impairment for a significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recagnition, the Company
compares the risk of a defavlt accurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of
the instrument with the risk of a default accurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reparting
date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company censiders both quantitative
and quatitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience that is available without
undue cost or effort.

The quantitative factors that indicate a significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD models on a timely basis. However,
the Company stél considers separately some qualitative factors to assess if credit risk has increased significantly. For corporate
lending, there is a particular focus on assets that are incfuded an a “watchlist”. Given an exposure is on a watch list once, there ls
a concera that the credit worthiness of the specific counterparty has detericrated. ECL assessment for watch list accaunts is
done on a case-by-case approach after considaring the probabillty of weighted average in a different recovery scenario. For
individual loans the Company considers the expectation of forbearance, payment holldays, and events such as unamployment,
hankruptey, divorce, or death,

Given that 2 significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a retative measure, a given change, in absolute terms, in
the PD 1s more significant for a financial instrument with a lower inftial D than campared to a financial instrument with a
higher PD.

As a back-stop when a financial asset becomes past duebut not Stage 3; the Company considers that a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred and the asset is classified in stage 2 of the impsirment model, i.e., the loss allowance is measured as
the lifetime £C1.

25253 Credit-trmpaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or mare events that have a detrirmental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-
impairment includes observable data about the following events:

* significant firancial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

= a breach of ¢contract such as a default or past due event;

. restructuring of foans due to financial difficuity of the borrowers;

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

. the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

it may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. instead the combined effect of several events may have caused
financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt instruments that are financial sssets
measured at amortised cost are credit-Impaired at each reporting date. To assess if corporate debt instruments are credit
irmpaired, the Company considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funds.

A loan s considered credit-impaired when a concessian is granted to the borrower due to deterioration in the borrower's
financial condition. The definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stopif amounts are overdue for
more than 90 days,

25264 Definition of Defoult

The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the foss allowance is
based on 12-month or lifetime ECL.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:
» _the borrower is past due more than 90 days + Accounts Identified by the Company as NPA ac per regulatory guidelines
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+ Objective Evidence for impairment {Qualitative Overlay); or
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit abligations to the Company.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into account both qualitative and
quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example In corporate lending a
qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not as relevant for individual lending. Quantitative indicatars,
such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligationof the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis.

2.5.2.6.5 Write-off

Loans are written off when the Campany has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset {either in its
entirety or a partion of 1t}. This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows Lo repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event, The Company mayapply enforcement activities to financial assets written off/ may assign/
sell loan exposure to ARC / Bank / a financial institution for a negotiated consideration. Recoverles resulting from the
Company's enforcementactivities cauld result in impairment gains.

2.5.2.7 Muodification and Derecognition of Financial Assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are
renegotiated or otherwlse modified between the Initfal recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the
amount andfor timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at 3 future date. In addition, the introduction or
adjustment of existing cavenants of an existing loan would canstitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants
do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not
met (e.g. 2 change to the increase inthe interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in finandial difficulty to maximize collection and minimize the risk of default. Loan
forhearance is granted in cases where aithough the borrower made all reasonable effortsto pay under the original contractual
terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing
of the cash fiows of the [oan {principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due {principal and
interest forgiveness} and amendments to covenants.

When a financial asset is modified the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition, in accordance with
the Company’s policy, a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To datermine
if the medified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company considers the following:

Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after medification, are na fonger SPPI, change in currency or change of
counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants, if these do not clearly indicate a substantial
modification, then; a quantitative assessment is performed to compare the presant value of the remaining contractual cash
flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts discounted at the
original EIR. If there is a significant difference in present value, the Company deems the arrangement substantially different,
leading to derecognition.

th the case where the financial asset is derecognised the foss allowanees for ECL is rameasured at the date of derecognition
to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrylng amount and the
fair value of the new financial asset with the revised terms may lead to a gainor loss on derecognition. The new financtal asset
may have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL except where the new loan is considered to be originated-
credit impaired. This applies only i the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a3 significant discount to its
revised par amount because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Company
monitors the credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating guatitative and quantitative information, such as If the
horrower is in past due status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the
Company deterrines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

*  The remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms;
. The remaining lifetime FD at the reparting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified, where modification does not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Company's
ahility to coffect the modified cash Hows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of similar forbearance
attion, as well as various behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance against the modified
contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition, the loss
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dllowance is continued to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Ioss allowance on farborne loans is gonerally
measured based an 12-menth ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following
modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecagnition, the Company calculates the modification gain/loss comparing the gross
carrying amount before and after the modification {excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measures ECLfor the
modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the
expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset's cash flows expire (including expiry
arising fram a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financiat asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantiatly
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to cantrol the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interast in the asset and an associated fiability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company cantinues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carying amount and the sum of the
conslderation received and receivable and the cumulative gainfioss that had been recognized in OCI and accumulated in
equity is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, with the exception of equity investment deslgnated as measured at
FvOCI, where the curnulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI isnot subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss.

On derecagnition of a firancial asset ether than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase
part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amaeunt of the financial asset between the part 1t
continues to recogaise under continuing invoivement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received far the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain/loss aliocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. A cumulative
gainfloss that had been recognised in OCl is allocated between the part that continues to be recogrised and the part thatis
no longer retognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This daes not apply for eguity investments
designated as measured at FYOC, as the cumulative gainfloss previously recognised in QCl is nok subsequently reclassified to
the statement of profit and loss.

2.5.28 Ceracagnition of Financial Labllities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecogrised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.5.3 Investment in subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures

Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any provision for impairment.

investments are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable

2.5.4 Property, Plant and Equipment {“PPE"}
PPE held for use are stated In the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses,

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item is expected to flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured seliably. PPE is stated af original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any,
less accumutated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are
specifically attributable to acquisition of PPE are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnised upan disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirementof an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.5.5 lntangible Assets
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Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future ecoromic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of the assat can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost nat of
tax/duty credits avaited, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulstive impairment. Administrative and other general
overhzad expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of
the cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets under
development”.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference Between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

2.5.6 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress includes assets not ready for the intended use and is carried at cost, comprising direct cost and
related incidental expenses.

2.5.7 Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation is recognised using written down value method 50 as to write off the cast of the assets less their residval values
over their estimated useful lives specified in Schedule (I to the Act. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year
end to reflect expacted pattern of tonsumption of the future economic benefits embadied in the asset, The estimated useful
life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change In the astimates of useful
lifafresidual value is recognised an prospective basis.

Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro ratz to the period of use.

The useful life of the property, plant, equipment and Intangible Assets held by the Company is as follows:

Class of Assets Usefut Life
Computer 3 years
Vehiclas 10 years
Office Equipments S years
Furniture B Fixtures 10 years
Website 3 years
Computer Software 2 yaars

Intangibfe assets with finite useful ives are amortised on written down value basis over the estimated useful life. The method
of amartisation and usefu! life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying
amount annually and whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

2.5.8 Impairment of Assets other than Financial Instruments
As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the
PPE and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairmant loss, if any.

2.5.9 Employee Benefits
Shart term Employee Benefits:
Employee benefits falling due within twelve months of rendering the service are ¢lassified as short term employee benefits
and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-
tertn employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the

related service,

Defined Contnbution Plans:
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Contributions to defined contribition schemes such as employees’ state insurance, employee provident fund and employee
pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution is made to a government administered fund
and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution
Schemes a5 the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Post-employment Benefits:

The Company operates defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity and compensated absence, The liability or asset
recognised in the batance sheet in respect of its defined benefit plans Is the prasent value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annvaliy by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method, The present value of the said obtigation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash out fiows,
using market yields of government bonds that have tenure approximating the tenures of the refated lability. The interast
expenses are calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The net Interest expense on
the aat defined benefit liability or asset is recognised in the Staterent of Profit and loss. Remeasurement gains and losses
arising from experieace adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oceur,
directly in other items of other comprahensive income. Thay are included in Other Equity in the Statement of Changes in
Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation resulting from plan
amendments of curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

2.5.10 Leases

{i
(i
(iii}

The Company as Lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses whether a cantract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for censideration. Ta assess whather a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

the contract involves the use of an identified asset
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset ihrough the period of the lease and
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {"ROU") and a correspanding
lease liability far all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
end lease liabilitias incfudes these aptions when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initfally recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the fease ifabllityadjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease pls any initial direct costs less any lease incentives,
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreclation and impalrment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the laase term
and useful lifa of the underlying asset.

The lease Hability is initially measured at 2maortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease paymants
are discounted using the interest rate implicit In the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates
in the country of domicile of these Jleases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a correspending adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Company thanges its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination optian.

Lease Nability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paysments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

2511 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2512 Dividends on Equity Shares

Cash comprises of eash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term deposits with banks (with
an original matyrity of three months or less from the date of pfacement) and cheques on hand. Short term and liquid
investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not inctuded as part of cash and cash
equlvalents.
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The Company recognises a liability te make cash distributions to equity sharehalders of the Company when the dividend is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company and a corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity. As per the corporate laws in India, an interim dividend is autharised when it is approved by the Bosrd of
Directors and final dividend Is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders.

2.5.13  Securities Premium Account

Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It cen he used to issue bonus shares, to provide for
premium on redemption of shares and issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments.

2.5.14 Finance Costs

Finance costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial instruments and borrowings is measured
at amortised cost, amortization of anciltary costs Incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency boreawings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cast.

2.5.15  Foreign Currencies

{i} Functional currency of the Company and foreign eperations has been determined based on the primary econemic
environment in which the Company and its foreign cperations operate considering the currency in which funds are
generated, spent and retained,

(i) Transactions in currencles other than the Company's functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using the
exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reparted at the rates
prevailing at the year-end. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in forelgn currency are not
retransiated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary itemns at each Balance Sheet
date at the closing spotrate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

2516 Segments

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chlef
Cperating Decision making body in tha Company to make dacisions for performance assessment and resource allocation.
Dperating Segment are reported in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to accounting policies are in line
with the interaal reporting provided to the Chief Qperating Decision maker.

2.5.17 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or lass attributable te ordinary equity halders by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted @amings per share is computed using the weighted average number of
shares and dilutive patential shares, except where the result would be anti- dilutive,

2,518 Taxes on income

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is in India. Significant judzements are involvad in determining the provision for income taxeas,
inchuding amount expected to be paid/recovered for certain tax pasitions.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
except when they relate to items that are recognized outside statement of profit and loss {whether in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity), In which case tax is also recognized outside statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respactive tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards, Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probabfe that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and depreciation carry-forwards could be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assetto be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date, and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are measured based enthe tax rates that are expected to apply in the period whan the asset s
realized or the Kability is settled, hased on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax assets and liabifities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax fiabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends ta
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on 3 net basis.

The Company provides for current tax Fiabllities at the best estimate that Is expected to be paid to the tax authorities whera
an cutflow is probable.

1519  Goods and Services Tax Input Credit

Goods and Services tax input credit is recognised in the books of accaunt in the period in which the supply of goods or
service received is recognised and when there is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits.

2520 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Centingent Assets
{a)  Provisions are recognised only when:

(i) The Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of past event; and
{ii} 1tis probable that an outfiow of resources embedying ecanomic benefits will be required ta settle the obligation; and
(iil) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present abligation and when the effect of time value of
monay is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows.

{b) Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:

{i}  Apresent obligation arising from past eveats, when it is not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settie
the obligation; or
{ii} A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Where the unavoldable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to he
received under such contract, the present obligation undar the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

{c) Contingent Assets:

{i) Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
(ii} Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.521 Commitments

Commitmenis are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as fallows:

@)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining ta be executed on capital account and ot provided far;

B)  Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

¢)  Funding related commitment to associate and joint venture companies; and

d)  Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of
management.

2.5.22 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into opersting, investing and financing activities, Cash flow from
pperating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the affects of:

i changes during the period in operating receivables and payahles transactions of 2 non-cash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisiens, deferred taxes, uarealised foreign currency gains and losses: and

iii.  All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances} shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not
available for general use as an the date of Balance Sheet.

3. Recent Accounting Developments
3.1 law enacted but not effective

The Cade on Social Security, 2020 {'Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Indian Parliament’s approval and Presidential assent In September 2020, The Code has been published in the
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3.2

(a)

(b)

{c)

Gazette of India and subsequently, on November 13, 2020, draft rules were published and stakeholders’ suggestions were
invited, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the
impact of the Code when it comes into effect and wilt record any refated impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Amendments in Ind AS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA} notifies new standards or  amendments to  the existing  standards under
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:
IND AS 1~ Presentation of Financtal Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
pelicies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financia)
statemennts.

IND AS B, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments o IND AS
8 to help eatities distingulsh changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for ado
ption of this amendment is annual pericds beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment 2
nd there is no impact on its Standalone financial statements.

IND AS 12, Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that
gve rise to  equal and offsettingtemporary  differences. The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periods beginning an or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there
is no impact on its Standalone financial statements.
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300D11985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

{Rs. In Lakks)
4 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 3%, 2022
Cash on Hang 173 95.73
Balances with banks:
—In aurrent accounts 1,424.53 83.71
Digital Wallets 0.72 -
Total 1,425.98 17%.44
5 Bank Balances ather than Cash and cash eguivalents
Particulars As at Asat
March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
Peposits with Bank having orlginal maturity of more than 3 manths 1,021.50 100.00
Total 1,021.50 104-00
b6 Trade Receivables
. As at As at
Particutass
March 31, 2023 Maych 31, 2022
Receivables considered good-Secured . -
Receivables considered good-Unsetyred 34.73 117.77
Receivabiles which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Rerelvable Credit Impaired - -
Receivables from sale of Investment; - -
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance {Expected Credit Loss} - -
Total 31.73 117.77
Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as on Macch 31, 2023
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Years Totat
RAeceivables considered good-Unsecured 34.73 - - - 34.73
Total 34.73 - - - 34.73
Trade Receivables ageing Schedube 35 on: March 31, 2022
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Years Total
Receivables considered good-Unsecured 117.77 - - - 117.77
Taotal 117.77 - - - 117.77

Nao debts due by directors or other afficers of tha Company or any of them githar severally or jointly with any cther person or debts due by firms incfuding limited
lizbility partnerships (LLPS), private companies in which any director is a partner o a director or a member.

7 Loans
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

At Amerised Cost
{8) Tem: Loans
Secured
Leans against Viehicles 5204 4,555.51
Loans against Gold/Gold Jewellery® {Refer note 7.2) - 2,135.90
Loans against Land/Proparties 25.68 236,67
Unsecurad
Loans to Others 3,087.37 34,208.49
Tatal Gross {A} (1} 3,175.07 41,136.67
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 2316 342.36
Total Net {A) {1} 315191 40,794.31
{8} {i) Secered by Tanglble Assets 8170 6,928.17

{il) Secured by In-tangible Assets - -

(i} Unsecured 3,087.37 34,208.49
Total Gross (A) {1) 3175.07 41,136.67
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 232.16 342,36
Totat Net (B) {1) 3,151.91 40,794.31
{C} {1} Lozns Tn India

{a} Public Sector - -
|b) Others 3,175.07 41,136.67

Totat Grass (€] (1) 3,175.07 41,136.67

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 23,16 342.36




HINDDN MERCANTILE LIMITED
OIN: U34300011985PLC021 78S

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 33, 2023

21

7.2

10

Total Net (C) {1) 3,151.9¢ 40,794.31
{}l} Loan Qutside Indla . .
l.ess: Impairment Loss Allowance - -
Totat Net {C} 1) - -
Total Net [C} {1} & {In) 3,151.91 40,754.31
Loans granted to pramotors, Directors, Key Management Personnels and related parties
4. repayable on demand . .
b. without specifylng any terms or period of repayment - -
.. Others . .
Note:
Refer Rote 30 for recanciliation of gross carrying amaunt of foans and expected credit loss thereon.
Gold/Gold fewellery are pledged as security for overdraft taken from bank {Refer note 14}
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Investments
; Face value per Asat As at
Particulars share Nas. March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-trade investments [at amortised cost)
Investment in Equity Instruments {unquoted shares)
lsvestment In Wholly owned subsidiary
Hindon Account Aggregation Services Private Limited 1w 1,00.000 10.00 000
Hindon Peer 1o Peer Finance Private Limted* 14 21,00.000 310.00 21000
Mufinpay Payment Solutions Private Umfted 10 1,00,900 1.00 -
Bimapay Finsure Share Investment 10 65,730 5812 -
! iri Cther L
Care.Fi Technological Selutions Private Limited 1o 127 9.94
Inuestment in Other instrumeats {unquoted daht}
Fintelligence Data Science Private Limited 22.74 -
Trade investrnents (at amortised cost]
Ipvestment in Equity Instruments [quoted shares)
lsveestmant in Subsidiary
Mufin Green Finance Lirnited (Formarly AP Finvest Lirnited) 2 1,45,52,602 7.059,66 6,912.49
Total 747147 7.132.49
Agpregate ameount of quoked investments 7.059.66 6,212.49
Market vahie of quoted investments 32,816.12 8,949.85
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 411.81 220,00
Impairmant Loss Aflowance |Expected Credit Loss) - -
~Share application maney paid for 10 fakh, but not alloted till March 31, 2023,
Other financial assets
Particulars As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Intarest accrued but not due - 4.60
Security Deposits 43.78 £9.38
Advarces 1o Staff 25.15 .
Insurance claim recefvables - 42,90
Other recaivablas 35.40 472.63
Toal 104.33 608.51
Deferred tax assetsf{liabifities [net)
- As at As at
Particutars Rarch 31,2023 Moarch 31,2022
Deferred tax liability (A) : 0.12
Deferred tox agset {8) 90.65 90,28
Deferred tax asssts/{fabilities] (net} {refer note 32 (B-A) 90.66 90.14
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CiN: 3430004 1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

1z

14

14.2

{Rs. int Lakhs)
Intangihle assets under dovel
Particutars As at Asat
Marth 31, 2033 Masch 31, 2022
Sarit under devel 9676 147,15
Total 86,76 147.15
Other Nor-Financiaf Assats
. As at Asat
Farticutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with Government Autharities 39161 126,55
Tax Creditsf Refund - 15218
Advances to Others 033 00.47
Prapnid Expenges 1643 -
Total 108,75 40934
Barrowings (other than Debt Secorities)
AT Amartsed Cod
Asat Azt
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Secured
Teem Loan
- From Nen-Bankdng Financis| Instiution 1,048.10 165733
Overdraft
« Fram banks 314.27 291,04
nsecured
Term Loan
- Loans from Cthars - 92377
Repayable on Demand
- Loans from refated partios 405,18 013
- Loans from Corporate 2,322.22 7,529.55
Fotal '4,090.27 16,172.46
QOut of Ahave
. In India 409027 20,272.46
- Outside India - -
Total 4,090.27 1027246
Nature of Security
Term Leans fram Non-Bonking FI ial Institutions are secured agalns hypothecation af present and tuturs receivablas, cash collateral of Rx, 25 takhs and peisonat guaraatee of
Dlrectors, The same are repayobie In cquat instal from 12 to 18 months,

Percdical Returns Gled with the Banks in respect of overdraft facilities are in agreatvent with the books of accaunt.
The Company has duly filzd Registration of charges and satisfaction of ch with the Regi. af C lex, as applicable.

Terms of Repayment af Borrowlings (other than Debt Securities) as at March 31, 2023

CverlYeartod Owver3¥oarins

Particulars
'al Upto 1 Year Years Years

Oreer 5 Years Tatal

urad

Term Loans

- Fram Kan-Banking Financhal Institutions 105758 - - - 1,057.58
Rate of Interese {ROI): 14-15%

Oveedraft

- Fram banks 3T . - - 31477
ROI: 7.75-9,5%

Unsecured

Term Lozns.

- Loans from Others - - - - -
RO

Regayable on Demand

- Loans from Related Parties 43%.18 - - - 495.18
ROl 10-12%

- Leans frem Corporates 100.00 2212 - - 2,223.22
RO B-12%

Total 1,877.53 [RIFET - - 409975
Pracesting Fee {ind AS Adj ) 15.48)
Tokal 4,090.27




HINCON MERCANKTILE [MITED
TIN: U3430001 1985PLC02 1785
NOTES T0 THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STAVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR £NDED MARCH 11, 2023

Teems of Repayment of Borrowlings (other than Debt Sccuritos) as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Upto 1 Year OverlYearto3 Quer3Yeartos Crear & Yoare Total

!n_a.r: Years
Sequred
Term toans

- From N ing Financial | nagltuti 1,588.14 B3.89 - . 167802
Rate of Interest {ROI) 14-15.75%

Overdrait

~From binks 903,04 L . - 991.04
ROL9-11%

Terms of Repaymant of Borrowlngs {othee than Deht Securilies) as at March 31, 2022 |Rs- b Lakhs)

Particulsrs Upto 1 Year OverlYeario3 Ouer3Yearte s
Yeurs Years

Over 5 Years Total

Vnsecured

Term Loang

- Loans from Gthers §2.27 - - - 92.27
RO 15-18%

Repayable on Demand

- Loans from refated parties 033 - - - 023
RO 12%

- Lpans from Cocporates 7.529.59 - - - 7,529.5%
ROI; 12%

Total 10,203.27 E2.88 - - 10,293.15

Pracessing Fee (Ind AS Ad] 1 {20.70]

Total 10,7245

15 Subordi d Debts

Asat Aszt

Pasticulzrs
March 31, 2023 Mardh 31, 2022

Unsecured

At Amortised Cost

Term Loan

_:_I:gg_p: from Corparatas - 50,000.00

Total - 30,8400

Torms of Rep of of Subardinated Uabilites as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Upto L Year OverlYearto3 OverdYeartos Cheer 5 Years Yot
Years Years

Ungeeurcd

Term Loan
- Lwans from Corparates - - . - .
RO .

Tatal - - - - -

Temns ol t of of Subordi Uabllites a5 at March 31, 3022

Particulars Upto 1 Year Over1Yearta} Overd¥eartas Ovar S Years Tonl

Years Years
Unsecured
Term Loan
- Lpans from Comporates - - - 30,000.00 30,000.00
ROI: 15%

Total - - - 30,000.00 30,000.60

16 Other Anandal LiabRities

Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 7023 Macrh 31, 2022

Interest accrued but Aot dua on barmwing 54,76 406.23
Lease Labfities 34,77 8462
Salary and Other benefits payabie - -

Liability for Expenses 15409 2104
Seurity Deposits - 21264
Advances from refated party* - 1,630.86
Advanaes from others 19E 54 145

Tolul 6225 2,424 85

* Represants advance recelved from subsidizry, Mufin Gresn Einance Limited towarnds transfes of toan portfollo [excuding interest accrued of R, 20.02 lakhs)

17 Cureignt Yax Labilties

As at Asat
Paricutars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Pravilon for ineome-tas {net of advance tax) 5.53 B

Total 5.63 -




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: LI24300DE 198501021785
NOTES TQ THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. In Lakhs)
18 Provisleny
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Provisions for Emplayee Benefits
- Grawity Payable {Refer note 31) 291 119
Total 291 1.15
19 Other Hon-Fnanelat Lublfies
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2032
Statutory dues pavable 106,62 10.34
Total 106.62 10.34
20 Equity Share capital
Particutars As at March 31, 2023 A at March 31, 2022
Authwrized share capltal
2,50,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 2,50,00,000) equlty shares of Rs. 10 each 2,500.00 2,500.00
lssued, subseribed and futly paid-up sharas
1,47,92,634 {March 31, 2022: 1,27,92,634) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,479.26 1,273.76
20.1 Recondfiation of the number of equity shares out ding at the beglnnlng and atthe end of the yaar
Partleulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Al the beginaing of the year L27532,634 1,12,20,525
Issued during the yvear 20,00,000 15,71,709
Outstanding at the end of the year 1.47,52,634 127,592,634

20.2 Termsf rights attached 10 equity shares

The Company haz only ane class of equity sharas having par value of Rs.10 par shace {March 31, 2022; Rs. 10 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate
per share. Afl equity shiaraholders are have right to get dividend in proportion to paid up value of esch equity shara as and when daclared.

In the event of liguldation of the Comgany, tha holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remalning assets of the Company,

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholdars,

20.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5 perceat shares in the Company

after distributlon of all preferential

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Neme of the Shareholder Naos. % of holding Nos. % of holding
e, Kapil Garg £2,60,669 35.56% 43,41,848 33.94%
Mr., Rajat Goyal 29,02,434 19.62% 30,956,448 24,205
Resilient innovations Pyt. Ltd, 16,18,200 10.94% 16,18,200 12.65%
Ms, Surabhi Setia 6,74,488 4.56% 6,74,488 5.237%
Mr, Sandeep Jain 585,535 A86% 506,335 3.06%
Ms. Neha Agarwa! 796,858 5.35% 2,596,858 6.23%
Finmen Advizors Pyt Lid, 3,33,248 2.25% 187,248 2.35%

20.4 Details of the shares held by Pr 3 in the Company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % change in

Name of tha Pramoter Nos.  %ofbolding  Nos.  Sofholding shaceholding
Mr. Kapil Garg 532,60,669 35.56% 43,41 848 33.94% 11.15%
Mr. Rajat Goyal 29,02,434 19.62%  30,96,448 24.20% 3.56%

205 The Funds raised by the company from preferential allotment/private placemant of shares have heen used for the purpases for which the funds were risad.

20.6 The Company has alloted 20,00,000 fully pald up equity shares during the year ended on March 31,2023

21 Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 21, 2022
Reserve Fund ufs 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934 476.45 395,51
Securities Pramiuvm 5814.19 4,014.19
Impalrment Reserve 0.73 on
Retalned Eamings 143099 1,292.42
Cther lems of Other Comprehensive Income 0.23 041
Total Other Equity 7,7232.54 5,703.25




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300D11385PL£021785
NOTES TO THE STARDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

21.1 Nature and Purposes of Reserves:

b.

N
[4
Tah

Reserve Fund ufs 45 of RBI Act, 1934-
The Company created a reserve fund pursuant Lo section 45 I of the Reserve Bank of [ndia Act, 1934 by bansferring amount not fess than 20% of its net prefit every year
as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and bafore any dividend declared. Withdrawal from this reserve is aflawed only after abtaining permission from the RBI,

Sacurlties Premiurm:

This Reserve represents the premium oo tssus of equity shares and can be utilized in accordance with thepravisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Reralned Earnlags:

Retained earnings comprise of the profits of the Company earned tlll date net of distributions and other adjustments,

Other tems of Other Comprehensive ncame:

Other Comprehensive Income Includes Remeazurement of the defined benefits plan (net)

Impairment Reserve:

Impairment Reserve comprise the amount of difference bet, the loss 2 on loan assets as required under Ind AS-109 and the provision required as per
predential nerms of Reserve Bank of fndfe on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Fravisioning ({RACF) appropriated from the net profit in terms of RB! notification.
No withdrawals are parmitted from this reserve withcut prior parmission of the RB1

***This cpace Is Intentionally left blank: .

¢
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

22

24

26

7

29

(s, fn Lakhz)
Interest income
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2073 March 31, 2022
Interest income an loans 7,621.12 7.552.25
Total 762112 7,552,258
JFee and Commbsslon Incorne _
Particulars For the Year Eaded For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loan Procassing Fees 12.72 194,70
Total 1372 194.70
Other income
Partitulars For the Year Endad For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 Marck 31, 2022
Interest income on depasitt with Banks EER-C] 852
Interest on Incoma Tax Refund . 0.0%
Interest on Security Deposit 0.60 023
Business Auxiliary Service Charges - 372.43
Miscellanecus incoms az.o 0.3
Totzl 7156 382.06
FInanrce Cost
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Endad
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on banowings {other than debt seturities) 54197 919.43
intarest on Subvrdinated Debts 3,554.06 387508
Interest on fmase fabilitles .44 315
Interest on gthers - -
Bank charges 162 431
Total 4,125.49 4,802.90
Fees and ¢ 1 B
For the Year Ended For the Yaar Ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Commlssion & Brokerage 2,.333.12 o536
Cibil Charges 656 327.65
Fracessing Fee 24.29 10.20
Total 2363.97 1,283.01
Ipairmant of inandial instraments
Particatars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
O fl 1ak Instr f at amortized cost
- Cn lzans (308,521 232.93
- Loan Assets Written Off {Net of Recoverigs) - -
Total (308.52) 23293
Empleyee benefits
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Partiorlars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 432.98 507.11
Contrlbution to provident and athear funds 722 15,27
Staff welf BrSes 345 4,89
Tota) - 343,65 53137
her expenses
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2027
Auditor's remuneration {Statutory Audit Fee) 100 152
Business auxiiary charges 208.76 203.33
Professlonal & fegal charges 208.55 177,63
Miscellaneaus expenzes £8.94 22,96
Uffice Expanses 11353 78.17
Printing and stationery ] 1530
Rent 5.87 2120
ROC Filing Fees . 0.58
Travalling 2nd conveyance 8.80 3421
Lozs on sale of fixed assets 4.51 -
Tatal R24.19 57190




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CiN U343000L1985PLC021785

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

29. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
(a} Contingent Liabilities ~ Nil {March 31, 2022 — Nil).

(b} Commitrments — Nfl {March 31, 2022 — il}.

30. Reconciliation of Gross Carrying Amount of Loans and Expected Credit Loss an Loans

A. Reconciliation of Gross Carrying Amount of Loans

{Rs. in fakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 41,136.26 35,702.26
New Assets ariginated aor purchased 37630.84 1,41,467.00
Transfers to/ {from) Stage 1 {6.31) [2,276.68)
Transfers to/ (from} Stage 2 6.31 2,102.00
Transfers to/ {from) Staga 3 - 174.68
Assets written off . B
Net Recovery {75,591.95) {1,36,033.00)
Gross Carrying amount at the end of the year 3,175.15 41,136.26
B. Reconcillation of Expected Credit Loss on Loans
{fs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expected Credit Loss at the beginning of the year 342.36 109.43
On Amount written off - -
On New Assets originated or purchased 11.26 707.33
Impact an Expected Credit Loss of Exposure transferred between stages 241 117.43
during the year
Increase/(decrease) in pravision on financial ass}ets{net of recovery) {332.87) {591.84)
Increase/(Decrease} in Expected Credit Loss during the year {308.52) 232,93
Expected Credit Loss at the end of the year* 23.16 34236
*excluding amount of Rs. 0.73 lakhs of impairment Reserve {Refer Note 44.6).
31. Details of Employaes Beneflts as required by the Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”:
a}  Defined Contribution Plans:
The company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 21, 2022
Contribution to provident fund 601 14.61
Contribution to ES] 0.75 3.55
Cantribution to £01LI 0.23 0.51
Administration Charges 0.23 0.60
Totat 7.22 19.37
b)  Post Retirement Benefit Plan
(i Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
: Absence Absence
Presant value of plan liabilities 291 - .67 -
Fair value of plan assets [ - - - -




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN UF24300DL1985PLCO21785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

Deficit/{Surplus) of furtded plans - - 0.52 -
Unfunded plans - - - «
Net plan liabilities/{assets) 291 - 1.19 -

(i}  Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit Expenses

{Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
Ahsence Absence
Current service cost 1,31 - 1.03 -
Past service cost - - - -
Interast cost 0.08 - 0.05 -
Expected return on plan assets - - - “
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses 0.25 - {0.56) -
Total expenses 1.64 - 0.52 -
{iii} Assumptions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial Assumption
Discaunt rate 7.39 7.26
Salary Escalaticn Rate # 10.00 10.0G
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement age {Years} 60 60
Mortality rates inclusive of pravision for disability 100% of 1ALM (2012-14) 10034 of 1ALM (2012-14)}
Attrition at ages
- Up to 30 years 24.00 44,00
- From 31 to 44 years 44.0D 44.00
- Above 44 years 44.00 41.00

# The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, taken into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other refevant factars including supply and demand in the employment market.

{iv) Sensitivity Analysis
_{Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 ! As at March 31, 2022
Change in Increass Decrease Change in Increase Decrease
assumption impacton | impacton assumption impact an impact an
présent present value present value present value
valueof | ofplan ! of pfan of plan
plan ltabilities liabilities liabilities
liabilties F
Gratuity
Discount rate 0.50% {0.03) 0.03 0.50% {0.02) 0.02
Salary Escalation Rate D.50% i 0.03 {0.03} 0.50% 0.02 {0.02)
Compensated Absence
Discount rate 0.50% - - 0.50% - -
Salary Escalation Rate 0.50% - - 0.50% - -

The sensitivity analyses abiove have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring
- +.-8t the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It Is based on a change. It is based on a
h'a]"h_gg in the key assumptiun whiie holding a)l other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption,

P,.
P oy Ao
» s a
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the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized in the balanca sheet has been applied. The
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the pravious period.

{v} The defined benefit obligations maturing after year ended March 31, 2023

{Rs. in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023
Maturing within
Gratuity Compensated Absente

0—1year 0.40 -

1-2vyears 0.31 -

2—-3 years 0.65 -

3 —4years 0.16 -

4 —5 years 0.12 -

S —6years 0.06 -

B year onwards 112 -
32. Income Tax Expense
a}  Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2023 March 31, 2022

Current tax
Current tax on taxable income for the year 111.78 113,17
Total Current tax expense 111.78 113.17
Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge/{credit) {0.52} {105.75)
Totat deferred tax expense/{credit) {0.52} {105.79)
Tax expense far the year 111.26 7.38
Tax related to earlier year 63.51 {22.52}
Total tax expense recognized for the year 175.07 {15.14)

b}  Areconciliation of the tax expense to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit before

tax is summarized below:

{Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
Effective Tax Rate 27.82% 27.82%
frofit hafore tax 404.71 678.00
Curtent tax expense gn profit before tax expense at the enacted 112.59 185.62
income tax rate in India
Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/ {taxable) in {1.33) [181.24)
calculating taxable income
Tax Expense for the year 111.26 7.38
£ffect of earlier year tax adjustment 63.81 122.582)
Tax Expensa recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 175.07 {15.14)
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¢} Daferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at March {Credit)/ Credit/ JAsatMarch | {Credit}/ |Credit/{ch | Asat March
Particulars 31,2021 charge in {charge) 31,2022 | chargein arge}in 31,2023
-Deferred tax | statement | inother | -Deferred | statement| other |-Deferred tax
Assets of profit | comprehe| taxAsset/ | ofprofit | compreh Assetf
{Liabifities and loss nsive {Liabilities} | and loss ensive {Liabilities)
Income Income
Impact of  difference {5.40) {95.68} - 90.28 {0.45}) - 50,73
between tax
depreciation and
deprectationfamortiza
tion charged for the
financlal reporting
Deferred Tax Assets {5.90} {95.68} - 50.28 {0.45) - 90.73
Impact of Provisions of 10.1 {1013} : {6.14) {0.14) 0.13 0.07 oy
Income Tax Act, 1961
and others |
Deferred tax Assets 10.11 {10.11) {D.14) {0.14} 0.14 0.07 0.07
Deferred tax (Liabilities) / {15.51) {105.79} {C.14) 90.14 {0.59) 0.07 90.65
Assets {Net)
33. Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value, safeguard the business
continuity and to maintain strong capltal base for investor, creditors and market confidence. For the purpese of the
Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, future plans
and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirements are met through loans and operating cash flows
generated. The Company monitors capita! using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus nat debt. The
Company's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio as given befow:
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings {other than Debt Securities) 4,000.27 10,272.46
Subordinated Debts - - 30,000.00
Dther financial Babilities 462.26 2,424.85
Less: Cash and ¢ash equivalents {1,426.98) {179.44)
Ret Debt {(A) 3,125.55 42,517.87
Total Equity {B) 9,211.81 6,982.52
Capital and Net tdeht (C}=[A+B} 12,2372.36 48,500.39
Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 25.23% 85.89%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022.

Financial Risk Management

The Company s mainly engaged in Financing Activities. The Campany's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company’s operations. The
Company's principal financial assets include loans, cash and cash equivalents and receivablas.

The risk management policies of the Company are established to |dentify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, 10 set
appropriate fisk limits and controts, and to monitor risks and adhirance to limits. Risk management policies and systams are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company is exposed ta credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management
of these risks to ensure the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
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financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company’s poticies and risk objectives. The major
risks are summarizad below:

34.1 Credlt Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the couaterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument OF a customer contract,
feading to financiad lass, The Company is exposed ta ceedit risk from its financing activities towards Luans to various clients.
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influericed mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit risk has
always been managed by the company through eredit approvals, establish credit limits and continuous monitaring the tredit
worthiness of customers ta which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business,

Financlal assets are written off when there is np reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a borrower failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Company. Where loans/interest have been written off, the Company continues to enpage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recaver the loans/receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as
incame In the statement of profit and loss.

‘The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables/loans based on historical trend, available exteenal and
internal credit risk factors such as financlal condition, ageing of accounts receivable ete., industry practices and the business
environment In which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trands,

As at March 31, 2023, the company did not cansider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk, which had not
been adequately provided for. The carrying amount of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements, prossed up
for any allowances far losses, represenats the maximum exposure to credit risk,

34.2 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finandial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and market price risk, such as equity
price risk and commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include Ipans, invastments, barrowings and fixed
deposits.

34.2.1 Interest Rate Risk

The Interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and floating interest rates. The interest rates are disclosed in
the respective notes to the financial statements of the Company. The breakup of the financial assets and llabilities on the
basis of interest and nan-interest nature is as under:

{fs. in lakhs)
PFarticulars As at As at
March 3%, 2023 | March 31,2022
Financial assets
Non-interest bearing
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,426.98 179.44
Trade receivables 24.73 117.77
Invastments 7,471.47 7,132.49
Others Financial Assets 104.33 6{)9.51
Loans -
nterest bearing
Deposits with Bank ' 1,021.50 100.00
Loans 3,151.91 41,136.67
Financlal liabllities
Non-interest hearing
Trade Payable - -
Other Financial Liability 462.26 2,424.85
Interest bearing
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 4,090.27 10,272.45
Subordinated Debts - 30,000.00
Sensitlvity Analysis

The table below summaries the impact of increase and decrease in rate of interest on the Company’s Equity/ other assets
and profit for the year. The analysis is based on the assumptian that the interest rate has increased/decreased by S0 base

point.
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{2} Interest rate sensitivity - Borrowings

{Rs. in lakhs)
F.Y. 2022-23 F.Y. 2021-22
50 bp increase would decrease the profit bafore tax by {20.45) {201.36}
50 bp decrease would increase the profit bafore tax by 20.45 20136
{b} interest rate sensitivity - Loans
{Rs. in [akhs)
F.Y. 2022-23 FY.2021-22
50 bp increase would increase the profit bafore tax by 15.76 205.68
50 bp decrease would decrease the prafit before tax by {15.76} {205.68}

{c) Interest rate sensitivity - Fixed Deposits with Bank
{Rs. in lakhs)

F.Y. 2022-23 F.Y. 2021-22
50 bp increase would increase the profit before tax hy 511 0.50
50 bp decrease would decrease the profit hafore tax by (5.11} [0.50)

34.2.2 Currency Risk
Tha company does not have any currency risk exposure as there Is no foreign currency obligation/receivable.

34.2.3 Market Price Risk
Market price fisk is the risk that the fair value of future eash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes

in market prices of equity shares. In the case of the Company, market sisk primarily impacts financiat instruments such as
Investnent in Equity Shares ete.

The Company exposure to market price risk arising from Investments held by the Company and is classified in the financial
staternents at Cost as the Investments are made in Subsidiaries.

The market vatue of the Investment (quoted equity shares} is Rs, 32,815.12 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 {As at March 31, 2022
—Rs. 8,349.85 fakhs).
Sensitivity Analysis

The table below summaries the impact of increase and decrease of the index on the Company's Equity/ other assets and
profit for the year. The analysis is based on the assumption that the instrument index has increased by 5% or decreased by
5% with all other variables held constant.

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
5% increase would increase tha profit before tax by 1,640.81 447.49
5% decrease would decrease the profit befare tax by {1,640.81) {447.49)

34.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. liquidity risk are managed through combination of strategies like managing tenors in line with asset liability
management policy and adequate liquidity cover is maintained. The Company’s treasury team is responsible for fiquidity,
funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by Senior
management. Management moniters the Company liguidity position through rolling forecasts an the basls of expected cash
flows,

The analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities:

[Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars Less than 1 year/ j 1to5years >5 years Total
Ondemand

As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings other than Debt Securities 1,877.53% | 222222 - 4,009.75
. Subprdinated Cebts - - - -
: Other financial liabilities 462,26 : - - 462,26
. Asat March 31, 2022
] Borrowings cther than Debt Securities 10,203.27 ; 89.88 - 10,293,15
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Subordinated Debts - 36,000.00 30,000.00
Other financial liabilities 2,371.23 53.62 2424.85
*Gross of processing fee of Rs. 9.48 lakhs
35.  Other Financial Instruments Disclosuras
35.1 Financlal instruments by Categary
The carrying value and fair valve of fipancial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:
{Rs. in lakhs}
F Financial assets/ |  Financal
. | labilities at fair assets/ R .
Particulars Am:;:t'zed value through kabilities at fair Tom‘:al'."::rymg T:::L:alr
profit or Joss value through
QCl
Assets;
{a) Investment in equity 7,059,656 - - 7,059.66 7.059.66
shares (Quoted)
(b) Investment in equity shares 411.81 - - 411.81 411.81
{unquoted]
{c) Trade receivables 34.73 - - 3273 34.73
{d) Loans 3,151.91 - - 315191 3,151.51
{e) Other financial assets 104.33 - - 104.33 10433 |
{f; Cash and cash 1,426.98 - « 1,326.98 1,426.98
Equivalents
{g) Bank balance other 1,021.50 - 1,021.50 1,021.50
than cash and cash
equivalents
Liabiities:
{8} Borrowings other than 4,000.27 - - 4,080.27 4,080.27

: Debt Securities
(b) Subordinated Debts - - - - -
{c}  Other financial liabilities 462,26 - - 462.26 462.26
The carrying value and falr value of financial Instruments by categories as at March 31, 2022 are as foliows:

Financial assets/ Financial
. liabilities at fair assets/ | .
Particulars Amortized | alue thraugh | liabifities at fasr | 102 Carvying | Total fair
cost profit er lass value thraugh value value
i (o a]
Aszats:
{2} investment in equity £,912.49 - - 6,912.49 6,912.4%

i shares {Quoted}

{b} Investment in equity shares 220,00 - - 220.00 220.00
{unquoted)

i (€] Trade receivables 117.77 - - 112.77 117.77
{d} Loans 40,794.31 - - 40,794.31 40,794.31
{e} Other financial assets 609.51 - - 609.51 5091
{f) Cash and cash 179.45 - - 179.44 179.44 |

Equivalents
! {g) Bank balance other 100.60 - - 160.00 100.00
i than cash and cash
equivalents
Liahllities:
{d} Borrowlings other than 10,272,456 - - 10,272.46 10,272.46
Debt Securities
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{e] Subordinated Dehts 30,600.00 - - 30,080.00 30,000.00

{f) _ Other financial liabtlities 242435 - - 2,424.85 2,424.35

5.2

Fair Value Hierarchy

35.21 This section explains the judgments and estimates made in detarmining the falr value of the financial Instruments that are

{a) recognized and measured at fair value and {b) measured at amertized cost and for which fair values are disclosed In the
financial statements. {t does not include falr value infoermation for financial assets and liabifities if the carrying ameunt is a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

{Rs. in fakhs}

Particulars ' March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Level Level Level Level ! Level Level
1 2 3 1 | 2 2

Financial Assets and Liabilities which are measured at fair value: recurring fair value measurement

Assets:

t

{a) Investment in equity 7,059.66 | . 6,912.49 - -

shares ({Quoted) [

{h) Investment in equity - - 411.81 - - 220.00
shares {Unquoted)

Liabilities: - f - ; 5 : -

Financial Assets and Liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values ére disclosed

Assets: ] -1 «[ -; ] [ -

Liahilities:

{a) Lease Liabilities I . . | 54,77 i - [ - ’ 8462

35.2,

2 Measurementof fair values

The above table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped inta Leve! 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets ar labilities.
Level 2 - Input other than guoted prices included within Level 2 that are observable for the assets of liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3- Inputs for the assets or the liabifities that sre not based on observable market data {unabservable Inputs)

{i}

Valuation Methodologies of financial instruments measured at falr value
Listed Equity shares are measured on the basis of closing rate of the stock exchange where equity shares are listed.
Mutual Funds are measured based on the published net asset value {(NAV) by AMFI and are classified a5 Level 1.
Alternative Investments Funds and Fixed Maturity Plan are measured on the latest NAY provided by the fund house and are
classified as level 3.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:-
{Rs. in lakhs}

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 33, 2022

{ii)

Leasa liabilities 54,77 84.62

The fair value of financlal assets are included at amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value:

{a) Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvables, other payables and other financial liabilities,
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

{b}  Financlal instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty, 8ased on this evaluation, allowances are taken to
account far the expected fosses of these receivables.
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36.  Maturity profile of Assets and Liahilities on undiscounted basls

{Rs. in [akhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars :
Within 12 months :;::hlsz ﬁ::-l:hiz After 12 months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,426.98 - 175.44 -
Bank balance other than cash and cash 1,021.50 i 100.00
equivalents B
Trade receivable 34.73 - 117.77 -
Loans 2,901.68 250.23 39,350.39 1,443.92
fnvestrnents - 7.471.47 - 7,132.48
COthers Financial Assats 87.38 16.95 534.51 75.00
Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net) - - - -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 90.66 - 50.14
Tangible Assets - 20.94 - 24.14
Right of use assets 49.84 - - 83.06
Intangible assets under development 96.76 - 147.15 -
Other Intangible assels - 1.6 - 4.05
Other non-Enancial assets 408.76 - 100.47 308.83
Financial Liabilities
Borrawing other than Debt Securities 1,877.53* 2,222.22 10,203.27 84.88
Suberdinated debts - . - 30,000.00
Othar financial liabilities 341.80 120.4% 2,371.23 53.62
Non-FInanctal Liahilities
Current tax liabilitias {(net) 5.63 - - -
Provisions - 2.85 - 1.19
Deferred tax Iabilities {net} - - - -
Other Non-Financial Lisblitles 106.62 - 10.34
*Gross of processing fee of Rs, 9.48 lakhs.
37. Disclosures as required by Ind AS-24 ‘Related Party”

37.1  Listof Related parties and their relationship:
S.No Relation Name Particulars of Relationship
1 Subsidiacy Company Mufin  Green Finange

Limited

Hindon Account

Aggrepation Servites

Private Limited

Hindon Peer to Peer

Finance Private Limited

MufinPay Fayment | w.e.f May 05,2022

Sofutions Pvt Ltd

Blmapay Finsure Pvt Ltd w.e.f Aprit 08,2022
2 Key Management Personnet Kapil Garg Managing Director

Mayank Compaay Secretary w.e.f May 05,2022

Tanvi Jawa Chief Financial Officer w.e.f January 13, 2023
3 Subsidiary of Subsidiary Fintelligence Data

Stience Private Limited |
4 Relatives of Key Management | Rajat Gayal Husband of Smt. Neha Apgarwal, Director

Personnel Shelly Garg Wife of Shri Kapll Garg, Managing Director

5 Non-Executive Directors Neha Agarwal Non-Executive Director

Sandeep Jain Non-Executive Director

Luv Khanna Non-Executive Director
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Pradip Kumar Kar Non-Execotive Independent Director

Amal Sinha Non-Executive Independent Director

Hemant Bhageria Non-Executive Independent Director w.ef. 12
Jaruary, 2023

37.2 The following transactions were carried out with Related parties in the ordinary course of husiness:
{Rs. in lakhs}

Name of the Refated party Nature of transaction Year ended March Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
Rajat Goyal Shares issued - 159.87
Ghanshyam Das Goya) Sharas issued - -
Geeta Devl Garg Shares issuad - -
Luv Khanna Shares issued - 16.57
Amo] Sinha Director Sitting fees ' 0.15 0.30
Kapil Garg Diractor's Remuneration 167.34 150.00
Loan repaid 135.00 372.00
Loan received 135.00 372.00
Shares issued 955,96 228.88
interest Paid on Ltoan 0.17 4.92
Hindon Account Aggregation Services Private | Interast paid on loan - 0.25
Limited Loan repaid 0.22 9.78
Purchase of Shares - 10.00
Loan received - 10.00
Bimapay Finsure Pvt Ltd Purchase of Shares 58.13 -
Mufin Payment Sclutions Private Limited Purchase of Shares 1.00 -
Hindon Pger to Pesr Finance Private Limited | Purchase of Shares - 200,00
Pradip Kumnar Kar Director 4,00 1.00
Sandeep Jain Shares issued 79.20 26.14
Neha Agarwal Interest paid on loan - -
Shares issued - 26.14
Sheily Garg fnterest paid on loan 0.20 £.28
Loan repaid 100,60 665.00
Shares issued 325.00 20.00
Loan receivad 100.00 665.00
Hindos Peer to Peer Finance Private Limited | Loan received - 105.00
Loan repaid - 105.00
Share Application Money 100.00 75.00
Mufin Green Finance Lirited Advances taken 621.56 7,346.57
Interest paid on loan 10.95 2223
Collection received on our 80.05 B
behalf
Interest received on advance D.11 -
Biven
Loan Portfolie transferred 97.98 2,828.28
Loan accounts transferred* - 147542
Purchase of Shares 137.17 -
Advance repaid 869.35 1,400.00
Refunds of payments made 9357 161.53
on their behalf

“transferred as requested by the concerned borrowers.

373 Outstanding balances with Related parties

{Rs. in lakhs)
. Az at As at
Name of the related party Nature of transaction March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Hindon Account Aggregation | Loan outstanding {liabifity) - 0.22

Senvices Private Limited
Hindon Peer to Peer Finance | Advance outstanding {asset) - 75.00
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[__Mufin Green Finance Limited | Advance recelved {liability} - 1,638.85 |
374 Particulars of Remuneration to Key Management Fersonnel
{Rs. in lzkhs}
[ Particulars Kapil Garg, Mayank Pratap, Tanvi Jawa
i Managing Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Salary and 167.34 . 150.00 - - 4.06 -
Allowanges
Contribution to - - - - 0.05 .

PE

: Gratuity

value of

perquisites
L]

* calculated as per Income Tax Rules

315 Noamount pertaining to related parties has been provided for as doubtful debts or written off.
37.6  Related party relationship is as identified by the Company.
38 Earnings per Share (EPS}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net Profit far the year (before OCI) {Rs. in takhs} 22964 693.14
Weighted average no. of Equity Shares 1,30,50,168 1,16,44,805
Diluted average no. of Equity Shares 1,30,50,168 1,16,44,805
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 1.76 5.95
Diluted earnings per share {Rs.} 1.76 5.95
Face value of each share (Rs.) 10 10
30 Disclosures of Leases pursuant to Ind AS 116
39.1 The Cornpany has taken bullding on operating lease for office use.
39.2 Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
{Rs. in lakhs})
Particulars Far the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Depreciation Expensas 33.22 16.61
Iaterest Expenses 6.44 4.16
Tatal 39.66 017
38.3 The changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (RQU)
{Rs. in [akhs)
Particulars Building
For the year ended March For the year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 83.06 -
Addltians - 99.67
Deletion/Adjustment - -
Depreciation {33.22) {16.61)
Balance at the end of the year 49.84 83.06

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortizatlon expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.
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35.4 The break-up of current and nen-current lease lizbilities

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current lease liahilities 35.37 29.34
Nen-current lease liabilities 19.40 54,78
Total 54.77 84.62
39.5 The movement in lease Habilities
{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 84.62 -
Additions - 97.80
Interest Expenses 6.44 4.16
Deletions - -
Payrent of [ease liabilities 36.30 {17.34)
Balante at the end of the year 54.77 84.62

39.6 The details regarding the contractual maturities of lease Jabilities on an undiscounted basis
{Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Lass than one year 38.88 36.30
One to five years 15.91 53.79
More than five years - -
Total 58.79 95.09

a1

42

43

Pursuant ta the order dated September 14, 2020 of the National Campany Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench 1V, in the matter
of amalgamatian of Mufin Finance Limited and QTP Financial Services Private Limited with Hindon Mercantile Limited in a
scheme of amalgamation under section 230 ta 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the ‘Scheme’) w.e.f * 31st July, 2019'
fappointed date}, in accordance with the scheme of amalgamation, with effect from the appointed date, the company has
accaunted for amaigamation of Mufin Finance Limited & QT# Financlal Services Private Limited in its books of accounts as per
“The Pooling of Interest Method” as described in Accounting Standard (AS)-14 "Accounting for Amalgamatians” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. In accordance with Para 10 of Accounting Standard {AS) 14, ‘Accounting far
Amalgamation’, the company has affected sald amalgamation recognizing the identifiable assets at their existing carrying
amounts. In accordance with Paragraph 35 of the aforesaid Accounting Standard-14, the difference between the amount
recorded as share capital Issued and the amount of share capital of the transferar company have been adjusted in reserves,

The Company’s main business is Financing activitles. A% activities ara carried out within India. As such there are ng reportable
segments as per Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating Segmants’.

The company does not see any challenge in the recoverability of the carrying values of its assets and ta its Hquidity position,
The eventual outcome of impact of the COVID-1% pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of
approval of these financial statements and the Company will continse to monitor any material changes to the future
economic conditions.

Distlosura as per RBE Notifications / Cireulars

43.1 Pursuant to RBI Circular RBI/2021-22/125 DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated Novermnbar 12, 2021, 0n “Prudential Norms

43.2

on Income Recognition, Asset Classiication and Provisioning pertaining to Advances - Clarifications” the Company has taken
necessary steps to revise its process of NPA classification to flag the borrower as overdue as part of the day-end process for
the due date.

Further to this, on February 15, 2022, RBI allowed deferment of Para 10 of the aforesaid circutar till September 30, 2022
pertaining te upgrade of non-performing accounts. However, the Company has opted for the deferment.

There are no write-offs/ technical write-offs of non-perferming assets of loans during the year ended Mazch 31, 2023.
Therefore, no distlosures are required in terms of circutar RB1/2021-2022/104/DOR.No, STR.REC.55/21.04.048/2021-22 dated
Gctober 1, 2021.

et
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43.3 Addltcnal disclosures, to the extent applicable, in terms of Master Direction DNBR.PD.0D8/03.10.119/2016-17 dated
September 01,2016 {as amended):

{a) Investments:
{Rs. in [akhs)

Particulars Asat As at

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

{1) Value of Investments:

{i} Gross Value of investments
{a} Inlindia 2,471.47 7,132.49
{b) Qutside india - -
i} Pravision for Depreciation
{al Inindia - -
{b} Qutside India - -
{iii) Value of Investments
{a) Inlindia 7.471.4% 7.132.45
{h} Outside India - -
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on

investments:

(i) Opening Balance - -
{ii} Add; Provisions made during the year - -
{iii} Less: Write-off/ write-hack of excess provisions during - -
the year
{iv) Closing balance - -

{b) Exposure to Real Estate Sector:
{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulass As at Asat

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

{A) Direct Exposure
{1 Residential Mortgages: !
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property 35.66 236.67
that is or wilf be occupled by the borrower or that is |
rented

(i} Commercial Real Estate:

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates | -
{office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commerciat
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multt-tenanted
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction, etc).
Exposure would also include non-fund hased Emits;

{it) lnvestments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and other
securitised exposures:

(a} Residential - -

{b} Commerclal Real Estate - -

{8) ¢ Indireet Exposure :

Fund based and norfund based exposures or National Housing - -
Bank {NHB} and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

Total Exposure to Rezl Estate Sectar 35.66 236.67
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{¢) Exposure to Capital Market:

{Rs- In lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2023

Asat
March 31,2022

{

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bends, convertible
debentuces and units of eguity-ariented mutual funds the
corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

7,059.66

6,912.49

X

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securitles
or on clean basis to individualsfor investment In shares
[including IPOs f ESOPs), convertible bonds , convertible
debentures, and units ofequity-oriented mutual funds;

(i}

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures orunits of equity ariented
rutval funds are taken as primary secunity;

{iv)

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
renvertible debentures or units of equity oriented rmutyal
funds i.e. where theprimary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures f units of equity
criented mutual funds‘does not fully cover the advances;

v

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stock brokers and market makers;

{vi}

Bridge loans ta companias against expected equity flows / issues;
|

{vii)

| All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and
unregisterad)

Total Exposurato Capital Market

7,059.66

6,912.49
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444.1  Details of foans not in default transferred during the year ended March 31, 2023 under the Master Direction — RB!
{Transfer of Loan Expasures) Directions, 2021 dated September 24, 2021:

{Rs. in fakhs}
Particulars From lenders listed In Clause 3
| Ageregate amount of loans transferred [Rs. in lakhs) 816.47
Woelghted average maturity {in months) 13.92
Weighted average halding period (in months) 11.09
Retention of beneficial economic interest by the originator Nil
Tangible security coverage 100%
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Not applicable

44.4.2  Details of stressed loans (Special Mention Accounts 'SMA’) transferred during the year ended March 31, 2023 under the
Master Direction — RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 dated September 24, 2021

Particulars From lenders listed in Clause 3
No. of accoumts 424
Aggregate principal sutstanding of loans transferred [Rs. in Iakhs}_ 228.12
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred (in menths) 12.98
Net book value of loans transferred {at the time of transfar)
Aggregate consideration (Rs. in lakhs) 234,71
Additianal consideratian realized in respect of accounts transferred in patlier
years il

44.5 Details of Gross Advances, Gross NPAs, Net Advances and Net NPAs during the vear ended March 31,2023 pursuant g the
Master Circular — Predentlal noems on income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances

dated October 1, 2021:
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars ! Amount
PartA
1. [standard Advances 3,156.30
2. ]Gross Non-performing assets (NPAs) 18.85
3. |Gross Advances (1+2) 3,175.15
4. |Gross NPAs as a percentage of Gross Advances (2/3) (in %) { 0.59%
5. Deductions
(i) Peovistons held in the case of NPA Accounts as per asset dassification {including ] 7.38
additional Provisions for NPAs at higher than prescribed rates).
)] BICGC f ECGE claims received and held pending adjustment Mil
Hi) | Part payment received and kept in Suspense Accaunt or any other similar Nil
(iv) Balance in Sundries Account {[nterest Capitalization- Restructured Accounts), in Nil
respect of NPA Accounts
(v Floating Provisions Nil
(vi} Provisigns in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured accounts classified | Nil
as NPA
(vii) Provisions in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured accounts classified Nil
2s standard assets
6. |Met Advances [3-5} 3167.77
7. | Net NPAS {2-5(i +ii +jii +iv+ v + vi}} : 11.47
B. |Met NPAs as percentage of Net Advances (7/6} {in %) i 0.36%
Part B
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*

1. (Provisiens on Standard Assets excluding 5(vi} in Part A 15,78
2, |Interest recorded &s Memorandum ltem Nil
3. |Amount of curnulative Technical Write - Off in respect of NPA accounts reported in Part A Nil
above
44.6 Disclosures pursuant to RBI Circular no, RBI/2019-20/170 DOR/NBFC.CC.PD NO.1089/22.10.106/2015-20 dated March 13,
2020
As at March 31, 2023 {Rs. in lakhs)
Asset Gross Loss Provisians Difference
Asset Classification classification as Carrying Allowantes Net : peguiredas | between Ind
as per RBI Norms per Ind AS 109 Amount [Provisions) as Carrying per IRACP A5 109
as per Ind required under | Amount nerms provisions
AS Ind AS 109 and IRACP
nosms
(0 {2} {3 @) (5}= i5) =
(3ris) {4}-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stege 1 3,116.55 15,58 3,100.97 12.47 3.11
Stage 2 39.68 0.20 39.48 0.16 004
Bubtotal 3,156.23 15.78 3,140.,52 12.63 3.15
iNan-Performing Assets
{NPA)
5ub standard Stage 3 18.85 7.38 11.47 1.89 5.49
Doubtful - up te 1 year Stage 3 - - - | - -
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - : - -
Maora than 3 vears Stage 3 - - - - -
isubtotal for doubtful - - - - -
lLoss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal far NPA - - - - -
Other items such as Stage 1 - - - - -
guarantees, loan Stage 2 ~ A N N -
commitments, etc.
which are inthe
scope of Ind AS 109
but not covered Stage3
under current - - R - _
Income Recegnitien,
Asset Classification
and Provisioning
{IRACP) norms
Subtotal - - - - -
Stagel 3,116.55 15.58 310097 12.47 311
Stage 2 39.68 D.20 39.48 .16 0.04
Total Stage 3 18.35 7.38 11.47 1.89 5.49
Total 3,175.08 23.16 3,151.92 14.52 B.64
As at March 31, 2022 {Rs. in lakhs}
Asset Gross Lass Provisions Difference
Asset Classification as classification Carrying Allowances Net required as | between ind
per RBI Norms asperind AS | Amountas (Provisions} Carrying per IRACP AS109
105 per ind AS as reguired Amount norms provisions
under ind AS and IRACP
103 noIms
3] 2) 3) (@ (5)= (7)=
(Brar . 6’(‘4\&! PN
CAN
—
O DELH! %
2 &
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!
Asset Gross Loss :  Provisions Difference
Asset Classtfication as classification Carrying Allowances Net required as | betwaen ind
per RBI Norms as per Ind AS Amount as {Provisions) Carrying per IRACP AS 109
109 per ind AS as required Amount norms pravisions
under Ind AS and IRACP
109 i norms
Perfarming Assets
Standard Stage 3 37,881.58 20158 37,680.00 151.53 50.05
Stage 2 2,866.00 14.33 485167 | 1145 2.87
Gubtatal 40,747.58 215.9% 40,531.67 162.95 52.92
Non-Performing Assets
{NPA)
Bub standard Stage 3 389.00 12645 262.64 38.91 87.54
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - : . -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
ubtotal for doubitfu} - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal for NPA - . . . .
Other items such as Stage 1 - - - -
guarantees, loan Stage 2 N i - _ B
commitments, etc,
whichare in the scope of
Ind AS 105 but not
covered under current Stage3 :
Income Recognition, - - - -
Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACP)
norms
Bubtotal - - - - -
Stage ) 37,881.58 201.58 37,680.00 151.53 50.05
Stage 2 2,866.00 14.33 285167 11.46 2187
otal Stage 3 385.09 12645 26264 | 38.91 87.54
Total 41,136.67 342.38 44,794,31 } 201.90 140.46

Note: The Company has transferred Rs, 0.73 Lakhs representing the amount of diffarence between the ioss allowance as
required under Ind AS-109 and the provision required as per prudential narms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification
and Provisicning to Impairment Reserve in terms of RBI notification RBIf2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/
22,10,106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

44.7 Disclosures on liguidity Risk Management, to the extent apphcable required by Master Direction of RBI- DNBR.PD.OOB/
03.10.119/2016-17 dated Septermber 01,2016 {as amended):

44.7.1 Funding concentration based on significant counter party

{Rs. in lakhs)
Ag at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
S tlumber % % Number % %
of of of of of of
No. significant total total significant tota! total
counterparties Amaunt depnsits liahilities counterparties Amount depusits liahilities
1 12 4,090.27 N.A. 87.63% 20 40,272.46 N.A. 94.30%
44,7.2 Top 10 Borrowings
{Rs. in lakhs}
S.No. | Name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Borrowi Total | st oftotal Borrowings | Total | %oftotal
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ngs borrowings | borrowings from party borrowings borrowings
from
: party
1 Federal Bank 0.00 4,090.27 0.00% 455.52 40,272.46 1.13%
2 South Indian 0.00 4,080.27 0.00% 341,94 an,272.46 0.85%
Bank
P 3 Finmen Advisors 405 18 4,090.27 9.51% 81156 40,272.46 1.02%
; Put. Ltd.
4 Resitient 598.78 4,090.27 14.64% 36,794.34 40,272.46 91.36%
Innavations Pvt.
Ltd,
5 City Union Bank .00 4,090.27 0.00% 395.59 A40,272.46 0.49%
i Agilify Ventures 0.00 4,090.27 0.00% 80.74 4{3,272.96 0.23%
! Put. Ltd.
7 CKERS Finance 89.43 4,090.27 2.19% 423.97 40,272.46 1.05%
Pvt, td. ;
8 Edlear Leasing & 0.00 4,090.27 0.00% 463.45 4,272,456 1.15%
Finance Pvt. Ltd.
g Mas Financial 0.00 4,090.27 0.00% 790.51 40,272 46 1.96%
Services 1td.
10 Ideaszit 106.00 4,090.27 2.44% 200.00 40,272.458 0.50%
Technology
Services Pvi Lid.
11 TATA Capital 358.67 4,080.27 B.77Y% 0.00 40,2746 £.00%
Financial Service
Ltd
12 Namdey Finvest 600.00 4,090.27 14.67% .00 40,272.46 0.00%
Put Ltd
13 Care FI 1,101.96 4,080.27 26.94% 0.0¢ 40,272,456 0.00%
Technological Pvt
Ltd
14 Kredmink 450.00 4,050.27 11.98% 0.00 40,272.46 0.00%
Technalogies Pyt
Ltd
15 Yes Bank Ltd. 182.31 4,080.27 4.46% Q.00 40,272,468 0.00%
16 ICICE Bank Ltd. 130.24 4,090,2¢ 3,20% 0.00 40,272.46 0.00%
44.7.3 Funding concentration based on Instrument/product
{Rs. i lakhs}
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
5.No. | Name of the instrument Amount % of total liabilities Arnount % of total liabilities
1 | Loan repayable gn demand 2,727.40 58.43% | 7,529.82 17.63%
2 | Term loan 1,048.10 22.45% | 1,749.60 4,10%
3 | Overdraft 314.77 6.74% 893.04 | 2.33%
4 | Subordinated debts. 0.00 0.00% | 30,000.00 70.24%
44.7.4 Stock Ratios - Other Short-Term Liabilities
{Rs. In lakhs}
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2022
% %
s. Other of % Other of % %
Short total of % Short total of of
Na. term public total of total term pubfic total total
Ifabilities fund liabilities assets liabilities fund liakilities assets
1 448.42 10.86% 9.61% 3.23% 2,381.58 5.91% 5.58% 4.79%
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44.8 Schedule in terms of Paragraph 19 of "Non-Banking Financial Compan
Directians, 20167 as amended.

y - Nan Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Resarve Bank)

{Rs. in lakhs}

Particufars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 21, 2022

Liahilities

outstandi

Arnaunt Amaunt overdue

outstanding

Amount Amount everdue

{1) Loans and advances availed by the nan-banking financizl company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid
[a) Debentures : Secured
. Unsacured

{other than falling within the meaning of public depaosits)
(b) Defarred Credits
{c) Term Loans
fd) Inter-corporate loans and barrowing
{e) Commercial Paper
(F} Public Deposits
{g) Other Laans {specify nature)
{2) Break-up of {1}{f) sbove {Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):
(a) in the form of Unsecured debentures
{b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where thers is
a shortfallin the value of security
{c} Other public deposits

1,452.30 -
2,73740

365.33 -

1,761.62 -
37,5011.32 -

933.04

Assets

Amount putstanding

Amount outstanding

(3} Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [ather than
those included in {4) below]:

{a} Secured

{b) Unsecured

{4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting
towards AFC activities

{1) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors -
{a) Financial lease
{b) Operating lease
{ii} Stock an hire including hire charges under sundry debtors ;
{a) Assets on hire
{b} Repossessed Assets
{iti} Other loans counting towards AFC activities
{a} Loans where assets have been repossessed
{b) Loans other than (a) above
(5} Break-up of investments
Long Yetim investments
1. Guoted
(i} Shares
{a) Equity
(b} Preference
{ii} Debentures and Bonds
{iit) Units of mutual funds
{iv] Government Securitles
{v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted
(i Shares
{a) Equity
{b} Preference
{ii} Debentures and Bonds
{15} Units of mutwal funds
(iv} Government Securities
[v) Others [pleasa specify)
- Investment in AIF and Others

5882
3,087.37

27.78

7,059.66

6,811.54
34,208.49

116.64

6,812.43
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{Rts. in lakhs)

Assets

Amaunt putsianding

Amount outstanding

Current investments
1. Guoted

{i) Shares

{a) Equity

(b) Preference
{i1) Debentures and Bonds
{lil} Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v] Others {please speclfy)

2. Unguoted
(i) Shares

{a) Equity

(b} Preference
{il) Cebentures and Bonds
{ili} Units of mutual funds
{iv] Government Securities

(6} Barrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3] and (4) abowe :

Category Amount [net of provisians) Amount [net of provisions)
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecared
1 Related Parties
{a} Subsidiaries : . i i
(b} Companies in the same group - - -
{t] Other Related parties - - - -
2, Other than Related parties 85.33 3,066.66 6.826,80 3396751
85.33 3,066.66 6,826.80 33,96751
{7] Wnvestor group-wise classification of all investments in shares and securities:
Category Market Value f  |Book Value {Net of| MarketValue / |Book Value (Net of
Break up or fair Provisions) Break up or fair Provisions)
value or NAV walue or NAY
1. Ralated Parties
{a) Subsidiaries 33,129.09 7,438.79 9,186.22 7,132.4%
[b} Companies in the same group - - - -
{c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 18.83 9.94 - -
33,148.02 TA48.73 5,166.22 7,132.49
{8) Other information
Particulars Ameunt Amount
{l) Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties - -
{b) Other than related parties 11,48 389,08
{ii} Net Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties - -
{h) Other than related partles 11.48 252.64

tiii} Assets acquired in satlsfaction of debt
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45

451

(i)

{ixi}

v

)

{vi}

{vil)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Other distlosuresfinfarmation
Additional information required as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013:
Details of benami property held

No proceadings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding benami property
under the Benami Transactions [Prohibiticn) Act (45 of 1988}, as amended and rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against currant assets

The Company has taken averdraft facilities fram the banks against pledge of the securities af gold foan assets, The perindical
returns/statements filed by the Company with these banks are in dgreement with the books of accounts,

Witul defaulter

The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or leader as at March 31, 2023.
Relationship with struck off companies

There are no transactions made by the Company during the year with struck off companies as at March 31, 2023.
Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company had complied the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of number of layers of
Companies.

Compliance with approved schemels} of arrangements

During the year, no scheme of amrangements in relation to the Company has been approved by the competent authority in
terms of Section 232 ta 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the company.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

As a part of normal lending business, the company grants loans and advances on the basis of security/guarantee provided by
the Borrawer/Co-borrower. These transactions are conducted after exercising proper due diligence.

Other than transactions dascribed above, during the year the Company has not advanced or lend or invested funds {eithar
frem the borrewed funds or share pramium or any other sourees or kind of funds) to any person or eatity, including foreign
entity (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall {a)
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or {b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recarded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall {a} directly or indirectly lend or invest In
cther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (URimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any unrecarded transactions in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed
s Income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Transactions in crypto currency or virtual currency
The Campany has not traded ar invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31, 2023.
Revaluatlon of property, plant & equipment and intangible asset

The Company has nat revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) of intangible assets or both
during the year ended March 31, 2023.
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{xi} Registratlon of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companles

There are no charges or satisfaction which are pending to be registered with the Registrar of Companies as on March 31,
2023,

45.2 Other Statutory information

{ii  During the year, provislons of Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable to the Campany.

{#) There was no amount outstanding and due for transfer to the lnvestor Education and Pratection Fund during the year ended
March 31,2023,

{iii} The Company has no tong term contracts including derivative contracts having material foreseeable losses as at March
31,2023,

(iv) The Company has not received any whistleblower complaint during the year ended March 31, 2023.

{v)  There are no pending litigations as at March 31,2023 having impact on the financial position of the Company.

{vi} There are na sutstanding dues {including interest) of ‘Micro’ and ‘Small’ Enterprises pursuant to Micro, $mall and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {“MSMED Act’) as at March 31,2023 (March 31, 2022 — RH}. Accordingly, no disclosures
are required to be given under ‘MSMED Act’.

{vii} Thereis no Core favestment Company within the group as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

456 Hatios Analysis

Ratio ! Nurrierator | Denominator For;::‘:;::;;a, For;];.eo;.ezaorzz % Variance | Reason for Varlance
Capitaltorisk- | Tier 1+ Tier Assets Ratio 65.55 0.98 5,588.78 | The management
weighted I Capital Tier [+ Tier has infused the
assets ratio Capital capital  in the
{CRAR] Adjusted company

value of
funded risk
Tier ) CRAR Tier | CRAR ;:T:;ile On 54.94 0.49 13,153.06
Sheet item
and Adjusted
value of nen
funded risk
TierSICRAR | Tier WCRAR | 2ssetsi.e. Off 0.61 0.49 2439
Balance
Sheet item
; Liguidity High Quality | Next 30 days
Coverage Liqeric Net Cash Mot Applicable Not Applicable Not Appficable Not Applicable
Ratio Assets Qutflow ]

*The Campany is not required to comply with the guidelines on Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR] in Jine with Circutar dt.
04.11.2019 RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC {PD) CC. N0,102/03.10.001/ 2019-20 isswad by RBI.

47  Previous year figures have heen regrouped / rearranged to confirm current year presentation wherever necessary,

As per our report of even date atiached

For PJM & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Aceobitants
Firm Registratighi NG 0295820
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Independent Auditor's Report onthe Consalidated Financia: Statements
To the Members of Hindon Mercantile Limited

Opinion

We have audited the aecompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Hindon Mercantile Limited
(the Holding Company™) and its subsidiares (Halding Company and its subsidiares together refesred to
as “the Group™, whirh romprise the Consoidated Batance Sheet a5 at March 31, 2023 anc the
Corsoldated Statement of Proft and Loss ( nciuding other comprehensive neome) the Consclidated
Staterment of Changes in Equity and the Consclidated Cash Flows Statement Tor the year ther ended or
that date and a surrmary of significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information (e
Consolidated Financa Statements™)

In cur opnion and to the best of our informatior ang according £ the explanations given (o us, the
aforesaid consofidated finranmal stalemenrts give the :nformation required by the Comparies Act, 2013,
("t ACt”) it the manner sg required and give a true and ‘fair view v conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read win the Campares (Indan
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended (“1ad AS"} and other accounting principles generally
actepted in ingie, of the consolicaled state of affairs of the Group as at March 3i, 2023, of the
cansolidzaled profit and oither comprehensive income, cansalidated thanges in equily and its conscl:dated
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolideted financial statemerts in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs”) specified under socton 143010) of the Act, Qur respensibilities  under those
Standards are furthe: described in the Audtor's Responsbiizes for the Audit of the consolidated Snanoal
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Growp in accordance with the Code o Ehies
issued by Institute of Charlered Accountant of India ("ICAT"} together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of consolidated finarcial statement under the provisions of the Act ang the Rules
thereunder, and we have Tulfiked esur other ethical responsibitities in accordance with the requirements
and the ICAI's code of ethics, We Leteve that the audt evidence obtainsg by us s sufficent and
appropnasle to provide a basis for our apicion on the consolidated financial statements.

Infarmation other than the financial statements and Auditor's repart thereon

The Hoiding Company's Board of Directars is respansibic for the other information “he othor nformaton
cemprises the information incuded in the Directors Report and its Annexure but does ngt incude the
consotidated financiai statements ard our audilor’'s report thereon.

Qur oginion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other infarmation #nd we de not
exgress any form of assurance conciusion therson,

I connection with our audit of the consoligated financial statements, our respansibility is to read the
other infarmation and, ir aoing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the conseildated financial statements ar aur knowledge ottaincd in the audit or atherwise appears o be
materially misslated. Tf, bascd un the work we have performed, we conciuds thal there is » matenal
misstatement of tins other infarmation, we are required to report that faet. We have nothing to roport in
this regard.

H-1, 109, Garg Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi-110034
1166/25. Circular Road, Near SBI Bank, Rohtak, Haryana-124001



Responsihilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The Helding Cenmpany’s Board of Girectors is responsibe for the preparaticn ang presentaton of these
consolidated financial statements jn term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consofidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehenrsive Income, consalidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accardance with the actounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Ingian Accounting Standards) rules 2015 as amended

The respective Goard of Directors of the Companies ircludad in the roup are responsible for raialenance
of adequate accounting records i accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting fravds and other irregularities; seiection and application of
appropriate accounting puiicies; making Judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adeqguate internat financial controls, that wore oparating
effectivaly for ersuring the accuracy and compieteness of Lhe 2ccauriing records, relevant Lo the
preparation and presentation of the censolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view ant are
free frem meterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpcse of
preparation of the consolidated financiz| statements by the Directors of the Hotding Comgany, 25 aforesaid,

Ir preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Direclors of the Companies
Included in the Group are responsible for assessing the abilily of the respectjve Company to continue as a
§oing concern, disclosing, as applicabie, matters reiated to going concern and using the going concern
basis of acccurting unless management either intends to liquidate Lheir respective Company or to cease
operations, ar has no realistic akternstive but to do se.

The respective Baargd of Birectors af the companies inzluded in the Groun are responsibie lur overseeing
the financiai reparting process of tne Group,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consoclidated financial statemaents

Qur objectives are to obtain 7ezsonable assurance about whether the consohdated finanoal statements
as a whole are free from mater-a; misstaternent, whether due to frai:d or erron and to issue an Auditors
Report that incfudes oyr opmion. Reasonable assurance is g high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with SAs will always detect a materna; misstatement
when it exists, Misstatermcnls can arise Irom fraud or errer and are considered materiai if, irdividualiy or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of theseconsolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout Lhe audit. We also

+ Identify and gssess the risks of Matensl misstaternant of the consolidared financial statements,
whether due tu fraud or arror, desigr and perform audit procedures responsive to those rsks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sifficient and appropriaste to provide a basis for our opirion. The risk of
not detecting a material misscatement resuiling from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omussions, misrepresentations, or the gvorride af
mternal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in crder Lo design audit procedures
that are appioprate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X() of the Act we are alsg
‘espaasible for expressing our ozinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies which are companies frcorporated in India have adequate interna: financial controls with
reference to the censolidated financia! staternents and the operating effectiveness of such controts,

. Evaliate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the regsonatyeness of accounting
estimates and reiated disclosures made by management,

» Cenduge on the app-opriateness of management's Use of the going concern basis of areounting
and, based cn the audit evicence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt gn the ability of the Group to continue as a qoing concern.
If we conclude thal a materig| uncertzinty exists, we are required to draw attention in aur auditor's
fepoit to the rolated disclosures in the consulidated financia: statements or, if such disclosures are
inadcguare, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the



cate of our auditor's report, However, Futyre evenis or conditiors Mmay cause the Group Lo Cease to
continue as a geing concern.,

* Evaluate the overall Presentation, structure and content of the consolidated finanrial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consofidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair preszntation,

+  Cbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financia) information of the ertities or
business activitieg within the Group to EXPress an opinion on the censoiidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and perfarmance of the audit of the financiaf
statements of such entities Inctuded in the consolidated financial staterments of wheh we are the
indeperdent auditors, For the other entities included in the consolidated firancial statoments, which
have begn auditeg by other auditers, such other auditors rermain responsible for the direction,
supcrvisionand performance of the audits rarried ouf by the

. m. We remain solely responsitie for our gudit opinion.

We communicate with thase charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the indenendent auditorsg regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope ang timing of the audit ang significart audit findings, including
any significant deficiencias in internal ¢ontrof that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relcvant
ethical requirements regarding independgence, and to comumiunicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicatle, related
safequards,

Other Matters

1. We draw attenticn to Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements in which the Hoiding Company
and its subsidiarjes namely Mufin Green Finance Limited (formerfy  APM  Finvest Limited) and
Finteligence Data Sclence Private Limited deseribe the uncertamtics arising from the Covid-19
pandemic.

2. We did not audit firanciat statements of 1 subsiatary company whose financial statements/financial
infermation reflect totaf assets of Rs. 39,547.29 |akhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue cof Rs,
3,530.16 lakhs and net cash inflow of Rs. 791.39 iakhs for the year ended on that date hefore
cansclidation adjustments, as considered in the consolicated finarcial statements which have seen
audited by their respective independent auditors. The independent auditor's feports on the financia!
statement of these enlities have been furnisheq to LS and our epinior on the consclidated financia!
staternents, in so far ag it relates to the amounts ang disclosures included in respedct of these entities,
is based solely on the report of such audilors and the procedures performed by us as described in the
Auditor's' Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our repart,

3. The comparative financial infermation of the Group for the year onded March 31, 2022 incduded in
these consoiidated financia statements, have been prepared by the management after adjusting the
previously issued financial statements prepared in accordance with the Cornpzanies {Accounting
Standards) Ruies, 2006 to comply with Ind AS, The previously issued financial statements were
audited by M/s. RS> & Co., Chartered Accountants and thejr report for the financizi year ended March
31, 2022 dated September 30, 2027 expressed 2n unmodified opinion on these financial stalements.
Adjustments made to the previously issued comsolidated financiai statements to comply with Ind AS
have been audited by us. Qur opinion or the consoidated firancial statemerils s not modiSed in
respect of the above matters o the comparative fnandal information,

Qur cpinion is not modified in respect of these matrers,



Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

g

h

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of audit
reportson separate financiat staternents of its subsidiaries, we ‘epart, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

)

In cur opinion, proper bopks of account as required hy law relating to the preparalion of the
afaresaid consolivated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
Examination of those booles and the reports of the other auditors,

ihe Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Cansoldateg Statement of Prukt and Loss (nduding
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consoldated Statement of Changes in Equity and 'he
Consoldated Cash Fiow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
baoks of acesunt mairtained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidatod finarcial staterments comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Ar.

On the basis of the writlen regresentations received from the Directars of the Halding Company
a5 an March 31, 2023, ang taken on rocord by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
ard the regarts of tie statutory auditors of its subsidiary cormpanies incorporated in india,
nong of the Directors of the Group companies incorparated in India are disquaiified as un Maych
31, 2923, from being appointed ag Directar in terms of section 164 (2) of the Ac:,

With respect ta the adequacy of internal financial contrals with reference to financial
statements of the Halding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in Indiz andg
the operating effectiveness of surh controts, refer to our scparate Report 'n Annexure “A”

In our opinien ang according to the informasicn ard explanations given to us and based on audit
reports of the respective independent auditors ¢n separate financial statements cof such
subsidiary, the remuneration paid/payable by the Holding Company to its directar i5 in
ACCOrdance with the provisions of section 157 of the Act read with Schedute V to the Act. No
managerial remuneration has been paid by any subsidiary Lompany fo its directar during the
year.

With respect to the other mattars to te included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Ru'e
11 of the Companes (Audt and Auditors) Rules 2014, 1r gur opinon and te the best of cyy
information ang according to the explanaricns givan to us:

1
5

)

The Greup coes net have any pending Iiigations as at March 31, 2023 having fmpact on ity
consalidared finandial position,

The Group did not have any fong-term contracts inciuding derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable logsses,

There was no amount which are reguired to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in Incig,

O] The respective Managements of the Ho'dng Company and is subsidiary
companies which are comparies incorporated in Irdia, have represented that, to the
best of their knowiedge ang belief, no funds have been advanced or inaned or invested
{ether from barrowed funds or share premium or any cther sources o kind of funds)
by the Molding Company or ils subsidary companies to or i any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including fore.gn entities ("In:ermed.aries"), with the understancing,
whether recarded in writing or ortherwise, thar the Intermediary shatl, whether, directhy
or indirectly lend or ‘nvest other persons or entiticg dentified in any mannor
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Compaov or its subsidiary companies
C'Ultimate Beneficares™)y or provide any gua-antee, securiky or the Lke on behalf of ths



Ultimate Beneficiaries

il The respective Managements of the Halding Company and its subsidiary companies whirh
2re companies incorparated in India, have represented, that, tothe best of their knowedge
and belef no funds (which are matenal either individually or in aggregate) have bheen
received by the Holding company or its subsidiary companies from any persens) or
entity(ies). inc'uding foreign entites ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writng or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or its subsidiary companies
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lerd or invest in other persons or entiiss identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalr of the Funding Party (“Uitimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Uitimate Benefiziaries; and

# Based on reasonable azudit procedures adopted by us and ‘hose performed by the
auditorsof the subsidiaries incorparated in India, nothing kas come to our natice o other
auditors notice that has caused us to believe that the represcatations under sub-clause
() and (i) of the Rule 11(e) as proviced under GV and ivi(D above, contai: any
material mis-statcment

Wi In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given tu us, nn dividend
declared or pa:d during the year by the Group Companjes except by a Subsidiary, Mufin Green
Finance Limited {farmesly APM Finvaest Limited} paid during the year, tre Dividerd declared s
In accordance wilh section 1273 of the Act and REI Reguiation to the extent appiicable.

W With respect o the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi} and 4 of the Companies
(Auditer's Report) Qrder, 2020 (the "CARQ") issued by the Central Government In terms
of section 143(11) of the Act, to pe icuded in the Auditor's report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued oy us for
the Holding Company and based on our consideration of CARO reports of the Company's
subsidiaries issyed by their respactive Independent auditors, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARQ reports.

For PIM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratiqn_.ﬂq. 029582N
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CAVIKAS . - = -
(Partner) BN
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New Delhi
Junea 26, 2023
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Annexure Atothe Independent Auditor’'s Report

{Referred o in paragraph 1{f) under 'Resost on Otrer Legaf and Regalatory Requirerents’ Secticn of our report of even
date to the members of Hindon Mercantile Limited on the Consolidated Financiat Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023;

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub- Section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In coniunction with our aud:t of the torsolidated financial statements of Hincon Mercantile Limited (hereinafier
referrer to as the ‘Hoding Company'} as of and for the year ended March 31 2023, we have aidited the internal
financial contrals with reference to censolidaled Tnandal stztemonts of the BRolding Company and its
subsidiaries (the Hoding Company and its subsidiaries together reforred to as “the Group™), which are
companes incorporated .0 India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group, which are comganies ncorparated in
India, are respensitle for establishing and maintaining interna: Bnancial controls based on the internal contrct over
firancia: reporting oriteria established by the respective companies cansidering the essential components of internal
corlrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai Financizl Conuols Over Finangial Reooring issued hy the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL). These respansitbties inciude the design, umplementatian and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s poicies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and esrors, the accuragy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliabie financial infermation, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion or the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies
incorporated in I[ndia, internal financial controls with reference to consolidated finaricial stetaments based on our
audit. Wwe concucted eur audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Interngl Financa Controls Over
Franca: Reperiing (the "Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143{130) ¢f the
Act, 1o Lhe extent appiicable to an audit of .nternal financial controls. Those Standards and tne Guidance Note
require that we comp.y with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain regsonable assurance
about whether adeguate internal firancial controls with refzronce to these consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such contre's operated effactively in all material -espects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures Lo abtain aucit evidenze about the aceguacy of the internal fnarcial
controls vver financial reporting and their onerating effectiveness., Cur audit o internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of such internal financaal contro’s, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intarnal control
Lascd on the assessed risk. The precedures selocted depend on the auditor's judgment, inciuding the assessment
of the "isks of material misstatfement af the consolidated financial statements, whetrer due Lo fraud or evrer.

Wwe bebeve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence cbtained vy the respective
independent zuditors in terms of their reporis referred te in the Other Malter paragrapl: below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion en the internal financial controls with reference o thess
consolicdated firanciad statements,

Meaning of Internal Finangial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting

A company's inlernal financial control over financial reporting s @ process designed to provide 1casgnadle
assurance regarding the rehability of financia: reporting and the oreparalicn of financial statements far exlernal
qurpeses in accordance with generally acceotod accounting onnciples. A company's intemai inandciai conkrols over
financial regorting includes thase policies and procedures that (1) pertain te the mamntenance of recards that,
reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions anc dispositiors of the assets of the company; (2)
arovide reascnable  assurance thab transactions are recorded as necessary to permit greparation of conselidated
financial aternents in accordance  with generaliy acceptod accounmting principles,  and  that receipis and

H-1, 109, Garg Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi-110034
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expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and dirertors
of the company: and {3) provide reasgnable assurance regarding pravention or fimely detection of unuuthorized
acquisition, use, or dispusition of the COmMpany’s assats that could hove a2 material effoct on the finanriat
staterments,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitaticns of internal financial cortrons over financial reporting, 1ncluding the possibility of
collusion or improper nanagement override of controls, mate-ial misstatements due to error or fraug may occur
and not be detected, Alsa, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controds over financial reporting to
future perigds are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral aver financiz| regerting maoy become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
detericrate or for other reasops,

Dpinion

In our opinien, the Holging Company ang  its one of Subsidiary Company which are companics incarporated in
Indiz, have, maintained in ali materig! fespects, adequate interaal firanciai controis with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such intermal financiat controls with reference to consolidated finarcial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, bused an the internai controls over finascia! reporiing  critoria
establishcd by the respective Lompanies considering the assenbiai compenents of such internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internzl Financiai Controls Over Financial Reporting issyed by the Institure of
Chartered Accountanls of Indiz (“the Guidance Natio™)

Other Matter:

Our report under section 143(3%() of the Aclon the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with refergnce tn consvlidated financial staterments af the Holdirg Compary, i so far as it ralates to 1
subsidizry company lorming part of the Group, which s comnany incorporated in India, (s haseg ¢n the
cerresponcing report of the auditor of such sibsidiary ircerporated in india.

The Group include 4 subsidiary companies incorporated in India which are exermpted under section 143(:) of
the Act and therefare, auditors haye not expressed their opinion on Internal Financial Contrais Over Financial
Reporting with reference to financia) statements of those Compariss,

For PIM & Associates
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No; 029532\

CA VIKAS

(Partner)

Membership No. 535712

UDIN - 23535712BGPQPD2457

Naw Deoihj
June 26, 2023



HENDUR MERCANTILE LIRUITED
CIR: U343000L1585PLCGT1TSS
CONSOUIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 3

R it Lakhs)

As pt As ar
SMa.  Paticulers Nate No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
ASSETS )
1 Flnanclal Gssets
at Cask 24d cass aguivaients 4 3147 ~1I1.08
oh  Bak balanees atier thar caui & cash equivalents 3 11,254,112 550 00
&t Rareiwables
-Trade Reccivahles é 3146 N
-LRher Regwivables 7 33,60
d Lomns 8 20075 4
el Investrents k] 437 32
fl Cther finarcial assets in 25557
Total Financial syzety 14 278,14 45,433.72
H  Non-hinandiad Agsets
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: URAZ0GDL1985PLC021785

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROEIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDEL MARCH 31, 2023

Fer the year ended

{15, in Lakhs)
For the year ended

So- - Partieutars Note No. March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Rewenue from opevations
{il In~erest income 24 10.828.07 7.561.54
[ii) Fee ang cormmiss:an income 25 55.59 201.42
it} {Ithee oparating revanue 28 B0.26 B.AT
I Total Revenue from operations 10.963.92 177163
(0 Qther incame 27 592,13 IBLLD
- Tolak Income [+ 11,556.05 %.153.65
Expenses
i} Finenge casts 23 463182 4,788 58
{1} Fees and commission upiense 29 24777 123301
it} Impairmien: of financial instrurents 30 32683 L3115
liv] Zmaployz=e henofits expenses it 141t 42 S582.60
|v} Depracianior and ameo:divdioe 12 18753 3762
twi} Other gupenses 2 102714 74940
¥ Total Expenses 10,062.35 7.677.71
¥ Profit before puceptional items and tax [ 1,493.70 475.98
Wl Excrptions| «tems - .
Wi Profil befare tas [W-Wi) 1,493 .70 47568
VL Tax axpemse 3£
I¥ Corrend fax 552k €013
2 Tan reiated to sariae year 54,63 {14.35)
3 Deferred tax 245.08) 96 6L}
Tetal Tau Expenses 261.81 {45.92)
WL Proftf fossd for the perog (VIk-vID) -
Xt #rofi/ llosshhiom discortinuing operatinns
£l Tax euperse of disconbinued aperatisns - -
KHI - Frofitd (buss! from disconyinaed cperatiens (afrer taet(%-X1 - -
I Profitfor e year (Wi-vit 1,231,849 521.8%
¥ Dther Comprehensive tnpame
A1) rems that will not be rectassified ko prufit or fosg 12 93] 081
AHNCoMe tax relshicg to items that will ngt be reclassivied 13 profit gr loss 35 075 D7)
Sub Total A} {2.23} 0.60
EYithoms zhat will be reclassificd to srofit or toss
in Income ta ralating to itermns that will be teclasafied Lo profit ar loss
Sub Totai 8) - -
Tetat Other Comprehensive Incone (A+B) {2.22} Q.60
M Total Comprehensive income for the year {IX+X) 1,234,467 522.39
Profit for the year attributaile to;-
8 Owniers of the Company 887.16 567.45
£ Non conk:eiling interest 383.40 [45.37)
Other comprehensive income attributable to:-
a) Dwners of the Comysany {1.3R] .54
3j keon controlliag inberest {0.55) 0.06
Total nompreherive income attributable to:-
21 Ownirs of the Cempany 885.80 568.00
b1 Hen contrelling in“erest 3682.74 {45.51)
Xit  Earnings per Equity Share {Face value Rs. 10}
Rasic {Ra.} 42 BED 4 87
U -uted {As. 42 &.80 4.87
The accompanying notes are an Integeat part of the consolifated financial staterne s 1-53
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HINDGN MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U39300DL19E5PLCD2 1785

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2623

{Rs. tn Lakis)

Fartivulars

Yaar ended
March 31, 10723

Weas enled
March 312022

Cash flow from operating actiwities

Profiz baford tax

adjustmers for :

inte-est expeees on leass Labilitics
Nepreciat-ne ana amartizatlos

‘i ngnt or fingengial iwstrumengs

WCainyfines on sae of fiied gisets

et gan ar. zale of invespmenTs

Cperating profit befare working capital changes
ilhereaseidoeeate in trade ~ecemnatics
IIperease fcesreass \n cther rece vatses
lincressa;fecrease tn Eani Salances otner than s¢st Bocash equivalerts
fdrcrease inlaans {5et)

Increase/ decrease) it firancial labiites

iRereases decraaie] in provis ons

Irareases [ decrease in ot Aon- S clal liabilitie:
{ncrease)/deerease in other annefinancal Assars
[increase)fdecreane in oiner fnanctal assnes

Cash generated Fromfused in) aperations

Direct tax patd 1net)

Net cagh generated from/{used in) perating activilies [A}

Cash flow from investing activitles

Furehase af inyesrments

Procesds from sale of ivestirenils

Puirchate af icvestments in sussidisries

Eoan givar

Sabe of propery. plant & equipment

Purchase of property, plant L anaipreem

Purznase of lnrangible asseis uncsr geveloprment
Furshase of intangitls asiees

Met cash generatad from/fused in] investing ackivities |B)

Cush fow o financing activithes

Areeerds fram Borrowings fotrer than debt securites;
Regayinged of Borrgwings lother than debt securkias)
Areceeds fram Subcrdicated Dehrs

Fraceeds faui eguily share cagital

Share iss e pxpenses

Praceess fom dobr seciritias

Davidend paid

Fayment of lease lakvites

Nt cash generated from/f{used in) Anandng actvitles (C)

Net incredsef{dmcrease] in cash acd cash equivalants [A+B-{)
Cast a1 cash equivalents 3t 1e beginning of the your

Cast and Cash Equiia enfs of subivaries ol the tme of acguisition
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar

Lomponanis of cash and Lash aguivaients:
Cavh o1 hand
Balanes with banks
- @1 sdrrent doeaunts
= Depoats with Bank havirg origose: matarily ot 255 than 3 months
Lol Wallons
Total cash and cash equivaients

L4370 L1558
Lo 4.1g
187 51 3767

4.87 13135
704 .
{5.38)

1,692.43 rag.0%
141 {03.50)
33.77) .

{10,664.13) {ee.0m
16 70063 14,16}
32397 13,800 52
14.24 151
FAT %R )]
3808 11,072 52)
253,71 1262 47)

9,470.30 {75¥6.61)

{32484 260,214

§,B85.46 17,596.43)
Erdaa 1398.95)

(706245

{16040}

1563 -

752 145,121

121 37 [$ -3 N
1113 {12026}
51103 {8.574.88)
1361012 18,402.58
18,210.72)

20,7300 .00}

8.175.21 4159.9%

32270
174,30 (1754

{7,351.78) 13,395, 21
7.0454.8C 15,058 55)
BL010Y 1,152.06

- 2.064.51
4,155.89 112109
5747 9573
241553 102568
5635
0.7z .
3.474.77 1,121.08

Boote.

L Statemenl of Jauh flows has beer orenared uncer the indirest merhes 25 ser a0 s the nd A5 7 - "Shatema 4t 6° Cash Flows®.

I The Cack T iow from o perating, wwesting ant finarcing actrvities atber voosidenng the impsc: of acc siston of sibsdiarer

The acernpanying #otes are an integral part of the consolldaxed financal statements

As per sur repict of ever cake atfached
far PIM & Assodates

Chartered Aceqrntants
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Gate : June 26, 7073
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HINEON MERCANTIHLE LIMITED
CIN; U343GIDL10RSPILEG21785
COMSOLIATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ERIED MARCH iL 208

|Rs. in Lakhs}
A EOUHTY SHARE CARITAL
Lgueby sliarwy of RS, 20 each 5oed, fubszribed ard fully pasd-Lp
Particulars ) ] ) Nurmber Amount
As ak Agrif D1, 2021 $,15,20,925 1.123.00
Add: Issued during tne year 13 71 1A IR
As at March 31, 1022 1,27,92.638 127956
&de :1ssued during the yasr 26.00,000 300 30
As At Merch 31, 2033 1,472.92,633 147326
B, DTHER ENLNTY
’ Reserves and Surpius
Otner liems of Total atker equity  Other equiry
Reserve Fund inpairment Other attributable to  attobtssle to
Particulars Capitat Reserve w's 45 1C of AR :Er:‘:\::: ::::II::: Reserva Lomprehenslve the awnes gf the Non controliing
Act, 1934 ncarme Lomgany interast
Balance as at April 01, 2071 . 236,87 1,504,104 757.82 0.y - 2,899.46 -
MNog-Jond rolling Infaest on Acquest on - - . - - 1,.504,25
Equ 1y Share iasumd ducing oy vear 810 15 - - 2.510.15 .
Profit fur e yegr - SEY.45 . . 56745 [45.57]
Capiral Aete~ve on Avguisitior 2330 - - 23.37 -
Trarsfar from Reta red Ca-mings [hote EARIEH] - 13377 - - i . 144,15 13z
Transter tairsoaiomens Regarve - - - {3.34) - - §o.26} 12.37}
Transter to Reserse Furgd . - - o { A . . [138.77) -
ArEmeadira menl of the dat:izd benafits pian inet) - - - - - G.5e £.54 .08
Bolance as at M srch 33, 2022 2437 9564 4,014.1% 318114 611 0.54 5,600,495 3.318.74
Hen-Contralling tnleest on Auguson - - - . 1.803.3%
Fausy Shares lssuad du:ing the year 424188 - - 4,897,845 998
Prafit far {42 ygs- 827 15 - ZB7.LE IET. 4
Transfer fram Hets v Earmings (Note 21 NIEY - 17743 - 1¢7.43
Trarsfer ta IMpairmart Reserve - - - [177.43) - - {14783}
Transfer ta Raserss Furd - . - . - -
Hemngacuiement of the defined beret.as pian nett - - - - {1.35) (L35} -
Dalance 35 at March 31, 2013 23.37 573.07 8.256.03 157096 611 [G.82) 10,728.62 4,514,685
The actomgary:rg rates sre an inlEg Dl part af the corsciicated iraagial statemer - 1z
Au gt oar reaset of even date attached
Far PIM & Acsodates FUR ARD ON BEKALF OF THE BOARD OF MRECTORS
Chariersd Aceowntaids
Firm Registrazun Na. 0295828 ] !
W b B PRI : :
‘t J#w'u L s z"" 4 -\ T
Wikas D;ﬁa . ‘M—u\!\'/ ; P
Fantwer Tanwl Jawa y;rﬂ'brwp‘f#;:éh Kapil Garg Luw Khanna
Memyership No, 535712 Chief Finaniciel OFier “TCaenpary Suwretary Managing Direstor Crrwctor
Place ; Delhl M, ko, 528236 M. ho. AdEEES 5&!‘1;9;?1598? Dl 37723408

Date ' lune 16, 2073



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300DL1585PLC021785
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
4  Cash and cash eguivalents

Particulars Asat Asat
Rarch 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Cash an and 257.47 ' 95 /3
Balances with banis:
—in current accounts 2,416.53 1,025.3%
— Deposits with Bank having ariginal maturity of less than 3 months SO0L0% -
Digitat Wallers p.72 -
Total 3,174.77 1,121.08
Bank Balancas other than Cash and cash equivaients
) ' As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2022

Carmarked Batance w:th Bank

March 31, 2023

Unctabmed Dividend account 549 .
Deposits with Bank having ariginal maturily of more tharn 3 menths 11,258.64 SO0.00
Total 11,254.13 5%0.00
Trade Receivables

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Receivables considered goud-Securad

Receivables considered good-Unsecured

Aeceivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk
Receivahle Credil Impaired

Receivahies from saie af thwestment

Less' impaireent Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)
Tatal

54.45 12237

54,46 122.37

Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2023

Particulars

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Year 2-3 Year

T Ty

Total

Rocaivables considered good Unsecured
Total

54.46

54,46

54.46

- 54.46

Trade Receivahles ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2022

Particulars

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Year 2-3 Year

RO T

Total

AL

Reteivables considered good-Unsecurad
Tatal

122.37

122.37

122.37

122.37

Other Raceivablos

Particulars

March 31, 2023

As at As at
March 31, 2022

-Undisputed Cther Receivables considered good

- Undisputed Other Receivables - considered daubtfu!

- Disputed Othar Raceivables - considered good

- Bisputed Dther Recaivables - considersd doubtiut
Lesa: impairment Loss AHlowance (Expected Credit Loss)
Total

33.77

{017}

33.60 -

Other Receivables ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2023

Particulars

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Year -3 Year

RO LT Ty

e

Total

- Undisputed Dthet Receivables - considered good

- Lingisputed Other Recelvables considered doubtful

- Disputed Qther Receivables - considered good

- Disputed Other Receivables - considered doubtiul
Lass: impairment Loss Alawance (Expected Credit Loss)
Total

33.77

{0.17)

337/

{0.17)

33.60

. 33.60

Cther Receivables ageing Schedule 8s on March 31, 2022

Particulars

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Year 2-3 Year

b LS B i E - L e

Total

Undispaied Other Receivablés - considered good
- Undisputed Gther Receivables - comsidered doubtful
- Dispured Cthar Receivadies - considared good
- Gisputed Qther Receivables  considered doubtful
Less: Impairment Loss Mlowance {Expacted Credit Loss)
Tota!l

Mo debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any af thein either severally or joirthy with any other person ar
inclutling limited Lability partnerships {LLRs), private companies in which any direclor iy 3 parter of 3 di:ectq‘r'o'r.'a member,

debTs duc by firms

;




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U3430001 1985PLCD21785
NCTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

g Loans
) As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At Amorised Cost
(4} Term Loans

Loans againsk Vehicles#

Loans against Gale/Gald Jewellery {Refer note 8.2)

Laans against Land/Properties

Leasing

Loans 1o Corporates#

Laans to Staff

Other toans*

Totat Grass (A) (1)

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance

Totat Net [A] (5)

{B) {i} Secured by Tangible Assets
(it} Secured by Intangible Assets
(iii} Unsecured

Total Gross (B} {I}

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance

Tatal Net (B) {l}

(O} Loans in ludia

(a} Public Sector
b} Gthers

Tetal Gross {C) (1)

Less: impakrment Loss Allowance

Tatal Net {C} ()
ik Loan Dutside India

Less: impairmant Loss Allowance

Tatal Ket (T) (11}

Total MNet {C) (1) & (1)

22,637.59 2,568,72
2,135.90
35.66 236.67
3,666.94 -
b 0 44741
18.72 5.11
3,087.37 34,741.64
29,406.28 46,135.45
330.92 354 .46
29,075.36 45,720.99
73,331.66 11,388.70
6,074.62 34,746.75
29,406.28 46,135.45
330,92 354.46
26,075.26 45,780.99
29,406.28 46,135.45
29,406.28 26,135.45
330.92 354.46
29,075.36 45,780.99
29,075.35 45,750.99

*ineluding loans repayable on demand

#secured by hypothecation of veniclesfimmavable property of the borrower. Mortgage deets are yet ko be executed by Mufin Greer Finance 11d.

(Formerly APM Finvest Ltd.]

8.1 Loans granted to promotors, Directars, Key Management Personnels ang related parties

a. iepayable on demand
b. without specifying any terms ar period of repayment
¢ Others

B.2 Gold/Gold Jewellery are pledged as security for overcraft taken tram bank (Refer note 16)
9 Investments

Pasticulars Face vaiue per Nos As at Asat
share March 31, 2023 MWarch 31, 2022
~ Investments In Mutual Fund
SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund 1,000 35,121 999,95
SR Corporate Bond Fund 22,496,255 29599
Investment in Private Companies 127.33 .
Totai 427.32 999.95
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 42732
Market value of quoted investments 42732
Aggregate amount af unguoted investments - -
Impairment Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)
10 Cther financlal assets
. As at Ac at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest accrued but not due 1.58 4,60
Security Deposits* 5654 101.53
Advances Lo Staflfothers 3937 (.04
Insutance claim receivables - 42.90
Othar receivablas 171,11 670.20
Total 258.60 g§19.32

Note: Other Receivables inchede Rs. 200 lakhbs paid for aliotment of units of SBI Mutual Fund - Magrum Low Duration Fued gn March 31, 2072 which
were alloted on April 04, 2022 to subsidiary, Mufin Green Finance timited (formerly APM Finvest Limited)
*includes Rs. 75 kakhs given as cash collateral against loar from Mon-Garking Financiat Institutions as on March 31, 2022.




HINGON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CiN: U34300DLI98SPLCOTLITES
NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

11 Peferred tax assets/(liabllities} inet)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Deferrad tax liabifity (A) - 0 0.14
Deferred tax azset {B) F72 28 90.28
Deferred tax asssts/{liabilities) inetj {refer note 36} C= {B-A} 27327 90.14
As at Aj at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred 1ax liability (A] - 9.53
Deferred tux assed (B) 5010 3.08
Deferred tax asssts/{liabilities) (net} {refer note 36} D= [B-A) 60.10 {6.55}
Geferred tax asssts/{liabilities} (net) {refer note 36) (C+D} 332.37 83.59

FETTRRETEIN RN RRNEETNT s spare is intentionally left blank*rrerEervr e s e s e s e

s



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs)
12. Property, Plant and Equipmer, Right 1a use Assets & Other Intangible Assets as at March 21, 2023

Gross Block {At cost) _Accumslated vnuqmﬁmwmo:\banzammoz, } Net Block o
Particulars As at Addition on " Geduction/ As at B at Addition an Disposals/ Ar at As at As at
) o Addition . L For the Year X

April 01, 2022  consolidation Sale March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 consolidation Adjustments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A.Praperty, Plant and Equipment ’ .
Furpiture gnd fixtures 8.8G - .86 3.37 - 4z - 437G 407 .49
vanicles £33 - .38 251 - 0.05 - 1186 0.2z 027
Office Eruipiments, 16.31 0.20 .18 13.6% £.08 2.58 (13 238 7.83 2.95 3.1z 863
Corrputers 9424 5.50 37.44 . 13843 15.37 5.04 5756 - 78.87 59.54 A
Sub Total 119.83 5.89 40,63 1363 153.73 25.53 6.07 62.01 782 8eH? 66.95 23.81
Previous Year 2E8a 5.86 &s.13 119.83 7.67 <53 13.34 - 26.53 93131 2117
B. Right t0 use Assats
Office Premisas 99.67 279.95 - 7R3 16.61 - 6343 - B[ 262 .89 £3.00
Sub Total 99,67 279,26 - 378.93 16,61 -  69.43 . BA.04_ 252.89 83.06
Previows Yoar B - - - - o - -
C. Dther Intangibie Assets
SoHwiares 2306 (6.00] 116 34.16 5ER {0.00] S6.20 &:.56 22508 7760
Sub Total £3.06 10.00} 1.0 - T 8316 5.56 {0.00] 56,10 61.66 22.50 77.50
Previous Year 410 525 12616 3018 23 08 3.77 15,67 771 215 3 5E 7750 0.33

!l&'l‘ltﬁ’&lbilﬂ'lﬁ!ﬂuﬂ—im Mﬂmﬂm mM wzﬂm:ﬂmoam:‘ wm.wﬂ &—m:-_—nil’**iﬁﬂli.*l‘.lliﬁl‘tl!




HINDQN MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300DL1S8SPLCO21 TRS
NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

a

b

Property, Plant and Equipment & Dther Inta ngible Assets as at March 31, 2022

Gross Hlack Depregiation/Amortisation Net Black .

Particulars Ar at Addition on Addition Deduction/ As at As at Additien on For the Year Disposals/ As gt As at As at

Aprit 01, 2021 ronsolidation Sala March 31, 2022 Aprit 01, 2021, copsolidation Adjustments March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Praperty, Plant and Equipment i
Farniture apd fixtures 5.0 368 - .85 1.88 - 1,48 - 337 540 3.3t
vehicies .38 - - - (.32 11 - - c11 0.27 0.7
Dffice Cquipments 1504 .14 1.13 16.31 i.15 014 6.3 7.07 B.53 Ts.En
Compsers 822 5.72 20.34 - 424 453 S.38 L.47 - ..pm.w.\. 7em A7
Sub Total T 5.86 85.13 e 115.83 767 552 13.35 - 2653 93.31 2137
8. Right to use Assets
E3Tice Drermises - - G957 - 20.67 - 1661 - 1661 43 06 -
Sub Total T R 99,67 - 50 67 . . 16.61 . 16.61 83.06 .
C. Other Imtangible Assets
Softweres &.10 5298 120,16 5413 mw._u.: 377 15.67 7 2150 77.50 033
Sub Tatal 410 52.98 12016 94,18 mu.o.n_ 3177 mm.mﬂ 1.7 21.59 T7.50 _u:.w...w|

Mo proceed:ngs hove baer initistad or are gending against the Group as a1 March 31, 2023 for ho

The Group have not reva:usd ity nroperty, giant and equisment linchiding

right of use assets} or intangibie assets gr borh during the year ended March 31, 2022

FEERTETV RS ER ARk bk b T i space is mJ‘nﬁ:nrDE_—.—. lot bignk* " ttrmsssicsrxsompnnrann

g benami property ander the Benami Trarsart: o iPraninition) Act (4% of 1988), as amendec and -

wli made thereur der,



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: L343000L1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs)

13 Intangible assels under development

Particulars Asat As at
articuia March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Softwares under development 1/9.12 14715
Total 179,12 147,15
13.1 The deveispment of the scftware commenced during the year, = scheduded for comalet:on gt the cnd ot the Hinancial vear 2023-24.
14 Other Non-Financial Assets
) ' As at As at
Particul
arucuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with Gigeernment dathoities ER3£3 160.27
Tas Credits/ Refung - 18418
Advances g Jtners 343.96 L055.05
Bl epiid Exprnses 357.93 1.08
Total 1,364.52 1,399,538
15 Dobt Scrurities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 Margh 31, 2022
Al fumorliaed Covt
1,163 550 fedeemable non convertibie debenturas {NCD) of Rs 50 sacn 5.827.19 -
Total 5,827.10 -
MNotes:
[t} Detanls of debanture foidory
Amount
Name Numbers
B . RS Inlakhs)
BAN SREL 5,31,775 2,908.88
Masals Investrments SARL 581775 1,908.88
ti) interest payable @ 11.40% p.a., sermi anrually on february 15 3n6 AUgST 15 £a¢h year suBject 16 change as per change in cate of wilhbulding tex Datc of matusity - Fenruaty 15,

2029,

{iii) Tre Debentures are secured by way of hypothecation of certain loars and ather assels of the Company w0 tae axtent of their sustanding amounts snder the NCD.
{iv) The ahowve NCDs have Deer issued in Incian Rupee. The sepayrments of the principal and interest 2re also 1o be made ir ind'an fupes.

{v} Debt securities :n india @ N (March 31, 2022 : Nilj, outs-de Incia . Rs. %,827.1% lakhs (Marcl 31, 2072 - Nily

{u:) The asave ameunt 15 net of pracessing fee of Rs. 88,41 fakhs to be zmortised in future,

{v:i) incildes interest asorued bt 101 due amounting to Rs. 77.85 lakhs as al Ma:ch 21, 2023 [March 31, 2022 - Nili

fuiil) In terms of Rute 18(7)(b) of the Companias {Shaie Capital and Debentures) rules 2014, 25 arended, no cebernture ragemnptics resarve has been cresled by the Company under
secthcn 7141 of the Campanies Azt, 2013 as the debizntures have een vl through orivate placament.

16  Horrowings {other than Debt Securities)
At Amortised Cost

Farticutars As at Ad at

March 31, 2023 March 3%, 2022

Secured '

Term Loan

- Frgmr Non-Banxing Finaacdial instirutions 5,348.10 1.857.33

Overdraft

- From banks 12,0184.55 JLEREE

Unsecurad

Term Loan

- Leans frem Others . 427

Repayable on Dermand

- Lo feom s elated partes 405,18 1.1

- koans from Corparata 332277 7,508,259

Tatal 20,862.05 10,251.52

Out of Abgve

- Ity India FEGT LS 10,251.583

- Catside ‘ndia -

Total 20,862.05 10,251.93

o ¥
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161 Nature of Security

#  Term Loans frore Nen-Baniirg Finandial institutions are secured against hypathecation of giesei and futare seceivables, cash cotlataral of 85, 25 lakhs ard personst guarantee of
Directars. The same are repsvable in equal nstalments from 12 to 18 manths.

L Periadival returns filed with the banks in respect of overdraft facilites are i arrangemart with books of account.

¢ Term loan of 1309 fskhs is perding for disbursement from 'REDA out of the sanchioned limit of Bs SU0G fakbs, repaysbic in 20 equated quarterly instalime nt of Rs. 56 :akh each 2'ong
with the isterest.

d  The Group has duly Bled Reglstration of charges and satisfaction of charges with the Regisirar of Companies, as applicanle. Further, there are ng charges or satistaction which are
pend:ng to be registered with the Registrar of Cempanies gy on March 31, 2023

e The Graup s nat dedlared wilft delfaulted by say bank, Heancia: institetinn or lenger 35 21 March 31, 2523

f  The Group have uttised the borrowings taken from the ban<s/finangial institutian for the purpose for which laan was taken.

16,2 Terms of Repayrment of Borrowings {ather than Debt Securities) as at March 31, 2023

Overlveartad Overd Yearto5s

Particulars Upto 1 Year Over 5 Years Totai
Years Yearg

Secured

Term knans

- From diprn-Banklng Firarcial ngtisetions 141007 2,58A.30 79858 - 4,500.00
Rare of interest (RO 9.55-25.75%

- From Non-Banking Flnancial ingtitutions 10Y7.58 . - 1,G57.58
Rate of Interast [RO4E: 14-15.75%

- From Cther farty 2000 1,604.60 1,500.0C 6000 4,000, 00
Fate of nterest {RCH): 10.70%

Owverdraft

- From banis B, 734 .80 . - - 8,734.80
RO 5,23-11%

Mnsecured

Ferim Loans

- Loans fram Dtfers - - - -
R I-18%

Repayable en Demand
leans kkum Related Parties 405,18 - . . 40518
A 1213%

- Loans from Cocporates 160.00 2,222.22 - - 2,322.22
RO 10-18%

Total 1187253 6, 208,52 2,358.68 &00.00 21,075.78

Fracessing Fee (Ind AS Adjustrment) {217.73}

Totad 20,862.05

Terms of Repayment of Borrowings {ather thar Debt Securities) as at March 31, 2022 {Rs. in Lakhs]

Particudars Upte I Year Overl¥earto3 Over3Yeartos Qwver & Years Totai

Years Years

Secured

Term Lazans

- From Kon-Barking Financal Institution: 1,588.14 55.88 . : 1.678.62
Rate of Interest (RO 14-15 75%

Cwerdraft

- From banis 993.04 - - : 453.04
RGI: §-11%

Unsecured

Terrn Loans

- Leans rom Others 92,27 : - - §2.27
R0 15-18%

Repayatde oax Qerrand

- Loans from Related Parties 1.00 - . - L.
R 12-13%

- Loans from Corparates 7.508.25 - . - 7,508,239
ROI: 10-18%

Total 10,1822 E9.ERB - - 10,2?2.62

Procassing Fee {ind A% Adjustment} {20.7

Total 1(,251.93
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7

18

Subprdinated Debts

Farticutars As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31, 2027
Unsecured ) i
At Amortised Cost
Torm Loan
- Loans from: Carpoarates - 30.000.30
Tatal - 30,000.00
Terns of Repayment of of Subsrdinated Liabilites as ac March 31, 2023
Particukars Upto 1 Year Over1Yearto3  Over3Yearto$ Quar § Yours Toral
Yeirs Years
Unsecured
Term Loan
- Lears frem Lorporates - - - -
RGI: 15%
Total - - . - -
Terms of Repayment of of Subordinated Liabitites as at March 31, 2022
Particulars Upto ) Yesr OueriYeartod Qver3Yeartos Ouer § Years Total
Years Years
Unsecured
Term Loan
- loans frons Corporates - - 360,006 D0 30,000.00
RO 15%
Tatal - - 30,000.00 - 30, GIKL L0
Qther Finaaciaf Liabifities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 023 March 31, 2022
nterest acorued B not dad an borrowing G4.76 36 22
Lrane Ligbiitias 299.56 34.62
Salary and Other benetits payab'e 135993 220
L:ahilty fon Fxpenses 3358 105.42
Securtty Depost 35305 217,04
Advances from others 1477k 1.46
Unelamed Ciwidan:d 2.4 -
Tutal 143117 802,71
Thers was no amcunt oitstending and due for wansfor w the 'miestor £ducation and Frotectien Fund durieg the year anded March 31, 7073 '
Current Tax Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Frowdsion tor inceme-tax {net of advance rax) 563 Bh.hd
Total 563 8654
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20

21

22

22.4

226

23

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Provisians

Particulars As at March 11, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Provisions far Empleyes Benefits '
- Gratuity Payable (Refer note 35) 11.39 1.35
- Compensated Absence 7.18
Tota! 18.58 1.36
Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 _As at March 31, 2022
Statutory dues payable 178.62 25.41
Advance fram customers 12.92 -
Total 7592.54 25.41
Equity Share capitat

Particulars As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Autharised share capital

2,50,00,000 {March 31, 2022 2.50,00,000) equity shares of Bs, 10 each 2,500,00 2,500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
1,47 82,034 {March 31, 2022: 1,27,92,634) equity shares of Rs. 10 sach 1,4749.26 1,279.26

Reconcitiotiorn of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
At the beginming of the yeor 1,27,92.634 1,12,20,025
Issted during the year 20,041,000 15,741,708
Oulstanding at the erd of the yoar 1,47,82,634 1,27,52,634

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has anly one class of equity sharas having par value of Rs, 10 per share [March 31, 2022: Rs. 10 per share). Each holder of
equity shares is entitied to ane vote per share. All equity sharehalders are have right to get dividend in proportion to paid up value of each

2quity share as and when declarud.

i the event of Lguidation of the Company, the hoiders of equity thares will be enlitled to receive remaining asse

ts of the Company, after

distribution of all preterential amaunts. The distribution. will be in propartion te the number of equity shares held by tha shareholders.

Details of sharehalders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Lompany

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Name of the Shareholder

Hos, % of holding MNos, % of halding
Mr. KapHl Garp £2,60,668 35.56% 43,41,848 34.81%
M. Rajat Gayal 25,02,434 19.62% 30,95,4458 16.65%
Resilient Innavations Pvt. Ltd. 15,18,200 14,948, 16,218,200 19.97%
his, Surabhi Setia 6,753,488 4.56% 674,455 5.BO%
Mr. Sandeep Jain 4,585,535 1.96% 5,044,335 3.36%
Ms. Neha Agarwal ¥ U6 858 5.39% 7,496,858 1.368%
Finrnen Advisars Pvt. Lid. 332,248 2.25% 257248 2.47%

Detaifs of the shares held by Promoters in the Company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % change in
Name of the Promoter
Nas. % of holding Nos. % of hotding  shareholding
tir. Kepil Garg 52 GO,E69 35.56% 43,41,548 34.51% 0.75%
hir. Rajat Goval 29,02,454 15.62% 3€,96.448 2b.65% -7.03%

The Funds raised by the company from proferentiat allsteent/ peivate prscement of shares have been used tor tha

funds were raisad.

The Company has afloted 20,100,000 fully patd up equity shares during the vear ended on 311 March'23

purpesas for which 1ha

Other Equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2622

Reserve Fund u/s 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 573.0%/ 395 64
Securities Premium £356.03 401411
Impairmeant Reserve A . .11 511
Retained Earnings Eéf,mﬂ,xg 1.870.56 116113
Capital Resarve P 23.37 23.33
Other ttems of Other Comprahersive Incame K (0.82) 0.54
Total Other Equity 10,728.52 5,600.99
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23.1
o

Mature and Purpases of Reserves;

Reserve Fund u/s 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934

The Greup Companies created a reserve fund pursuant to seclion 45-IC of the Reserve Baa of India Agt, 1934 by transferring amount not Jess
than 20% of its net profit every year as disciosed in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend declared wherever
applicable. Wilkdrawal from ths ceserve is affowed enly after obtaining permission from the RBL.Reserve fund related to subsidizries are
disclosed on post uguistion profit in proportion of the shareholding of the Holding Company amount is disc/nsed post acguistion,

Securities Premium:
his Reserve represents the premium on issua of #quity shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companiag sct,
2013,

Retained Egrnings:
Retained earnings comprise of the profits of the Group carned till date net of distributions and other adjustments,

Other items of Other Comprehensive incoma:
Gther Comprehensive lncome includes Remeasuremert of Lhe datingd beasfits plun {ret),

lmpairment Reserva:

impairment Reserve comprise the amount of difference betweer the loss alfawance on loan assets a5 required under lisd AS-109 and the
provision required as per prudential norens of Aeserve Bank of india on Income Recogrition, Asset Classification and Provisiaming [IRACP}
appropriated froen the net profit in tevms of RE notification. No withdrawals are permitted f-am this resarve without pror permissian of the
REI

Capital Rasarve:
Capitai Reseve represents fair value of nel assers acquired exceads purchase cost.

'*"-‘*“"‘““’““""*“*“This space s intentionaliy teft blapk P ¥*4¥+snssnsrrcvnansenan
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24

25

26

27

28

29

{nterest income

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Far the year ended

For the year ended

Particuiars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
interest income on loans 1(3,828.07 7,561.54
Total 10,828.07 7,561.54
Fee and Commission Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loan Processing & Servicing Fees 55.59 201.42
Total 55.59 201.42
QOther operating revenue
) For the year ended Far the year ended
p {
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Document Handling and Other Income 8(.26 ' 8.67
Total 80.2& 8.67

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on depasits with Barks 238.44 B.92
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.21 Q.03
Interest on Security Deposit 1.21 0.28
Business Auxiliary Service Charges - 37243
Dividend Income Q.26 -
Net gain on sale of investments 5.36
Miscellaneous Income 24.88 0.34
Reversal of impairment loss on loans 32178
Total 592.13 382.06
Finance Cost
Particulars Fer the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on debi securities -
interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 998.44 893.65
[nterest on Subardinated Debts 3,554.46 3,875.00
interest on lease lizbilities 6.44 416
Interest on gthers - 11.00
Interest on income Tax 1.38
Interest on Fair Valyation 9.21
Bank charges 61.8% 4.77
Total 1,631.82 4,788.57

Fees and commission axpense

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year endad
March 31, 2022

Commission & Brokerage 237357 945,16

Citil Charges 7.37 327.65

Processing Fes 96.23 10,20

Total 2,477.17 1,283.01
- -/A
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30

31

3z

32.1

Irnpairment of financial instruments

For the year ended

for the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
On financial instruments measured at amartised cost
- On loans 295.84 231.15
- Loan Assets Written OFff (Net of Recoveries) 30.81
Total 326.65 231.15
Employee benefits expenses

. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 1,340.67 553.58
Gratuity and Compensated Absence 12.58 1.44
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer nate 35} 43.27 2N
Staff welfare expenses 14.90 5.16
Totai 1,411.42 587.530

Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Auditor's remuneration [Statutory Audit Fee) 8.13 5.42

Business auxiliary charges 246.16 301.80

Commission paid 15.20

Portfolio management expenses 0.13

Professional & legal charges 334.73 22543

Miscellaneous expenses 102.85 19.22

Oftice Expenses 130.82 12.84

Operating Expenses 40.24

Prirting and stationery 23.78 15.32

Postage and telegram 10.26 0.05

Advertisermnent 3.28 81.89

Rates, Taxes & Fees 22.88 5.54

Rent {Refer Note 43) 6.02 2915

Marketing Expenses 19.2¢ 1.06

C5R Expenses 18.87

Maintenance Service - 2.16

Travelling and conveyance 54.59 34.21

Loss on safe of fixed assets 491

Total 1,027.76 745.40

Disclosures related to CSR Expenditure

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 18.87

Amount of expenditure incurred 18.87

Excess/(shortfall) at the end of the year - -

Expenditure incurred durfng the year

i} On construction/acquisition of the assets

ii} an purposes other than (i} above 18.87 -
18.87

Nature of CSR activities

Pramotion of Educational activities
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1,

Corporate information

Hindon Mercantile Limited {'the Company’ or 'the helding Company') is a Public Limited Company incorparated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1954 with its registered office in Delhj to arry on the businass of 3
Non-Public Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance Company in india, The Company is registered under Section
45-1A of Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934, The Company holds a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India, The registered office of the tompany is located at 201, 2nd Floor, Best Sky Tower, Plot No.
F-5, Netaji Subhash Place, North West Delhi-110034. The Company is engaged in the business of Investment and
financing activities. The Rroup is also engaged in providing an aniine market place to the participants involved in
Peer to Peer Lending and also act as o distributor of financial Products and intended to engage in business of
Actaunt aggregation services and business of facilitation of various toan preducts from the regulated entities
through its weh and/or mobite based digital application.

The consolidated financial statements tomprise financial staterments of Hinden Mercantile Limited ("the
company"” or 'the holding Company’) and its subsidiaries {collectively “the group"} for the year ended March 31,
2023,

The consolidated financial statements inctude the financial staternents of the subsidiaries of Hindon Mercantile
Limited {"the company” or 'the holding Company' or 'the parent’), consolidated in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’,

F Name of the Country of {% shareholding as/e shareholding as[ Consolidated Date on which

company incorporation {at March 31, 2023|at March 31, 2022 as Company became
subsidiary

Hindon Peer tg Peer india 100.00% 100.00% Subsidiary w.e.f. October Dy,

Finance Private 2020

Limited*

Mutin Green Finance India 57.83% 67.34% Subsidiary w.e.f. March 09,

Limited {Formerty 2022

known as AP

Finvest Limited) L

Hindon Account India 100.00% 100.00% Subsidiary w.e.f. October 15,

Aggregatian Services ’ 2021

Private Limited j

Bimapay Finsure Indis 70.00% Mot Applicable Subsidiary w.e.f. April 03,

Private Limited 2022

Mufin Payment India 160 00% Not Applicable Subsidiary  |wef fMay 05, 2027

Selutions Private

Limited

statements of the following subsidiary company:

Name of the Country of 9 shareholding as|% shareholding as Consolidated | Date on which
company incorporation |at March 31, 2023}at March 31, 2022 as Company became |
subsidiary
Fintelligence Data india 100.004% 100.00% Subsidiary ’w.e‘f. lune 17, 2021
Science Private
Limited |
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2. Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division il of
Schedule H} to the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"). The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Hows". The Consolidated
Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity are together referred as the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group.

The Consclidated Financial Staternents of the Group are prepared in accordance with the Carmpanies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under Section 132 of Act and relevant amendmert rules issyed
thereafter ("ind AS").

The Consolidated Finarncial Staternents are prepared and presented on going concern basis and the
relevant provisions of Act and the guidelines and directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India {RBI) or any
other authority, to the extent applicahle,

Armounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to
two decimal places as permitted by Schedule If! to the Act. Per share data is presented in Indian Rupee to
twao decimal places. The Group presents its Balance Sheet in the arder of liguidity,

Actounting policies are censistently appiied cxcept where a newly-issuad Ind AS initially adepted or a
revision 1o an existing Ind A% reguires a change in the accounting policy.

Basis of cansolldation:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the holding Group and its
Subsidiaries being the entitips that it controls. Control is evidenced where the group has power aver the
investee or is exposed or hag rights 1o variable returns from its invalvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power cver the investee, Power is demonstrated through existing
that give the ability to direct refevant activities which signiticantly affect the entity returns. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reparting year as the apparent Group where
necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements od subsidiary to align the accounting policies
in line with accounting policies of the group. For non-wholly awned subsidiary a share of the profit/loss for
the financial year and net assets |s attributed 1o the non-controlling interests as shown in the cansolidated
statement of Profit and Logss and consolidated Balance Sheet. For dcquisitions of additional interests in
subsidiary where there is no change in control the group recognizes a reduction to the non-controlling
interest of the respective subsidiary with the difference hetween this figure and the cash paid, inclusive of
transaction fees being fecognized in equity, The financial statements of subsidiary acquired or disposed off
during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as apprepriste. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealized income and eXpenses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial stetements unrealized losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Consolidation procedure:

{a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income expense and cash flow of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts
of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial Statemnents at the acquisition date,

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in gach subsidiary and the parent's
portion of equity of each subsidiary, o - /
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2.2

2.3

On the other hand, where the share of equity in Companies consolidated as on the date of investment
is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognized as Capital Reserve and shown undar
the head Other Equity in the Consolidated Financial Statements,

{d} Eliminate in full intra~group assets and iiabilities, equity, incame, expenses and cash flow relating to
transactions between entities of the groun (profits or losses resufting from intra-group transactions
that are recognized in assets such as inventory and fixed assets arc eliminated in ful).

Non-controlling interests in the net assets af Companies consolidated is wentified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separately within equity. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
Consolidated companies consiste of:

{a] The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment is
made; and

{b} The non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary
relationship came into existence,

The Profit/{loss) and other comprehensive income attributahle to non-controlling interests are shown
separately in the Consclidated Statement of Profit and toss.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees {Rs.] which is the functional and the
presentation currency of the Group and all values are reunded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
excent when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement

The Censolidated Financial Statements have bepn prepared on historical cost hasie except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair vlues,

A historical cost is 3 measure of value used for accounting in which the price of an asset on the balance
sheet is based on jts historical cost, it is generally fair value of cansideration given in exchange for goods
and services at the time of transaction or eriginal cost when acguired by the Group.

Fair value is the price that s likely to be received on sell of an asset or paid to transfoer 3 liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date, regardless of whether thaz
price is directly obsarvable or estimated using another valuation technique. in estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liabitity, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability that market
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fajr
value for measuremcent and/or disclosure rurposes in the Consolidated Financial Statements is
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 Leases.

e
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2.4

2.5

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized inta fair vglue hierarchy based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fajr vaiue measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in it entirety, which are described as follows:

*  Level 1 guoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
tan access on measurement date;

* Llevel 2 inputs, other than quoted prices inciuded within leval 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly: and

*  level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the vaiuation of assets or fabilities.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Staternents in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards

("tnd AS")

Fequires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions, These estimates,

judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and Habilities, the disclosura of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consplidated
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year, Accaunting
estimates could thange from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Revisions
10 accounting estimates are recognized Rrospectively, The Management believes that the estimates ysed
in preparation of the Consofidated Financjal Statements are prydent and reasonable. Fyture results could

Significant Accounting Policies

2.5.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probabile that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its
recovery.

2511

Interest

Interest income on financial instruments is recognized on a time proportion basis taking
inte account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate {"EIR") apnlicable.

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrurment through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter periad, to the net carrying amount. The future cash flows are estimated taking
into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR inctudes all fees paid or receivad between parties to the
tontract that are incremental ard directly attributable to the specific fending
arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts, For financia assets
Mmeasured at fair value through profit and loss {"FVTPL", transaction costs arp recognized
in the Consolidated Statermnent of Prafit and Loss at initial recognition.

interest mcome/expenses is caiculated by applying the EIR to the Bross carrying amaount of
flon-credit impaired finarcial assets/liabilities {j.e. at the amartized cost of the financial
asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), For credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated by 3pplving the EIR to the amortized cost of
the credit-impai i ial & €. the grass carrying amount less the allowance for
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2.5.13

2.5.1.4

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is
estatdishad,

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of £IR.
The Group recognizes the fee and commission intome in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts/agreement and when itis probable that the group will collect the
consideration.

Other Incoma

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental tu the husiness and
is recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the
cortract.

2.5.2 Financial Instruments

2,5.2.1

2522

2523

Fair Valuation of Investments

Some of the Group’s Investments are measured at fair value. In determining the fair value
of such investments, the group uses quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or based on inputs which are abservable either directly or indirectly.
However, in certain cases, the Group adopts valuation technigques and inputs which are
not based on market data. When market observabie information is not available, the
group has applied appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model.

Recognition and Initial Measurement

All financial assets ang liabitities, with the exception of toans and berrowings are initially
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Broup becames a party to the
contractual pravisions of the instrument.

Loans are recognized when fund transfer is initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to
the customer. The Group recognizes borrewings {other than debt seedrities} when funds
are received by the Group.

Financial assets and financial Habilities are initiatly measured at fair value. Transaction
costs and revenues that arg directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial abilities {other than financial assets and financial Liabilities measured
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
itabilities, as appropriate, oninjtial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at FyTPL
are recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass,

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities

2.5.2.3.1 Financial Assats

The Group ¢lassifies and measures ail its financial assets based on the business
model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, either ar:

=> Amortized cost

>>  FairValue through other comprehensive income

/

*>  Fair value through Profit and Loas C Mo o™

e

3
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2.5.2.3.1.1

2.5.2.3.1.2

2.5.2.3.1.3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amauortized Cast

The Group classifies and Feasures cash and bank balances, Loais,
Trade receivahle, certain debt investments and other financial
assets at amortized cost if the following condition is met:

Financial Assets that are held within a business model whase
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are SPPL.

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive income ("FVTOCI")

The Group classifies and measuras certain debt instruments at
FVTOC) when the investments are held within a business madel, the
objective of which is achieved by both, collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial instruments and the contractual
terms of the financial instruments meet the Salely Payment of
Principal and Interest on principal amount outstanding {'SFPI') test,

The Group measures aff equity investments at fair value through
profit o loss, unless the investments is not for trading and the
Group’s management has elected to classify irrevocably somc of its
equity instruments at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the
definition of Equity under ind AS 22 Financial tnstruments.
Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument- hy-instrument basis.

Fair Value through Profit and Loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets at FYTPL are:

> assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; and/or
>>  assets that.are held in a business model other than held to

collect cantractual cash flows ar hefd to collect and sell: or
»>  assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses
arising on remeasurement js recegnized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.5.2,4 Evaluation of Business Made!

Classification and measurement of financial instruments depernds on the rasults of the

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest on

the principal amount outstanding ("SPPI") and

the business model test {refer note 2.5.2.4.1}, The Group determines the businass modal
at aievel that reflects how the Group's financial instruments are managed tegether to
achieve a particular business objective,
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The Group manitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair valye through
other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand
the reason for their dispesal and whether the ressans are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held. Monitering is part of the Group’s continuous
assessmant of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are
held cantinues to be Appropriate znd if it is pot apprapriate whether there has been 3
change in business model and 30 a prespective change to the classification of those
instruments.

2.5.2.4.1

Business Mode| Test

An assessment of business mode! for managing financial assets is fundamental
to the classification of a financial asset. The Group determines the business
model at a leve! that refiocts how financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business chjective, The Group’s business model dges not
depend on management’s Intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the
business model assessment s performed at a higher level of aggregation rather
than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Group considers all relevant information and evidence avaifable when
making the business mode) assessment such as:

. how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held
within that business model are eveluated and Feported to the Graup's key
management personnel;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the
financial assets held within that husiness model) and, in particular, the
way in which thase risks gre managed; and

. how managers of the business are tompensated (e.g. whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets Managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

Atinitial recognition of a financial asset, the Group determines whether newly
recognized financial assets are Part of an existing business model or whether
they reflect a new business modet. The Group reassesses its pusiness model at
each reporting period to determine whether the business model has changed
since the preceding period. Far the current and prior reporting period the
Group has not identified a change in its business model.

Solely Payments of Principal and nterest {("SPPI"} on the principal amount
cutstanding

For an asset to be dlassified and measured at amortized caost or at FYTOC!, its
contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that meet SPPI test.

Forthe purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial assot at
initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the
financial asset {e.g. if there are repaymerts of principal). Interast consists of
consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for
ather basic lending risks ang costs, as well as-a profit margin.

Moy v
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2.5.2.4.2 Financial Habilities and Equity Instruments

Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such
as exposure to changes in equity prices or commaodity prices, do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are SPPI, such financial assets are sither dlassified as
fair vatue through profit & loss account or fair value through other
comprehensive income,

2.5.2.4.1.1 Subseguent Measurement and Gain and Losses

2.5.2.4.1.2

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Thesc assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
fmpairment fosses. Interest income and impairment loss are
recogrized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain ar
loss or derecognition is recognized in Consalidated Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Debt Instrument at FYTOC!

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest
income and impairment loss are recognized in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on subsequent
measurement is recognized in OC) and on derecognition the
cumudative gain or foss recognized in OC! will be recycled to
Consniidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

Equity Instrument at FYTOCI

Gains and losses on equity instraments measured at FVTOC are
recognized in other comprehensive income and rever recycled to
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends are
recognized in profit or loss as dividend incame when the right to
receive payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of whole or part of the
cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in
OCL Equity instruments at FVTOC! are fair valued at each reporting
date and not subject te an impairment assessment.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gainor
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
the Cansaolidated Statement of Prafit and Loss,

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the group holds financial assets
changes, the financial assets affected are reciassified. The
classification and measurement requirements refated to the new
Lategory apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in business mode! that result in
reclassifying the Group’s financial assets.
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2.5.25

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial lizbilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

A financiat Hiability is a contractual ohligation to deliver cash or
ancther financial asset or to exchange financial assets or financial
tiabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavorable to the Group or a contract that will or may be sertled in
the Group’s own equity instruments and is a nan-derivative contract
tor which the Group is or may be obliged to deliver a variable
number of its own eguity instruments, or a derivative contract over
own equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange
of 3 fixed amount of cash {or another financial asset] for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments.

2.5.2.4.2.2 Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its Habilities,
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the face
value and proceeds received in excess of the face value are
recognized as Securities Premium.

2.5.2,4.2.3 Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses

Financial liabilities are subsequently measurad at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized
in Consolidated Statement of Prefit and Loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Lass.

Impairment and Write-off
The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses on the following financial

instruments that are not measured at FYTRL:

>>  Loans and advances ta customers;
»>  Other financiat assets;
»>  Loan commitments

Equity instruments are measured at fair value and not subject to an impairment loss.
ECL is required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount aqual to:

. 12-month ECL, i.e,, loss allowsnce on defaalt events on the financial instrument that
are possible within 12 menths after the reporting date, {referred to as Stage 1); or

. Lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that results from all nossible default events over the
life of the financial instrument, (refersed to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

Aloss allowance for lifetime ECL s required {or a financial instrument if the credit risk an
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all gther
financial instruments, ECL is measured at an amount egual ta the 12-month £CL.
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The Group has established g policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting
period whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition by considering the change in the risk of default OCCUPring over the remaining
life of the financial instruments.

Based on the above pracess, the Group categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 7 and
Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Group recognizes an allowance based on 12
months ECL, Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved znd
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 to Stage 1.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown 3 significant increase in credit risk since grigination, the
Group records an allowance for the life time expected credit losses. Stage 2 loans also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has heen reclassified
from Stage 3 to Stage 2,

Stage 3: When loans are considered credit-impaired, the Group records an allowance for
the life time expected credit losses,

For financial assets for which the Grotip has no reasonable expectations of recovering
either the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross CHTYINg amount
of the finaneial asset is reduced, This is considered a {partial] derecognition of the
financial asset,

2.5.2.6 Determination of Expected Credit Loss {"ECL"}

The measurement of impairment fosses {ECL} across all categories of financial assets
requires judgement.

In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows based on
Group's historical experience and colateral values when determining impairment losses
along with the assessment of a significant inerease in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a numbar of factors, changes in which can result in different tevals of
aflowances.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates
include:

* Bifurcation of the financial assets into different portfolios when ECL is assessed on a
collective basis.
. Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

. Development of ECL medels, including choice of inputs/assumptions ysed.

The various inputs used and the process followed by the Group in measurement of £CL
has been detailed belgw.

2.5.2.6.1 Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group calculates ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the portfelio. A
cash shortfall is a difference between the cash flows that are due to the group
in accordance with the cont_r_ac’f and the cash flows that the group expects to
recemve, ST . H




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U343000019852L6021 785
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5.2.6.2

When estimating £CL for undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates the
expected portion of the lean commitment that wili be drawn down over its
expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected
shortfalls i cash flows if the losn is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls
are discounted 3t an anproximation to the interest rate on the loan.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for
portfolios of loans that share simHar economic risk characteristics, The
measurement of the Joss allowance is based on the present value of the asset's
expected cash flows using the asset’s originai IR, regardless of whether it is
measured on an individusl basis or a collective basis,

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are oytlined below and the key etements
are, as fellows:

Exposure at Default {EAD) is based on the amounts the Group expects to be
owed at the time of default. For a revolving commitment the Group includes
the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be
drawn up to the current contractuad limit by the time of default, should it occur,

Probability of Default {PD} represents the ikelihaod of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per "Definition of default and creditimpaired”) either
cver the next 12 months {12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime
{tifetime PD} of the obligation.

Loss Given Defaylt {LGD) represents the Group's expectation of the extent of
loss on a defauited exposure. LGE varies by type of Lounterparty, type and
preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Forward-locking economic information {including management overlay) is
inctuded in determining the 12-month and fifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The
assumptions underlyirg the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed
0N an ongaing basis.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Group monitors all financial assets, including loan commitments contracts
issued that are subject to impairment reguirements, to assess whether there
has been a significant intrezse in credit risk sinee inital recognition. i there has
been a significant increase in credit risk the Group measures the foss zllowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-manth £CL, The Group monitors afl financia)
3sscts, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
subject to impairment for a significant increase in credit risic.

in assessing whether the credit risk on afinancial instrument has increased
significantly since initjal recognition, the Group tompares the risk of a default
oceurring on the financiat instrument at the reporting date based on the
remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that
was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when
the financial instrument was first recognized. tn making this assessment, the
group considers both guantitative andquaf_jtative information that is
reasonable and supportable, incliding histarieat experience that is available
without undue cost or effort. o 7

o

W,
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2.5,2.6.3

2.5.2.6.4

The guantitative factors that indicate a significant increase in eredit risk are
reflected in #D models on a timely basis. Hawever, the graup still considers
separately some qualitative factors to assass if credit risk has increased
significantly. Far corporate lending, there is a particular focus on assets that are
included on a 'watch list”. Given an exposure is on a watch list once, there is a
concern that the credit worthiness of the specific caunterparty has
deteriorated. ECL assessment for watch fist accounts is done on a case by case
approach after considering the probability of weighted average in a different
recovery scenario. For individual {oans the group considers the expectation of
forbearance, payment holidays, and events such as unemplayment, bankruptcy,
divorce, or death.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a
refative measure, a given change, in absofute terms, in the PD is more
significant for a financial instrument with a lower inftial PD than compared 1o a
financial instrument with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when a financial asset becomes past due but not Stage 3; the
Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk has oceurred and the
asset is classified in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss allowance is
measured as the lifetime FCL.

Credit-lmpaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assat
have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets.
Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the foliowing
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
. restructuring of loans due to financial difficulty of the porrowers;

. the disappedrance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties; or

. the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that raflects the
incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. Instead the combined
effect of several events may have caused financial assets to become credit-
impaired. The Group assesses whether debt instruments that are financial
assets measured at amortized cost are credit-impaired at cach reporting date,
To assess if corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Group
considers factars such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the
borrower to raise funds.

Aloan s considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the
borrower due to deteriaration in the borrower’s financial condition. The
definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicaters and a back-stop if
amounts are pverdue for more than 90 days.

Definition of Default

The definition of default is used in 'm'e:a.é'tking the amount of ECL and in the

determination of whether the loss pllowance is hased on 12-month or lifetime
- }

ECL. R
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The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default:

. the borrower is past due more than 30 days + Accounts Identified by the
Group as NPA as per reguiatory guidelines + Objective Evidence for
impairment (Qualitative Qverlay); or

. the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Group
takes into account both gualitative and quantitative indicators. The information
assessed depends on the type of the asset, for examaple in corporate lending a
gualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not as relevant
for individual lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-
payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this
analysis.

2.5.2.6.5 Write-off

Leoans are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset {either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the
case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets ur
sources of income that could generste sufficient cash flows to repay the
amaounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
The Group may apply enfarcement activities to financial assets written off/ may
assign/ sell lgan exposure ta ARC/ Bank / a financial institution for a negatiated
consideration. Recoveries resuiting from the Group’s enforcement activities
could result in impairment gains.

2.5.2.7 Maodification and Derecognition of Financial Assets

A modificatian of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash
flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between the initial
recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A madification affects the amount and/or
timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the
introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not vet affect the cash fiows
immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is ar is not
met {e.8. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are
breached).

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financlal difficulty ta maximize collection
and minimize the risk of default, Loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the
borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is
& high risk of default or default has already happened and the barrower is expected to be
able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an
extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan
{principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal
and interest forgiveness} and amendments to covenants.

wWhen a financial asset is modified the Group assesses whether this modification results in
derecognition. In accordance with the Group’s policy, a modification results in
derecagnition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the
modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Group
considers the following:
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Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification, are no longer PPy,
change in currency or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates,
maturity, covenants, if these do not clearly indicate a substantia) medification, then: a
guantitative assessment is performed to compare the present vailue of the remaining
contractual cash flows under the ariginal terms with the contractual cash Hows under the
revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original EIR. If there is a significant
difference in present value, the group deems the arrangement substantially different,
leading to derecognition.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognized the Ibss allowances for ECL is
remeasured at the datc of derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the
asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value
of the new financial asset with the revised terms may lead to a gain or loss on
derecognition, The new financial asset may have a loss allowance measured based on 13-
month ECL except where the new loan is censidered to be originated-credit impaired. Fhis
applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognized at a significant
discount to its revised par amount because there remains a high risk of default which has
not been recuced by the modification. The Group manitors the credit risk of maodified
financial assets by evaluating qualitative and guantitative Information, such as if the
borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does
not result in derecognition, the Group determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

. The remaining lifetime PO estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
original contractual terms;

. The remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified, where modification does nat resuitin derecognition, the
estimate of PD reflects the Group's ability to collect the modified cash fiows taking into
account the Group's previous experience of simitar forhearance action, as well as various
behaviaral indicaters, including the borrower's payment performance against the
modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was
expected at initial recognition, the loss allowance is continued to be measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. The |uss ailowance on forborne laans is generally measured
based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment
behavior following modification feading to a reversal of the previous signilicant increase in
credit risk,

Where a medification does not lead to derecognition, the Group calculates the
modification gain/loss comgaring the gross carrying amount befare and after the
modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Group measures ECL for the
modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising frem the modified financiat asset
are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the ariginal asset,
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2.5.2.8

The Group derecognizes a firancial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset's
cash flows expire {including oxpiry arising from a modification with substantially different
terms), or when the financial asset and substantiaily all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity, if the Group neither transfars nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantiatly afl the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize
the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the procecds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain/loss that had been recognized In OC1 and accumulated in equity is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, with the exception of equity
investment designated as measured at FVTOQ!, where the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognized in OClis not subsequentiy reclassified to the Consalidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Gn derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Group retains
an option to repurchase part of 3 transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous
Carrying amount of the financial asset between the paft it cantinues to recognize under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount sllocated to the part that is no Jonger recagnized and the sum af the
consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain/loss
aflocated to it that had been recognized in OC! is recognized in the Cansolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. A cumulative grin/ioss that had been recognized in OCl is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer
recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This does not apply for
equity investments designated as measured at FVOCH, as the curnulative gain/ioss
previously recognized in QT is not subseguently reclassified to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial fiabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelied or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any provision for
tmpairment.

investments are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverzbie.

Praperty, Plant and Equipment ("PPE")

PPE held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. '
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PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item is
expected to flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at
original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, fess accumulated depreciation and cumulative
impairment, if any. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically
attributahle to acquisition of PPE are allocated and capitalized as 2 part of the cost of the PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized
in the Cansolidated Statement of Profil and Loss.

2.5.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probakle that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured refiably.
Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
amortization and cumulative impairment. Administrative and ather general overhead expenses
that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are aliocated and capitalized 2s a
part of the cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use an the date of Batance Shect are disclosed as
“Intangible assets under development”.

An intangible asset is derecognized on dispossl, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecagnition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.5.6 Capitat work-in-progress

Capital work in progress includes assets not ready for the intended use and is carried at cost,
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

2.5.7 Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is recognized using written down value method so as to write off the cost of the
assets less their residuai values over their estimated useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Act.
Depreciation methed is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits erbuedied in the asset. The estimated useful life and
residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the
estimates of useful life/residual value is recognized on prospective basis.

Depreciation for additions tofdeductians from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the pericd of
use.

The useful fife of the property, plant, equipment and Intangible Assets held by the Group is as

follows:
Class of Assets Useful Life
Computer 3 years
Vehicles 10 vears
,-«-..\_‘ Office Equipment’s 5 years .
Y e w (‘;““V:‘(/ Furniture & Fixtures .. . 1Dyears ;‘f
L 3 years i

{ L. & [Website

o
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2.5.8
25,9
/1[ .f'ff 4“’”’1/
Ll
o

Computer Software 2 years

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amartized on written down value basis over the
estimated useful life. The method of amortization and useful life are reviewed at the end of each
accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment by comparing its recoverable
amount with its carrying amount annually and whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired.

Impairment of Assets other than Financial Instruments

Goodwill and intangibie assets that have an indefinite usefu! life are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment wherever events or
changes in circuinistances indicate that the Larrying amount may not be recoverable, An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
dispasal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest fevels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflews from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-finzncial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of such reporting period.

Employee Benefits
Short term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits falling due within twelve months of rendering the service are classifiad as short
term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related
service, Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Defined Coantribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, employee
provident fund and employce pension scheme ete. are charged as an expense based on the
amourt of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered hy the employees.
Group’s provident fund contribution is made to 2 gavernment adrinistered fund and charged as
an expense 1o the Consolidated Statemont of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group has no further defined obligations beyond the manthiy
contributions.

Post-employment Benefits
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The Group operates defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity and compensated absence. The
liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of its defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined
benefit gbligation is calculated annuatly by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present vatue of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash out
fiows, using market yields of goverrunent bonds that have tenure approximating the tenures of the
related liabitity. The interest expenses are calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The net interest expense on the net defined benefit liabitity or
assetis recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Frofit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustinents and changes in actuarial assumnptions are recogirized in
the period in which they occur, directly in other items of other comprehensive income. They are
included in Other Equity in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes
in the present value of the defined benafit obligation resulting from plan amendments ar
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss 35 past service cost,

2.5.10 Leases
The Group as Lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of lcases for office prermises. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
axchange for consideration. To assess whether a contraet conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

(i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset

{ii) the Group has substantialfly ail of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
pericd of the lease and

({iti] the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes g right-of-use asset {"ROU") and
a carresponding lease liability for all {ease arrangements in which itis a lessee,

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the fease term. ROU assets and lease fiahilities inciudas these options when it is reasonabiy certain
that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which tomprises the initial amount of the
fease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior te the commercement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
tess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis gver the
shorter of the fease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amartized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will excrcise an extension or 2 termination
option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have bean separately presented in the Balance Sheet and fease
Payments have been classitied as financing cash flows, S :

- P - -
A
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2.5.11

2.5.12

2.5.13

2.5.14

2.5.15

The Group as Lessor

The Company as a lessor, classifies leases as either operating lease or finance lease. & lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset. Initially asset held under finance fease is recognized in balance
sheet and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the fease. Finance
income is recognized aver the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
return on Company's net investment in the lease, A lease which is not classified as a finance lease is
an operating lease.

Accordingly, the Company recognizes fease payments as income an a straight-line basis in case of
assets given on operating leases. The Company presents underlying assets subject to cperating
lease in its balance sheet under the respective class of asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash cumprises of cash on hand and demand deposits with hanks, Cash equivalents are short-term
depaosits with hanks (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of placement}
and cheques on hand. Short term and liguid investments being subject to more than insignificant
risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents,

Dividends on Equity Shares

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity shareholders of the Group
when the dividend is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group and
a corresponding amount is recegnized directly in equity. As per the corporate faws in India, an
interim dividend is authorized when it s approved by the Board of Directors and final dividend is
authorized when it is approved by the shareholders.

Securities Premium Account

Securities premium is credited when shares are fssued at premium. It can be used to issue bonus
shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares and issue expenses of securities which
gualify as equity instruments.

Finance Costs

Finance costs include interest expense calculated using the EiR on respective financial instruments
and borrowings is measured at amortized cost, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from fareign
currenty borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost,

Foreign Currencies

(i} Functienal currency of the Group and foreign operations has been determined based on the
primary economic environment in which the Group and its foreign operations oparate
cansidering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

{i) Transactions in currencies other than the Group's functional currency are recorded on initiat
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date,
foreign currency monetary items are reported at the rates prevailing at the year-end. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are net re-
transtated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary
ftems at each Balance Sheet date at the tlosing spot rate are recognized in the Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss in the periad in which theéy arise. i

- i : B K
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2.5.16

2.5.17

2.5.18

2.5.19

P 2

L

Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of
the acquisition, which is the date at which cantrol is transferred to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition and the identifiahle assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
tontrolling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those ircurred in refation to the issue of
debt or equity securities. Any contingent consideration payable s measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Segments

Operating segments are those components of the husiness whose operating results arc regularly
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision making body in the Group to make decisions for
performance assessment and rescurce allocation. Operating Segment are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to accounting policies are in line with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Cperating Decision maker.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or lass attributable to ordinary ecuity
holders by the weighted average nurnber of shares cutstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares,
except where the result would be anti-gdilutive.

Taxes on Income

The Group's tax jurisdiction is in India. Significant judgements are involved in determining the
provision for intome taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for cortain tax
positions,

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except when they relate to items that are recognized
outside Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss {whether in other compretiensive income or
directly in equity), in which case tax is also recognized outside Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax hases, and
unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and depreciation carry-forwards could be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced ta the
extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date, and are recognized to the extent that it has hecome probable that future taxshle
profits will alfow the deferred tax asset to he recovered.




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300DL19ESPLCO2 1785
NOTES FORMING PART COF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis,

The Group provides for current tax lizbilities at the best estimate that is expected to be paid to the
tax authorities where an cutflow is probable.

2.5.20 Goods and Services Tax Input Credit
Goods and Services tax input credit is recegnized in the booke of account in the period in which the
supply of goods or service received is recognized and when there is no uncertainty in
avaiting/utilizing the cradits.

2.5.21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

{a] Provisions are recogrtized only whan:

{it  The Group has a present obligation: (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event: and

(i} It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required
to settle the chligation; and

{lii} Areliable estimate can be mada of the amount of the chligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when
the effect of time value of money ts materiai, the carrying amount of the provision is the
present value of those cash flows,

(b} Contingent Liabdlity is disclosed in case of;

(i} Apresent ohligation arising from past events, when it 1s riot prebable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; or

(i) A present obligation arising from past events, when na relisble estimate is possible.

Where the unaveidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the

economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under
the cantract is recognized and measured as a provision.

{c) Comtingent Assets:

(i} Contingent assets are not recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

{ii} Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of ecanomic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and centingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.5.22 Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follaws:

{a} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not pravided
for; '
{b} Uncatled liability an shares and other investments partly paid;

i
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(t) Funding refated commitment to associate and joint venture companies: and

{d} Other non-cancellabie commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and
relevant in the opinian of rranagement,

2.5.23 Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows intg aperating,
investing and investment and financing activities, Cash flow from operating activities is reported
using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

(i} changes during the period in Operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash
nature;

(i) non-cash items such as depreciation, Provisions, deferred taxes, unrealized foreign currency
gains and losses; ang

(i) Al other items far which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows,

Cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances) shawn in the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet,

3. Recent Accounting Develapments

3.1 Llawenacted but not effective

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’} refating to employee benefits during employment and post-
employment benefity received indian Parliamens’s approval and Presidential assent in September 2020,
The Code has been published in the Gazette of tndia and subsequently, on Novembaer 13, 2020, draft rutes
were putlished and stakehoiders’ suggestions were invited. However, the date on whieh the Code will
come into effect has not been netified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will recerd any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

3.2 Amendmentsin ind AS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules a5 issued from time to tima.

On March 31, 2023, MCA amendead the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, as belaw:

(a) INDAS1: Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or afier April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the
amendment is insignificant in the financia) statements,

{b) IND As g3: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and trrors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments 1o
INDAS 8 to help entities distinguisk changes in aCcounting policies from changes in accaunting
estimates, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial
statements, .

~{c} IND AS 12: income Taxes - f

g A)'e
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This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply
to transattions that give rise to equal and offsetting temparary differences. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods heginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has
evaluated the amendment and there is no impact an its financial statements,

o~
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33. Contingent Liahltities and Commitments

{al Contingent Liabiiities — Nil (March 31, 2022 - Nl
{b) Commitments - il {March 31, 2022 - N

34, Partly owned subsidiary

Financial information of subsidia

that has non-controlling interests is provided below:

ry (Mufin Green Finance Lirmited {formerly APM Einvest

Limited) before adjustment

(Rs. in Lakhs)

[ Particulars FY.2022-23 | Fy. 200122 |
[i. Summarized Balance Sheet
Ownership interest held by non-controiling interests 42.17% 31.66#
Firancial assets 38,162 21 9,107.12
Non-Financial assets 1,385.08 1,182.3?’
Financial ligbilities -23,495.83 -22.74
Non-Financial labiifties -679.32 -105.37
Net assets 15,368.14 10,160.80
IConsolidation adjustments - - !
Net assets"after adjustments 15,368.14 10,160.80
B Net assets attributable to nan-contralling interest 6,481.24 3,318.97
ii. |Summarized statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income . .
Revenye 3,530.15 152565
Profit/ {loss) for the vear B11.67 1,088 19
Other romprehensive incomea -2.04 0.19
Tatal comprakensive income 803.83 1,088.38 |
Profit/ (lass) allocated tg non-controting interest 342.31 355,43
Other comprehensive income allocarad to non-controliing inrergs: -0.26 0.06
Dividend dectared to non-cantroliing interest - 11.94 |
iii. |Summarized cash flow statements '
Cash flows from operating activities -17,530.88 '5,842.50 |
Cash flaws from investing activities -8,542 82 6,740.86
Cash flows from financing activities 26,855.04 2026
| [Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 791.39 878E

Financial information of subsidia ry {Bimapay £

interests is provided balow:

insure Private limited) before adjustrment

that has non-co rtrofling

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particufars

FY.2022-23 [ Fv. 202127 |

Summarized Balance Sheet

Ownership interest halgd by non-controliing interests 70.00%
T Finangial assets 8.41
B Mon-Financial assets 90.34 ]
| Financial liabiTties 3,10
Non-Financial Fabiities 137
L]'Net assets 94.78 ]
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!Cnnscﬁdation adjustrments - ]
Net assats after adjustimants 94.78
wssets attributable to non-controlling interest 66.35 ﬁ’
. | Summarized st'"atem ent of profit and ass and other comprehensive income
[ [Revenue 17490
Profit/ {loss) for the year 2.81
Other comprehansive incame - 4’
Total comprehensive income 2.8l f
Profit/ ('oss) allocated 1o non-controlling interest 1.97 j
[Dther comprehensive income aitocated to nar-controllj - —'
'Diw’dend declared to non-controliing interest - O
ii. 1Summarized cash flow staternants "
Cash flows from operatfhg activities 0.06 ]
Cash flows from investing activities 82563 |
Cash flows from financing activities 51.97
i:]hlet increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Qﬂ __IJ

35. Details of Emploi;ees Benefits as required by the Ind A5 19 "Employee Benefits"

(3) Defined Cantribution Plans

The Group has recognized the fo'lowing zmounts in the Consolidated State

ment of Profit and Loss:

{Rs. i lakhs}
Particutars ! For the year ended For the year ended |
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to provident fund 35.45 1728
Contributian to ESt l‘ 711] 4,05_{
| Contribution te £OL 0.36 0.69
Administration Charges 0.36 .69
Total 431,28 2271
(b} PostRetirament Benefit Plan
{) Amaunt recognized in the Balance Sheet
Gratuity {Rs. in lakhs)
[ Par‘ticulars o As at T Asat '
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 !
Present value of plan fabilizies ' 11.39 0.67
Fair value of plan gysate - -
Deficit/{Surplus) of funded plans - (.69
[Unfunded plans ; -
‘&:t plan liabilitiesf[assets} 11.3% 1.36 |
Compensated Absence (Rs. in lakhs)
' Particulars As at As at ’
. Mareh 31, IOZLI_. March 31, 2022 ‘i
(Present value of plan ftabilities ; 7y 0.67
Fair value of plan assets T - - —f
'Feficil;/[Surpius} of funded plans ' K e 0.6?]

—
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,Unfunded pians BN ]
’Net plen liabilities/(assets) 7.18 [ 1‘35]
{ii] Amount Fecognized in the Consoldated Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit Expenses
Gratuity (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | for the year ended —f
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cnst 671 1.44
Past service cast -
Interest cost 0.26 0.06
Expected return an plan assets - .
Artuarial {Gains)/Losses 2.58 -0.81
Total expenses 3.95 0.89
Compensated Absence {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the vear cnded For the year endedj
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service eost 7.07 15.2¢
Past service cost 012 -
Interest cost - 0.06

Expected return gn plan assets - -

Attuarial (Gains)/tosses - 0.81
Total expenses 7.19 14.45

{iil} Assumptions

[ Particulars f Ac at Asg at
1 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financizl Assumption
Discount rate [ 7.39 7.26
Salary Escalation Rate # ' | _ 5.00 | IU‘UGJ
Demographic Assumptions
Retiremen{ gge {Years) ' [ go.00 | 50_@
“I\antality rates inclusive of provision far disability 100% of JALM 100% of 1aLm
{2012-14) (2012-14)
IAtrition a1 ages
|- Un to 30 years ) 5.00 44,00
- From 31 10 44 years 3.00 44.00 i
- Above &4 years 2.00 44.UBJ

# The estimate of rate of escalation in satary considered in actuarial valuation, taken into accaunt inftation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors inctuding supply and demand in the erployment marker.

{iv} Sensitivity Analysis

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2072 - As at March 32, 2022 :’

| L
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Charge in

Increase impact

I Decrease ‘ Chahge in | lncrease impact | Deerease impact

assumption | on present value impact on dssumption | on present value jon present vaiue of
of plan liabitities presant value of of plan labitities plan Habifities
plan labilities

Lt i |

[E ratuity .

]Escmut rate 3.50% -0 77 0.50% Q.01 } .04

Emw Escalation Bate 0.50% 0.7 0.7: 150% 004 ' -0.01a

E.'nmpensated Absence J

Discount rate 0.50% 051 [ 0.56 J T 0% 0.04] 004

Salary Escalation Rare 150% 5ES [ {51 ] 0.50% 004 ] -o.cﬂ

The sensitivity analyses shave have heen det
assumption aerurring at the end of
itisbhasedon g thange. It is based
constant, When calcutating the SENSitivity
used to caiculate the liability recognized in
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity

v} The defined benefit obligations maturing after yoar ended March 31, 202

the reparting period and may nat be repre
UN & change in the key as
to the ES3UMmption, the m

ermined based an reasonably possible chan

sumption while halding ahi ot
analysis did not chan

ge compared with the

L4

sentative of the actual ch

ges of the respertive
ange.

her assumptions

ethod {Projected Unit Cradit Methaod)
gen applied. The methods and types of

previous period,

Gratuity (Rs. in takhs)
Maturing within ‘ As at As at —’
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 i
0-1vyear ! 0.42 0.0
1~2vears 0.32 0.0z
_2—-_3 years 0.67 0.04
3 - 4 years 0.25 | 0.15
4 -5 years 036 ' 0.Qa7
5-8 yeaTs.—_ 0 1 0.32J
@ar onwards ) | 8.96 |
{empensated Abserice [Rs. in lakhs)
l Maturing within As at As at ]
| ilarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0—1year .28 -
1-2vyears 691 - ]
(2~ 3 years . - f
3-dyears - -_)
14— 5 years ! : ]
5~6vyears [ - _]
& year anwards I ) - j

35. Income Tax Expense

{al Texexpense recognized in t}

1e Consalidated Statement uf Profi

tand Loss

(Rs. in Igkhs)

Ry
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'.Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current tax
Current tax on taxable income for the year "455.26 65_13_
Total Current tax expense 455.26 §5.13
Deferred tax
Eeferred tax charge flcredit) -248.08 -96.61';_
Total deferred tax expense/{credit) -248.08 -96.55
Tax expense for the year 207.18 -31.52
Tax related to earkier year 5463 -14.39 |
ITotal tax expence recognized for the yearﬂ 261.81 -45.91

{9) Arecorciliation of the ~ax Cxperse 10 the amount computed by applying the stat

prafit before tax is summarized below:

vtory income Lax rate to the

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year endeg
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Effective Tax Rate 27.82% 27.82%
Profit before tax 1,453.70 475,98 ¢
Current tax expanse on profit before tax axpense at the enacteg 415,55 132,42
incame tax rate in India
Tax effect of the amaunts which are not deductible/ -28.37 -163.94 |
{taxabie)/rate difference in calculating taxable income
Tax Expense far the year 207.18 -31.52
Effect of earlier year tax adjustment 54.63 -14.39
Tax Expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 261.81 -45.52 ¢
and Loss
{t) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
(Rs. in lakhs)
r Particulars As Bt April 1,f Addition an {Crediti/ charge Cred|t/ As at March | (Credit)fcharge [Credit]) | Asat mMarch 31,
2024 concalidation | iy Consabgated (chargerin ¢ 31,2022 |inConsolidated charge in 2023
- Delerred Staternens of oq - Deferrpy | Statement of od -Deferred Tax
Tax Asset/ Frofit and Loss Tax Asspts/ Profit and Loss Asset/
{Linbitities) {Liabilities} iLiabilities)
Impact of diference L&) -0 84 86 85 .65 113,28 13593
between i dapreciatian
and depretiation;
amortizaticn cliwrged far
the financial regorting
IMmpact of Pravisians of -10.11 .50 4,76 0.2. ET 137 £3 4.76 136 44
Acnm e Tae Act, 1551 nr
Impaurreat, Employee
benefits and others
Defersed tax (Liabillties) / -15.51 266! -56 65 0.2 E3.59 Z4B.08 0.76 332.37
Assets (Net)

37. Capital Management
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The primary objective of the Group's capital managemant is to maximize the shareholder vaiue, safeguard the
businass centinuity and to maintain strong capital base for investor, creditors gnd marker confidence. For the purpose
of the Group's capitat manggement, capital includes issued equity capital and all other 2quity reserves attributahie to
the equity holders of the Group,

The Group manages its capital structure ang makes adjustments iy light of changes in economic condiions, future
plans and the requirernents of the financiaf covenants, The fundirg requirements are met through loans and vperating
Lash flows generatad. The Group monitars capital using & gearing ratio, which js net delit divided by tota! cagital plus
net debt. The Group's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio as given below:

. As at.
March 31, 2023

20,862.05

{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at |
March 31, 2022 /

Fanrticulars

Dabt Securiiies

—
Borrowings {other than Debt Securities)
Subordinated Debts

Other financial liabilities
T ———

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

10,251.93
30,000.00
&802.71

1,431.17

-3,174.77 1,121.08
Net Debit (A} ' 24,945 64 ’ 39,933 56 |
Total Equity (B) T ' I 17,722.73 m,iss.?j
mpnmmm,wu“mﬁjm@m
Gearing ratio % {A/C) _ . . 1 \ 5B.46% m%
—_— ] 2 T9.66%]

No zhanges were made in the objectives, paiicies or processes for managing cagitat during the years ended March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022,

38. Financial Risk Management

The Group is mainiy engaged in nvestments & Financing artivities and Gther Financial Services, The Group's princips}
firanciat fiabilities comiprise borrowings and other payahles. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to firance

and support Group’s operations, The Group’s principal financial assets intfutle loans, cash and cash equivalents ang
feceivableg,

The risk management nolicies af the Group are established to identify ang analyses the risks faced by the Graup, o set
gopropriate risk limits and rantrals, and to monitor risks and agherence to Hrrits. Riske Management policies ang
systems are reviewed regularly to refiect charges in marker conditions ard the Group's activities,

The Graup i exposed to credit risk, rmarket sk and liguidity risk, The Group's management OVErsees the management
of these risks to ensure the Group's finaneial risk gerivitioy are governed by appropriate palicies and procedures and
that financiaf risks are identified, measyred and maraged in accordance with Graup's policies and risk chjectives. The
majar risks gre summarized heiow:

38.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty wit nol meet its ovligations under 3 finzncial instrument or a
CUStomer fontract, ieading to financial 'oss. The Group is expused to credit risk from jts investment and
fnancing activities towards Loans 1o varioys clients, The Group’s exposure Lo credit risk is influgnced mainly by
the indivigyal characteristics of each customer. Credit risk has always hoen managed by the Group through
tredit approvals, establish credit lmirs dnd continuoys monitoring the credir worthiness of customers te which
‘the Qroup grants credit terms in the narmal course of business,
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38.2

Financial assets ars written off when there is no reascnable eapectation of recovery, such as a borrower faiiing
to &ngage in a repaymont pian with the Group. Where learsfinterest have been written off, the Groug cantinues
to engage in enforcement activity *o attempt to recover the lcans/recevable due, Where recoveries are made,
these are racopnized as income in the Consolidated Staternent of Profit and Loss,

The Group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables/loans based an histaricai trend, avaiable
external and internal credit risk factors such as financiai tondition, ageing of accaunts receivable ete , industry
practices and the husiness environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based un actual credit ioss
experience ard past trends,

As at March 31, 2033, the Group did not tonsider thare to be any significant coacentration of credit e'sk, which
had not been adequately provided for, The carrying amount of the financial asswts recorded in the Consalidateq
Financia Statements, grassed up for any aillowances for 1OSSeS, reprasents the MAXIMUm exposyre to credit rigk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fzir value of futyre tash flows of & financial instruments wiif fuctuzte because of
changes in rnarket prices, Pdarker risk comprises three types of risk: intarect rate risk, currency risk and market
price risk, such as equity price risk ard commaodity risk. Einangial struments aftected by market risk inelude
loans, investments, barrowings and fixed deposits.

38.2.1 Interest Rate Risk

The interest rate risk Bxposure is rnairdy from changes in fixed and Hloating interest rates, The intergst
rates are disclosed in the respective nates to the Consolicated financial Statements of the Group. The
breakup of the financial assets and liabilities on the basis of interest and nor-interast nature iq as undar:

{Rs. int lzkhs)

[ Partleulars As at As at ]
| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets ‘
Non-interast bearing ' |
Cash and cash equivalents ' ! 3,174.77 | 1,121.‘08‘_'
Trade receivables 54.46 1%2.3? |
Other receivabies ) 33.60 . -
Investments T 42732 999.95 '
(Others Financial Assets | ] =Y 819,32 |
interest bearing T ' ‘
‘Eipcsits with Bank | 11,254.13 $90.00 |
Loans* [ 29,406.28 46,135.45
Financtal liabilities
Non-interest bearing |
Trade Payable f : -
Other Firancial Liabrity ] 1,431.17 802.71
Interest baaring ;
Debt Securities 5,827.18 _ *j
Borrawings {uther than Dabyt Securitiag) 20,862.05 10,251.93
Subordinated Debts - 30,000.03]
f
P f};{ .._:"*,‘5’ Y
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* Gross Portinlin

Sensitivity Analysis

The table below summaries the impact of increase and decrease in rate of interest on the Group's
Equity/ other assets ang profit for the year. The analysis is based on the assurmption that the interest rate

has incregsed/decreased by 50 base point,

{a) interest rate sensitivity - Borrowings

{Rs. in lakhs)

[ kY. 202223 F.Y. 2021-22
50 bp increase would detrease the profit before tax by | -133.45 -201.26
@bp decredse wouid incregse the profit before tax by ] 133.45 20126
{b) Interest rate sensitivity - Loans
{Rs. in lzkhs)
[ FY. 202223 ] FV. 207027
50 bp incresse would increase the profit before tax by 14703 ] 230,68 ’
50 bp decrease would gecrease the profit hefore tax by i -147.03 [ -230,68 I
{c) Interest rate sensitivity - Fixed Deposits with Bank
_ {Rs. in lakhs)
| F.v. 202223 F.Y. 2021-22
50 bo increase wou'd increase the profiy before tax by 56.27
50 bp decrease waglag decrease the profit before tax by -56.27 i 2.85 |

38.2.2 Currency Risk

The Group does rot have any currency risk exposure a5 there i no foreign currency obligation/

receivable.

38.2.3 Market Price Risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of g finanzial instruments wiil fluctuate
because uof changes in marker prices of equity shares and mutual funds units. In the case of te Company,
rearket risk primarily impacts financia! Mslruments such as investment iy Mutual Funds, Eguity Shares

BtC. measured at fair vgiue through profit or jass,

The Campany exposure 1o market price risk arisirg from Investments held by the Corepany and is
classified in the financial statements at fair value through profit or lass, Caregories at Investments heid

by the Company is given bejow:

{Rs._in lakhs)

' Porticulars I' Equity Shares | mutual Funds | Total |
L (Quoted)

[Market value o5 at March 31, 2023 - 259.99 799,99
Market value as at March 31, 2032 | . 999.95 | 959.&]

Sensitivity Analysis

The table below Sumrnaries the imgact of increase ond decrease of the index on the Company's Equity/
other assets and profit for the year, The analys's is hased on the assumption that the instrument index

has increased by 5% or decreased by 5% with alj uther varia'-brefs held constant,
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(Rs. in fakhs)

| March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

5% increase would increase the profit before tax by | 15.00 50.00
5% decrease would decrease the profit before tax by ] -15.00 'SO.@

38.3 Liguidity Risk

tiquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group wil!

reasonabile price. Liguidity risk are managed through compination of strategies fike managing tenars
asset liability management pokicy and adequate liguidity cover is maintained. Tha Group's treasury
management, In addftion, processes
Management monitors the Group liguidity position through

respansible for liguidity, funding as well as settlement
to such risks are overseen by Senior management.
rofling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows,

Tha analysis of financiat liabilitie: Dy remaining contractua maturities:

not be able to settle or meet its obilgations on time or at

in line with

team is
and policies refated

{Rs. in lakhs)

[ Particulars Less than 1 year / 1toSyears | »5vyears Total |
On demand

As at March 31, 2022

Borrawings other than Daht Securities 11872, 58% &,607.20 600.100 21,079.78

Subprdinated Debts - - -

Other financial liabilities 1,244.54 186.63 - 1,431.17 |

As at March 31, 2022

Barrowings other than Debt Securities 10,182.74% 89.88 | 1wz7262

Subordinated Debts - 30,000,00 - | 3pp00.00

[Other financial iabilities 743.93 58.77 ] 802.71

*Gross of processing fee of Rs. 217.73L as on 315t March, 2023 {Rs.20.69L 35 on 31st Margh, 2022)

39. Other Financizal Instruments Disclosures

38.1 Financial Instruments by Categary

The carrying value and fair vatue of tinancia! instrurients by categories as at March 31, 2023 are as fallows:

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Amortized Financial assets/ Financial assets/ | Total Carryingi Total fair vaiue—|
cost Ikabitities at fair liakifitles at fair valye i
value through profit | value through OC)
or loss } :
| ]
Assets:
{2} Invesiment in equily stares 137.33 127.33 127.33
{unavuted) f
(3] Mubuat Funds 299,399 293,99 299,99
{e]  Trade receivable: 4.4 54.4p 54.48
{t]  Other recaivablps RER] 33.60 33.60
(2} Loans 29,075,356 29,075.36 29,075 36
{f}  Cther firancial assats 258 ED : - 258.60 258.650
{E} Cuashard cash Equivalents 3,174.77 3,174.727 3,1?41‘1‘

e e
;,{/ VA
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—_— —_—
] Bank balance other thar cash and 11,254.1% 11,254.13 ’ 11,255.13
Lash squivalents I [ ’
Liabifitias; '
13} Debt Securies B Ry - : 5,827.15
{b] Botrowmngs ather than Debt 2107978 - - 2107978
Securitigs® f

Suttordinated Debrs

alue and fair vajge of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2022 are as follows:

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Amuartized Finangial assars S Financial assets/ | Total Carrying | Total fair valup
o5t liahilities at fajr Habilties at fair value ’

value through protit value through o /

Tther tinancia| lakiiitiog

*Gross of processing fee af Ry, 217.73¢

Tha ca reving v

oriass

Assats;

{a} Investmant in aquity shares - o1 ' } } ’\_’
funruated) { i
1o]  Mutual Fungs T T e . _——_999.95! Mﬂeeﬁ
{t]  Trade recalyablon T 12737 ﬁ\ 12237 12237]
(0} Lamns :tm'% ' . - 45,780.99 f;?@
'me. [ 81933 H:JT -1 T g1ai; 819,37
(i Cashand cash Eq;jrm‘l‘],um& I ' '

- - 1,121,908 1,121.08
{81 Bank halznze other than rash ang | L2000 - 590.00

580,00 I
cash vguivalents

Liabilities;

21

Borrawings atier than
Securites*

10,272.62 - 10,272 .63 10,272.62
ic]  Other financiai vaiilites B2 - —

802,71 | 20271

Pebt

*Gross of processing fee of s 2069 lakhs

38.2 Fair Valye Hierarchy

39.2.1 This sectian expiains the judgments ard cstimates made in tdetermining the fair value of the finangig)

instruments thag are (a) recognized and mMeasured at fair value and (b) measured at amortized cost ang
for which fair valyes are disclosed i the Consolidated Financist Staterments. it doas rotinclude falr valye

information for financia! assers ang labilities if the CArrying amount is a reasonabh!
value,

€ approximatior of fair

{Rs. in takhs)
March 31, 2022

Particulars March 31, 2023

Level 1| Laygl 2
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Liabilities:
Lease Liahilities ] | ]geg.ssl -] J 34.62

{b) Mutual Funds IESQ,BQI - ] - f999'95[. . [ | AI

39.2.2 Measurement of fair values

The above table provides an gnalysis of finarcial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recugnition at fair vaiue, grouped inta Level 110 Level 3, as described below:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for iddentical assets or lighbilities.
Level 2 - Input other than quated prices included within Levei 1 that arg observable for the assets or
iability, either directly (i.e. as prices] or indirectly {i.e. derived from orices).

Level 3- Inputs for the assets or the ‘fabifities that are not based on nbservable marke: data
{unabservable Inputs)
Valuation Methodologies of financial instruments measured at fair valyuc.

>>  listed Equity shares are measured an the basis of closing rate of the stack exchange where cquity
shares are listed.

>>  Mutuat Funds are measured hased gn the published net asset vatue {NAV} by AMFI and are classified
as tevel 1.

{} Fair value of financial assets and labilities measured at amortized cost:-

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars March 21, 2023 |  March 31, 2022
Lease liahil#ies 299,85 84.62

The fair value of the financizl BSSeTS s included at ampunts at which the instruments could be
exchanged in a current transaction Between willing parties other thar in & forced or Liquidation sale,

(i} The following mathods and a55UMptions are used to estimate the fair value;

{a) Fairvalue of cash and cash equivaients, trade and other receiisbles, other payables and other
financial lfabitities, aprroximate their carrying amounts largety due to the short-rerm rmaturities
of these instruments.

{b} Financial instrumente with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Graup based on
barameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the courterparty, Based on

this evaluation, allowanres are taker o account for the expected losses of thesa receivzhles.

40. Maturity profile of Assets and Liakilities on undiscounted basis

{Rs. in lakhs]

Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Within 12 r After 12 ’ Within 12 Aftar 12
months manths i months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 317477 - 1,121.08 -
Bark balance other than cash and cash equivelents 11,254.13 - 593.00 -
Trade recaivable ) ) | RR.06 - 132.37 J

s

pA” ¥
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[Loans | 19803.36] 927530] 4305912 2,721.87 |
Investments ' 299.99 127.33 959.95 -
Others Financial Assets 228 .85 2971 736.10 83.22
Nan-Financial Assets
Current tax assets {Net) 74.15 - - -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net} - 332.37 - 90.14
Tangible Assets - 66.95 - 33.30]
Right of use assets . 292 89 ' - 83.06
Intangible assets under development 179.12 - 147,15 -
Goodwill - 45,15 - 43.15
Other Intangible assets - 22.50 - 77.50
Qther non-financial assets 1,364.52 1,080.75 309 .83
Financial Liabilities T
Debt Securities 7785 5,740,324 g -
Borrowing othar than el Securitics 1187258+ 920720 10,182.74* 59.88
Subordinated debts - - - 30,000.00
Otker financiaf iabilities 1,244,54 186.63 74384 5877
Non-Financial Liabilitigs
Current tax liabilities (net; 5.3 ] - 86.64 B
Frovisions : 13.58 - 1.36
Deferred tax liahilities {net) - - - 5'557:
Other Non-Finzngial Liabilities 237.51 555.03 25.41 -
*Gross of brocessing fee of Rs. 217,731 as on 3151 March, 2023 (Rs.20.69L as on 315t Marcn, 2022)
41, Disclosures as required by Ind AS-24 ‘Refated Party*
41.1 List of Refated parties and their refationship:
S.No. Retation Name Particulars of Relationship :'
1 'Key Martagerment 5k Kapil Garg Marnaging Director
Fersonnel Smt. Gunajn lain Chief Financial Officer of Subsidiary Company w.e f.
Novernber 14,2022
Shri Adisk Kumar Jain Chief Financial Officer of Subsidiary Company tiif
September 30, 2022
Shet Panka Gupta Chief Executive Officer of Subsidiary Company w.e.f.
May 18,2022
| Shri Mayark fratap Singh_ {Company Secretary ]
2 |Relatives of Kay Shri Rajat Goyal Husband of Smt, Neha Agarwal, Director
Managerent Srit. Shelly Garg Wife of Shri Kagii Garg, Maraging Director
3 {Non-Executive Smt. Neha Agarwal Non-Executive Director
Birectors Shri Sandeep Jain Non-Executive Director
Shri Luv Kharna Non-Fxecutive Direclor
Shri Pradip Kumnar Kar Non-Executive Director w.e f Qrctober 23, 2021
Shri Amot Sinha Non-Fxecutive Director w.e f November 25, 2021
[-] Shri Hemant Bhageria Nm?—Executive Dizector w.efjanuary 12, 2023 _l

i

41.2 The following transctions were carried out with Related parties in the ordinary course of business:

¢

H

Y.\ i . N : i e,
e b - ’ - . L




HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
TN U34300DL1985P1C021785

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ri

ANCAL STATEMENTS

i Year ended March Year ended March
!;ne of Related Party Nature of transaction 11,2023 31 3022 -’
Shri Rajat Goyal Shares issued - 15¢.87 )
Shri Luy Khanna Shares issyeg 16.57
5t Anmat Sinha Directar Sitting fees Q.15 0.30
Shri Kepit Garg Director's Remuneration 187.34 150.00
Loan Repaid ' 135,00 372.00
Loan Received 135.00 373,{39‘]
Shares issied 955.96 228.38
Interest paid on |oan 0.17 4.32
Shri Pradip Kumar Kar Birector Sitting fees 4.00 1.00
Shri Sandeep Jain [Sheres issuey 79.20 26.14
Smt Neha Agarwal Shares issLed 26.24
smt Shelly Garg Interest paig on loan | 0.20 5.29
Lean Repaid J 100.00 665.08
‘Eves issied | 325.00 20.00
L ILcan Recewved f 100.00; £65.00 |
413 Qutstanding balances with Related parties
Name of Related Party — INature of transacaion As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2073
Bkapﬁ Garg mn Dutstanding (Liahifity} ﬂ
414 Partleulars of Remuneration to Key Management Personnel
[Rs. Ini lakks)
' Shri Kapit Garg, Managing Directar shri Ajay Chhabra, Company _]
Particulars | Secretary
i Year ended Year ended Year endad Year ended
‘ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 | mMarch 31, 2022 J
Salary and Allowances ' 167.34 150.00 2.26
[ Contribution to PF [ . J 0.20
Value of Perquisites* ] -

T i Shri Adish Xumar fain, Chief financial | Shrl Mayank Pratap Singh, Eumpam
Particulars - OHicer Secretary ]
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Salary and Allowances 5.00 1.00 9.82 .50
Contribution to PF 0.11 0.02 022 Ld
Bonus 0.50 - 031 S
b’alue uf Perguisites® - - . j

Sint Tanvi lawa, Chigf Firancial Officer ’

Smit Gunjzn lahn, Chief Financial

Particulars Officer
Year ended Year anded Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2922_
Salary and Allawances 4.06 . 764 ' T
Contribution to PP ] oos - 0.03 —f
[Vatue of Perguisites* [ S - ]

G N
(’ /;/\ %””,«
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’ Shri Pankaj Gupta, Chief Executive ’
| Oﬂ'ig:er

Year sndad Year endeg
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Contribution tn PF

s ———

Value of Perguisites *

* Caleulated 3s per Income Tax Aules
415 Noamount Pertaining to related Parties has been provided for as deubtiul debts or written off,

41.6 Related Aarty relationship is as identified by the Company.

42. Earnings per Share {EPS)
—_—_—

Particulars

I I S
Year ended I Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 21, 2022 i
{betore OCY; attributabie to the Company (Ks, in 887.16 56746

Net Profit far the year
Lakhs)

Weighted average no, of Fauity Sharcg 1.30,50,168 |] 1,16,44,805

Diluted average no. of Fauity Shares 1,30,50,168 1,16,44,305 |

Basic earnings per share {Rs.} i 6.80 f 487 ’

DHuted PArNIngs par share [Rs.} | 6.80 ] 487 ¢
.

Face value of pach share (Rs.) 14 |[ 10

43. Distlosures of Leases pursuant 1o Ing AS 116
thh Group as Lessep
43.1 The Group has taken building on eperating leaze for office use.

43.2 Amounts recaghized in Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss
’ Particulars For the yearended | for the year ended
| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent Expenses I ' [ - 29.15:’
'Depreciat;on"m'es ' 69.43 ’ 1661
/mrerest Expenses 15.47 ' 415 ’
[Toral” __-__H ' l B[ 4037

43.3 The changes in the cartying value of right of Use assets (RQU]

{Rs. in lakhs)
*-__F‘.-—_—""—-——-_,:—& - . -

' Particutars Building _ ]
’ : For the year ended Forthe year ended‘?

| March 31, 2023 ] March 31, 2022

— e
Balance ot the Beginning of the year |
t —_——
Additions

Rz, in lakhs)

83.06 |




HINDDN MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: U34300D4 1985PLC021 785

NOTES FORMING PART 2F THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.4 The break-up of current and non-current lease liabHities

Deietion{)‘sdju;tment

Cepreciation

-69.43

-16.61

Balance at the end of the year

252.83

83.06 |

The aggregate depreciation expense an ROU assets

s included under depreciation snd armortization expense

{Rs. in lakks)

Particulars For the year ended For the year anded
Miarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities 93.85 29.84
Non-current lease liabilities 206.00 54.78 |
Total " [ 299.86 84.62
43.5 The movement in lease liabitities
(Rs. in lakhs)
Partlcutars | For the year ended For the year endad
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2027
Balance at the beginning of the year 84.62 -
Additions 27406 9%.8D
interest Expenses 15.47 4.16
Deletians - -
Payment of ease lizbilities -74.30 -17.34 |
'LBilance at the end of the year 299.85 84.6_71

43.6 The details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis

(Rs. in lakhs)

1

Particulars

[ For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 Marck 31, 2022
Less thanﬂ Uhe year 117 .06 36,30 |
One to five years 13762 58.79 |
More than five years -
"Tc;tal 354.68 | 95.09._ ]

(N} Group as Lessor

Finance Lease

i

it}

The Company has given certain praperty, plant and equipments on finance teases. The
period and is nan-canceliable, There are no exceptional/ restrictive covenants
are no significant risks associated with rights that the Comgany retains in un

Malurity anaiysis of minimyre undisceunted lease receivables and the

paymerts receivahle is as under:

lease is for a fixed
in the ieasc agreemant. There
derlying assets

present value of minimum [ease

{Rs.in Ia}(hs]

‘ ' Particulars

As at l
March 31, 2023 |

T asat
March 31, 2022
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44,

45,

[Rheceivable not later than 1 year 1,256.16 ) - ‘
r@:eivabfe fater than 1 vear but mat (ater than 2 year 1,262.06 -
Receivahle later than 2 year but nrot later than 3 year 1,552.89 ' -
iReceivabte later tﬂmar but not later than 4 veur 332.94 -
Receivable later than 4 year but not later than 5 year 33294 -
FR;ceivable fater than § years 161.89 -
Gross investment in lease 4,938.488 .
Less: Unearned finance necome 1,216.93 -
Present value of minimum lease payment receivabla 3,721.55 -

*including processing feas of Rs. 48.81 lakhs and other charges of Rs. 6.20 |zkhs o be amortized in futore.

i) Finance laase income an net investment in lease recogrized in staterment of Profit and lass during the
financiai year 22 23 is 182,61 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Nil)

v} Finance iease income relating to variabie lease payments not depending on index/rate - Nii

vl Changes in CEITYINg amount of net investrment in finance lcase.

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Current [ Non-Current [ Total :’
Upening value of Lease Receivables as ap Aprit 1, 2021 -] - J -
Add: Finance lease income recognized in Statement of Profit and -
Loss
bess: Lease rental received {cash payment) ' - - -

lAdd/Less: Change on aceourt of any other factors - - .
Opening value of Laate Receivabies as an April 1, 2022 - - -

Add: Additions during the yvear 201.76 3,661.94 3,368.70
—ﬂGd: Firance lease income recognized in Statement of Profit and 18261 - 132.61
Loss

Less: Leasq rentat received {rash payment} -384.37 - -384.37
Add/Less: Change on account of any ather factors 784.56 -784.56 -
Opening value of Lease Receivables as on March 31,2023 784.56 2,882.38 | 3,565.9ﬂ

Pursuant ta the ordar dated Septernber 14, 2020 of the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ¥, in the
matter of amalgamation of Mufin Finance Limited ang OTp Financial Services Private Limited with Hindon Mercantile
timited {'the helding Company'] in a scheme of amalgamation under section 230 0 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
{the Schemea'} w.e.f Quly 31, 2019 (appointed date), in accordance with the scheme of arnalgamation, with offect
from the appointed date, the company has accounted far amalgamatiar of Mutin Finarce Limited & QTP Financial
Services Private Limited /n jts becks of accaunts as per "The Poofing of tnterest Method" as described in Accounting
Standard [AS)- 14 “Accounting far Amalgamatons issuag 2y the Institute pf Chartered Accountants of indiz. In
aceardance with Para 10 of Accounting Stendard (5] 14, ‘Accounting for Amalgamation’, the company has offected
said amalgamation recognizing the identifiable sssets at their existing carrying amounts. In accordance with Paragraph
35 of aforesaid Accounting Standard-14, the difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued and the
amount of share capitat of the transferor comazoy huve been adjusted i reserves,

Businesz Combinatlon

(3} Mufin Green Finance Limited (Formeriy knowr as APM Finvest Limited}

"
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Pursuant ta the Share Purchase Agreement entered into between the Seiters (“Outgoing Promoters”) and Hindan
Mereantile Umited and Kapil Garg ("Acquirers®) on Novernber 27, 2021, the Acquirers have Acquired entire stake
of Mufin Green Finance Limited (Formerly known as AP Finvest Limited) ("The Company™ from the Outgaing
Promotars reauiting in change i management conlrof woe f, parch 09,2022, Consequently, the Acquirers are the
new Promoters of the Company and the Cutgoing Promoters have ceased to;

(i} hold any shares in the Campany,
{ii} held control of the Company, and
(iif} be the Pramoters of the Company.

inthis regarg, the Company has received "No objection" from the Reserve Bank of India. The application fHed by
the Company with the stock excharige tor reclassification of QUtEDIPE prarnoters to public category is under
brocess. Brief description of Assals and Liabilities ang Capital Reserve as on March 08, 2022 is given below:

(Rs, in fakhs)

-

Particutars I Amount ﬁ
Cash and Cash Equivalants ' 5,013.78
Loans 5,55 1.%
Other Financial Assets 4,14
Property, Plant and Enuipment and Intangibie Aésets ' 0.04
kDeferred Tax Assetﬁ"(netj ) 3.49 |
Other Non-Financial Assats ?.37]
Total Assets tA) 10,579.99
[Financial Lizbilities -
Current Tax Liabilities {net) 17988
’F:af Liabilities {B) 275.88 |
Equity as at March a8, 2022 C= {A-B} 10,300.11 I
’Hlndan Mercantile Limited's share in Equity {D) 6,535,8;’
[investment (E) i 6,912,439 |
[Capital Reserve {D-E) I 23.37 |

{b! Hindon Feer to Pear Finance Private Lirnited, subsidiary ("the Arquirer”

i have acquired entire stake of

Fintelligence Data Science Private Limited ("The Company") from the Cirgoing Promoters {AAPCA Demystifying
Data Techroingies Private Limited) resulting in change in management control w.ef. June 16, 2021
Consequently, the Acquirer is the new Promoters of the Company and the Outgaing Promoters have ceased to:

i} hald any shares in the Company,
{it} hold controt of the Company, and
(ili} bethe Promoters of the Comparny.

Inthis regard, the Company has received "Ng objection” from the Reserye Haak of India. Brief description of

Assets and Liabilites and Goodwill as on fune 18, 2021 i given beigw:

(Rs. in lakhs)

E Particutars

l Amount ’
1

Cash and Cash Equivalents
oo

_[Gther Financial Assats

r————

_ 5183 ]
J 17.08 !
{ _ 0.08 |

Property, Piarit and Equipmerit and Intangible Assets
Other Non-Financiz| Assets
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TOW“.*mmf—__.____ —_—

Other Financial Liabifitigy
Deferred Tax Liabilities {net}
Other Nan-Financial Lizhilities

=(A-B}
Hindon Peer 1o Pear Finance Private
investnent {E)
Goodwill {E-F)

46. The Board of Birectors of subsidiary Compgany, Mufin Green firgnre Litptited {Forr‘nerly known as APm Firvest Limited)
in their Mmeeting held on Septernher 28, 2022 have approved the dividend @ Re. 0.2p Per Equity share of face value of

Rs. Z per share (i.e. 10%) for the financial vear 2021-22 ax per Section 123 of the Act. Accaringly, the
has bean paid by the subsidiary tompany in Qctober, 2022

dividend amount

47. The Group’s main business js investrnents & Financing activities angd Other Financial Services. Ali activities are carried
out within India. As such there are no reportable segments as perind AS 108 - '‘Dperating Segments’,

48. The Greup Companios does nat see zny challenge in the recoverabifity of the carrying values of ity assets and to s
liguidity positinn. The eventus] outcome of impact of the COVID-19 pandemic imay he diffarent from those estimated
as on the date gf approval af these Consoficated Firancia Stelements and the Group Campanies wil| continue to

mOnitor any materia) charges 1o the futyre EConomic conditions,

43, There are no outstanding dues {:’ncluding interest) of 'Micrg' and 'Small' Enterprices BUrsuant to Micre, $mall and
Medium Enterprises Bevelopment Act, 2008 {MSMED Act') a5 a¢ March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 - Niiy. Accordingly,

no disclosures ara requirad to be given under MEMED Act'.

50. Duringthe YEAY, provisions of Sectian 135 of the Companias Act, 2013 related to Corporate Social Respansibility {CSR)
Actfvities is not applicabie to the Group Bxcepl Mufin Green Finance Limitarl {Formerty AP Firvest Limited! where
Section 135 of the Comparies Act, 2013 is applicabie & we have spent Rs. 18.871 in promotion of education activitias,

51. Reconciliation of Grass Carrying Amount of Loans and Expected Credit Loss on Loans (before Inter-Company

Adjustments}

A, Recanciliation pf Gross Carrying Amount of Loans

Particulars ’ As at

March 31, 2023
46155,99+%

Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year

March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Iakhs)
As at

35,702.26

New Assets originated on date of acruisition of subsidigries

Transfers tof (from) Stage 2
Transfers o/ {from) Stage 3
ASSELS written off

—_

7,965 45

New Assets originated or purchased _ 68,284 65 )
dransters 1o/ {from) Stage 1 -8,649.34 l -3,6200.36 |
3,445.68

5.567.94
1,47,633.10
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et Reco‘.rery . 954 16 1 42, ?45 31,
Gross Carrymg amount at the end end of the vear 29 513, 30 46155 59*
mcludmg inter-company loan of R, 21.54 takhs
8. Recanciliation of Expected Credit Loss an Loans

’ Particulars

{Rs. in Jakhs)
As at

As at
March 21, 2023

, March 31, 2022
Expected Credit Loss at the beginning of the year 354.46 109.43
——e w____'_““*i:: : —_— . :
Expected Credit Loss an date of acquisitios; of subsidiaries - 13.88
ittt WM.MMM
On Amourt written off 30.82 -
On New Assets originated or purchased 157.27 580.57
—_—
Impact on Expected Credit Loss of Exposure trarsferred botwe 17720 117 .43
slages during the year j
lrcrease/fdecrease} in provision on financial assets {net of | -371.28 -466.85
remuery}
Expected Cremt Loss on O Baian; 2 shest tem _ 327 - *’

!ncrease/{necrease} in Expected Credit Loss during the year [ V.28 f 23115 |
Expected Credit Loss at tie end of the year® f 330.92 | 354.46

*excivding amount of Rs. 8.48 lakhs of Imipairment Reserye made on lpans as per Reserve Bank of India Master
Direction.

5Z. Other Sta tutory information

Uisclosure in terms af Schedule 1f of the Comparies Act, 2013:

__..___——-——,__.._.________.._._._
Share in other Share in total mmprehensw
comprehensive income HILDma

Asatng Amount | As a%of Amoum
consnhdated consalidated
nat assets net gssels
13 24% f 225 1n

—_—
Share ini Profit or Loss

Asa % of ’ A;nount
censalidated |

et assats

Netassets {l.e. Tota] assets
minus tatal tizbiliting)

As a % of Amaunt
consalidated

nat assets
— T

75 40%{ c,

1. 44%’ 419, 93

Hindon Mercantls | 7
Limited

231180

Subsidiaries {Indianj

Hindon Account
ABEregation Sarvices
Private Limita

Hindor: Feer (¢ Pear
Finaace Srivarg
Liznitecf

Mufin Green Sinance
Lrited [Farmerly
APM Frryast Limrited)
fless Mingrity interest
i suisidiary)

] J
U4 ' 91.40%’ BOY.63 |
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Mufir Payment 0.01% .83 0.023 017 0.00% 5.02% 017

Soiutions Frivate

Zirsed

Birrapay Finsure 11.78% €4.75 0 32%! Z.81 0.00% 0.37% 281

Private Limitad {less

Mingrity intesest in

subsigiary)

{less Inter- Group -105.65%| 12,8975 -38.21% -339.00 -£3.28% 0B -38.17% -3i5.14

elminationt*

Total 100.00%| 12.207.88[ 100.00% E27.16 100.00% -1.36 100.00% 885.80
| .

*including offset {eliminate) the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiaries.

53. Allamaoun

s in the consalidated finarcial statemants and notes have been presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs

rounded off to two decimal places as permitteg by Schedule fil except per share data and as otherwise stated. Fipures
pertaining to the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever flecessary to bring them it fine with the

Lompany’s Financial statements. Figures in brackets represent COrrespunding previ
fisures have heen regrouped / reclassified wherever necassary including thase

ous year figures. Previous vear
#s required in keeping with revised

schedule [l of the Compznies Act, 2013.
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